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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Leon Valley City Council Chambers 
6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, TX 78238 

Tuesday, February 18, 2025 at 6:30 PM 
 

AGENDA 

The City of Leon Valley City Council Shall Hold an In-Person Meeting with A Quorum of Members 
of City Council to Be Physically Present in The Leon Valley City Council Chambers, 6400 El Verde 
Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238. Some Members of City Council May Appear and Participate in 
The Meeting by Videoconference Pursuant to The Requirements Set Forth in The Texas Open 
Meetings Act.  
  
Citizens May E-Mail Public Comments To citizenstobeheard@leonvalleytexas.gov. All Other 
Citizen Participation May Be Provided In-Person at City Council Chambers.  

 

1. Call to Order; Determine a Quorum is Present, Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Citizens to be Heard - Citizens wishing to address the City Council for items not on the 
agenda will be received at this time. Please limit comments to 3 minutes. In accordance with 
the Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted from discussing or acting on items not 
listed on this agenda. 

3. Presentations 

1. Presentation to Albert San Miguel for 39 Years of Service to the City of Leon Valley - 
Mayor Chris Riley 

2. Presentation and Discussion on the Approval of the Annual Comprehensive Financial 
Report (ACFR) for Fiscal Year 2024 - Debbie Fraser, CPA 

4. Announcements by the Mayor and Council Members. At this time, reports about items 
of community interest, which no action will be taken may be given to the public as per 
Chapter 551.0415 of the Government Code, such as: expressions of thanks, congratulations 
or condolence, information regarding holiday schedules, reminders of social, ceremonial, or 
community events organized or sponsored by the governing body or that was or will be 
attended by a member of the Leon Valley City Council or a City official. 
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5. City Manager's Report 

1. Upcoming Important Events:  

 Regular City Council Meeting, Tuesday, March 04, 2025, at 6:30 PM, in City Council 
Chambers. 

 City Offices and Municipal Court will be closed Monday, February 17, 2025, in 
observance of Presidents’ Day.  

 Basura Bash, Saturday, February 22, 2025, from 9:00 AM until 12:00 PM.  

 Spring Brush and Bulky Item Pickup, February 24, 2025 through February 28, 2025. 

 Drawing for a Place on the Ballot, Monday, February 24, 2025, at 8:30 AM, in City 
Council Chambers.  

 35th Annual Earthwise Living Day, March 01, 2025, from 9:30 AM to 1:30 PM, at the 
Community Center.  

 Movies in the Park Coming in March and May of 2025! More Details Coming Soon. 

 Last Day to Register to Vote for the May 03, 2025 General Election, Thursday, April 
03, 2025. 

 Last Day to Register to Apply for a Mail Ballot for the May 03, 2025 General Election, 
Tuesday, April 22, 2025. 

 Early Voting in Personal Appearance, Tuesday, April 22-Tuesday, April 29, 2025. 

 Miscellaneous other events and announcements. 

6. Consent Agenda - All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City 
Council and may be enacted by one (1) motion. There will be no separate discussion of a 
Consent Agenda item unless a member of City Council requests that the item be pulled from 
the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 

1. Discussion and Possible Action Approving of the Following City Council Minutes: 
a.  02-04-2025 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

2. Discussion and Possible Action Accepting of the Following Board/Commission Minutes: 
a.  11-12-2024 Planning &  Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 

3. Presentation and Discussion of the Monthly Financial Report Ending January 31, 2025 
- C. Goering, Finance Director 

4. Discussion and Action on the Approval of Bank Signature Cards for Frost Bank and 
Amending the Resolution of Authorized Representatives for Texpool. - C. Goering, 
Finance Director 

7. Regular Agenda 

1. Presentation and Discussion of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 6 Health and 
Sanitation, Article 6.05 Smoking Regulations to Incorporate Electronic Smoking Devices 
(ESDs) (1st Read as Required by City Charter) - S. Huerta, Planning and Zoning 
Director 
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2. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action to Authorize the City Manager to Expend 
Funds from the Economic Development Department and Stormwater Fund in the 
Amount of $17,500.00 for Maintenance of Zarzamora Creek - R. Salinas, Executive 
Director 

8. Requests from Members of City Council to Add Items to Future Agendas – Per Section 
3.10 (A) of the City of Leon Valley’s Code of Ordinances, at a Meeting of City Council, 
a Member of City Council May Place an Item on an Agenda by Making a Motion to 
Place the Item on a Future Agenda and Receiving a Second. No Discussion Shall 
Occur at the Meeting Regarding the Placement of the Item on a Future Agenda. 

9. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session. The City Council of the City of Leon Valley reserves the right to adjourn into 
Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed on 
the posted agenda, above, as authorized by the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071 
(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberations about real property), 551.073 (deliberations about 
gifts and donations), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberations about security devices), and 
551.087 (economic development). 
 
Sec. 551.0411. MEETING NOTICE REQUIREMENTS IN CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES: (a) Section 
does not require a governmental body that recesses an open meeting to the following regular business 
day to post notice of the continued meeting if the action is taken in good faith and not to circumvent this 
chapter. If an open meeting is continued to the following regular business day and, on that following day, 
the governmental body continues the meeting to another day, the governmental body must give written 
notice as required by this subchapter of the meeting continued to that other day. 
 
Attendance by Other Elected or Appointed Officials: It is anticipated that members of other City 
boards, commissions and/or committees may attend the open meeting in numbers that may constitute a 
quorum. Notice is hereby given that the meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a 
meeting of any other boards, commissions and/or committees of the City, whose members may be in 
attendance in numbers constituting a quorum. These members of other City boards, commissions, and/or 
committees may not deliberate or act on items listed on the agenda. [Attorney General Opinion – No. 
GA-0957 (2012)]. 
 
I hereby certify that the above NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING(S) AND AGENDA OF THE LEON 
VALLEY CITY COUNCIL was posted at the Leon Valley City Hall, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, 
Texas, and remained posted until after the meeting(s) hereby posted concluded. This notice is posted on 
the City website at https://www.leonvalleytexas.gov. This building is wheelchair accessible. Any 
request for sign interpretive or other services must be made 48 hours in advance of the meeting. To 
arrange for assistance, call (210) 684-1391, Extension 212. 
 

  
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC  
City Secretary 
February 14, 2025 11:00 AM 
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January 28, 2025 
 
The Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council  
and Citizens of the City of Leon Valley: 
 
State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish within six months of the 
close of each fiscal year a complete set of audited financial statements. This report is published to 
fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024. 
 
Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information 
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has 
established for this purpose.  Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated 
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial 
statements are free of any material misstatements. 
 
The City of Leon Valley financial statements have been audited by Armstrong, Vaughan and 
Associates, P.C., a firm of licensed certified public accountants. They have issued an unmodified 
“clean” opinion on the City of Leon Valley’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 
2024. The independent report is located at the front of the financial section of this report. 

 
Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial 
statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 
 
PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 
 
The City, incorporated in 1952, is a residential community located in south central Texas in the 
northwest portion of the San Antonio Metropolitan Statistical Area.  The City is located in Bexar 
County, Texas.  Bexar County’s economy is based on military, tourism, agriculture, limestone 
mining, medical facilities, and manufacturing. The City has a land area of 3.5 square miles and is 
surrounded on all sides by the City of San Antonio.  Most City residents are employed within the 
greater San Antonio Metropolitan Statistical Area. A full range of services is provided to residents 
and businesses, including police and fire protection, construction and maintenance of streets and 
infrastructure, recreational activities, and water and sewer utilities. The City population based 
upon the 2020 census is 11,542. The City is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and 
personal property located within its boundaries.  The City’s property tax rate is average compared 
to the rest of Bexar County. 
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The city is operated under the council-manager form of government. Policy making and legislative 
authority are vested in the City Council, which consists of a Mayor and a five-member Council. 
The Council is elected on a non-partisan basis at large. Council members are elected to two-year 
staggered terms. The Mayor is elected at large to a two-year term. The City Council is 
responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing 
committees and the hiring of a City Manager.  The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the 
policies and ordinances of the governing Council, overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City, 
and appointing the heads of the City’s departments. 
 
The City maintains extensive budgetary controls. The objective of these controls is to ensure the 
proper safeguarding of City assets, compliance with State budgetary statutes and compliance with 
legal provisions embodied in the annual budget approved by the City Council. Activities of the 
General Fund, Red Light Camera Fund, ARP Fund, Debt Service Fund, Water and Sewer 
(Enterprise) Fund, Community Center Fund, Building Security Fund, Child Safety Fund, Municipal 
Court Technology Fund, Street Maintenance Tax Fund, Police Forfeiture Fund, Grant Fund, and   
Crime Control and Prevention District are included in the City’s annual budget. 
 
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Leon Valley’s financial planning and 
control. Generally, the City has a policy of funding the current year’s operating expenditures with 
current operating revenues. Capital purchases are funded from the Unassigned Fund Balance. All 
agencies of the City of Leon Valley are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City 
Manager on or before the first week in May each year. The City Manager then presents this 
proposed budget to the Council for review in August. The Council is required to a hold public 
hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget by no later than September 30, the 
close of Leon Valley’s fiscal year. 
 
The City has adopted financial policies for budgetary control that are stricter than is required by 
law. The appropriated budget is prepared by funds, department (e.g. police), and function (e.g. 
patrol). Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of 
appropriations between departments, however, require the special approval of the Council. 
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for 
which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. 
 
LOCAL ECONOMY 
 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Leon 
Valley operates. 
 
The City of Leon Valley’s property values have demonstrated an increase over the last few years. 
The region’s leading industries, in terms of gross sales for the City, are auto dealers/gasoline 
service stations and food stores. A significant portion of sales for these businesses is not subject to 
local sales taxes. 
 
LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 
 
In FY 2011 the City implemented GASB 54 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions and formally adopted a Fund Balance Policy. The Fund Balance Policy adopted by the 
City is the framework upon which consistent operations may be built and sustained. For man- 
made or natural disaster emergencies the City aims to maintain a Committed Fund Balance 
equivalent to three months operating expenses based on the current operating budget. For the 
fiscal year that ended September 30, 2024, the Committed Fund Balance was $1,000,000. 
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The City also maintains a ten-year Capital Acquisition Plan (CAP) to provide for capital outlay 
expenditures. Each fiscal year, the CAP is reviewed and analyzed by the City Manager and City 
staff to determine needs for office and other machinery and equipment, vehicles, buildings and 
building improvements, land, and other improvements. The ten-year CAP is authorized by the City 
Council during the City’s annual budget adoption process. As items are funded only when deemed 
necessary, capital outlay details and amounts vary between budget years. The plan is funded from 
the Unassigned Fund Balance. 
 
AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDMENTS 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Leon Valley for its 
annual comprehensive financial report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, with 
the highest standards for the preparation of state and local government financial reports. 
 
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial report, whose contents conform 
to program standards. The ACFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and 
applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report 
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements and we are 
submitting it to GFOA. 
 
We would like to extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to the Finance Department, and all 
City staff and department heads who helped in the preparation of this report. A special thanks goes 
to our Mayor and City Council for their strong leadership and support, their sense of civic duty and 
responsibility, and their diligence in conducting the operations of the City in a responsible and 
progressive manner.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

           
Dr. Crystal Caldera     Carol Goering 
City Manager      Finance Director 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 

 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 

City of Leon Valley, Texas 

 
 

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Opinions 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Leon Valley as of and 
for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 

comprise City of Leon Valley’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 

financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 

aggregate remaining fund information of City of Leon Valley, as of September 30, 2024, and the respective 

changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Basis for Opinions 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America (GAAS).  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be 

independent of City of Leon Valley and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 

relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit evidence we obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  
 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

 
The City of Leon Valley’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 

financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.   

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City of Leon Valley’s ability to 

continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued, including any 

currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.   
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinions.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 

the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 

that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. 

 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

 

• Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures 

include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements.   

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of City of Leon Valley’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.  

• Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 

raise substantial doubt about City of Leon Valley’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 

reasonable period of time.   

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 

that we identified during the audit.  
 

Required Supplementary Information 

 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 

discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedules related to the City’s net pension 

and total other postemployment benefit liabilities – TMRS, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 

statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 

part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 

inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 

provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 

comprise the City of Leon Valley’ basic financial statements as a whole.  The comparative statements, 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements. 

 

The comparative financial statements, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 

other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 

records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 

other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America.  In our opinion, the combining, individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in 
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

 

Other Information 

 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information 

comprises the introductory section and statistical section but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements do not cover the other information, and 

we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency 

exists between the other information and the financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material 

misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.  

 

 
Armstrong, Vaughan & Associates, P.C. 

 

January 28, 2025 
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

As management of the City of Leon Valley, we offer readers of the City's financial statements this 

narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Leon Valley for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2024. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 

conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be 

found in the introductory section of this report. 
 

Financial Highlights 

 

• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Leon Valley exceeded its liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources by $40.3 million (net position) at the close of the most recent 

fiscal year.  Of this amount, $7.1 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City's 

operational needs.  

 

• The City's total net position increased by $3.3 million mainly due to decreased governmental 
revenues and decreased utility expenses. 

 

• The City’s OPEB and pension related deferred outflows totaled $2.5 million at year end, a 

decrease of $2.0 million in comparison with the prior year due to decreases in the contribution 
rates and experience rates.   

 

• The City’s OPEB and pension related deferred inflows totaled $359 thousand at year end, an 

increase of $264 thousand in comparison with the prior year due to a sharp increase in the 
investment earnings. The Pension Liability decreased by $2.5 million primarily as a result of 

increased net investment income.  

 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending 

fund balances of $15.1 million, an increase of $1.9 million in comparison with the prior year. In 
the General Fund, the City budgeted a deficiency of revenues under expenditures of $3.0 million.  

However, revenues were $616 thousand lower than budget mainly due to decrease in grant 

revenue by $2.0 million. The expenses were less than budgeted overall, mainly due to law 
enforcement administration budget exceeded total expenses by $395 thousand, fire and protection 

department budget exceeded by $404 thousand, public works department budget exceeded total 

expenses by $521 thousand, parks and creation department budget exceeded total expenses by $2.6 
million, and economic development department budget exceeded total expenses by $225 thousand. 

 

•  At the end of the fiscal year, the General Fund unassigned fund balances was $6.8 million which 

is 52.8% or 6.3 months of the general fund expenditures not including capital outlay. 

 

• During the fiscal year, the City made payments on bonds, decreasing outstanding debt by $495 
thousand, as of the end of the current year, the City had $6.2 million in bonds outstanding. 

 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as the introduction of the City of Leon Valley, Texas’ 

basic financial statements which are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial 
statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. 

 

Government-Wide Financial Statements – The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 

business financial presentation. 
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The statement of net position is a presentation of the City’s assets and liabilities, including capital and 

infrastructure assets, and long-term liabilities.  This statement reports the difference between assets and 

liabilities as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator 
of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

 

The statement of activities presents information regarding increases and decreases to the government’s net 
position for the fiscal year.  Changes in net position are recorded when the underlying event giving rise to 

the change occurs regardless of the timing of cash flows. 

 
Therefore, revenues and expenses reported in this statement for some items will only result in cash flows 

in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused personal leave). Both government-

wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all 

or a significant portion of their costs through user fees or charges (business-type activities). Governmental 

activities include general government, public safety, public works, parks and recreation, library, and 
community development. The business-type activities of the City are water and sewer.  

 

Fund Financial Statements – The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which 
is considered a separate accounting entity.  Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in 

individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending 

activities are controlled. 
 

Fund financial statements are used to present financial information detailing resources that have been 

identified for specific activities. The focus of the fund financial statements is on the City’s major funds, 
although non-major funds are also presented in aggregate and further detailed in the supplementary 

statements. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with requirements placed 

on resources. Funds are divided into three types: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. However, the 
City does not have any fiduciary funds. 

 

Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used for essentially the same functions reported in the 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-

wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and 

outflows of spendable resources available for current spending, as well as on balances of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a 

government’s near-term financing requirements. 

 
As the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 

useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 

governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the 

governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and 

changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities. 

 

Proprietary Funds – The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report 
the functions presented in business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City 

uses the enterprise fund to account for the provision of water and sewer services to residents. 
 

Proprietary fund financial statements provide separate and more detailed information for the water and 

sewer fund. The water and sewer fund is considered a major fund of the City. 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 

full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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Other Information – In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 

also presents certain required supplementary information on the City’s general fund budget, red light 

camera fund, and the street maintenance fund budget, which are adopted on an annual basis. A budgetary 
comparison statement has been provided for these funds in order to demonstrate budgetary compliance 

with this budget. 

 
In addition, this report also contains certain required supplementary information concerning the City of 

Leon Valley’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits and other post-employment 

benefits.  
 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connections with non-major governmental funds are 

presented immediately following the required supplementary information.  
 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

 
Below is a comparative summary of the governmental activities and business-type activities as required by 

GASB Statement No. 34. 

 
TABLE A-1 

NET POSITION 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Assets 

Current Assets 16,760,785$     15,590,790$     5,849,127$       5,185,023$       22,609,912$     20,775,813$     

Capital and Other Assets 20,850,137       21,524,429       10,841,003       10,299,777       31,691,140       31,824,206       

    Total Assets 37,610,922       37,115,219       16,690,130       15,484,800       54,301,052       52,600,019       

Deferred Outflows

  of Resources 2,416,138         4,592,195         100,122            37,827              2,516,260         4,630,022         

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 2,234,657         2,980,855         439,501            514,133            2,674,158         3,494,988         

Noncurrent Liabilities 11,215,846       14,175,676       2,257,046         2,410,346         13,472,892       16,586,022       

    Total Liabilities 13,450,503       17,156,531       2,696,547         2,924,479         16,147,050       20,081,010       

Deferred Inflows

  of Resources 358,210            105,286            14,374              4,312                372,584            109,598            

Net Position 

  Net Investment in

    Capital Assets 16,338,530       16,514,310       9,114,507         8,519,400         25,453,037       25,033,710       

 Restricted 5,956,937         5,151,887         1,776,950         2,011,865         7,733,887         7,163,752         

 Unrestricted 3,922,880         2,779,400         3,187,874         2,062,571         7,110,754         4,841,971         

    Total Net Position 26,218,347$     24,445,597$     14,079,331$     12,593,836$     40,297,678$     37,039,433$     

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

 
Deferred outflows of resources are related pensions and other post-employment benefits and represent a 
consumption of net position that applies to future period(s) and will not be recognized as an expenditure 

until then. Deferred inflows of resources are related to other post-employment benefits and represent an 

acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as revenue until that 
time. Additional information regarding the City’s deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources can 

be found in Notes 7 and 8 of this report.  

 

The largest portion of the City’s net position, $25.5 million, represents its investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, construction in progress, buildings, machinery, and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation), less 

any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding.  The City of Leon Valley, Texas 

uses these assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending.
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Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that 

the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 

themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 

Of the other net position, $7.7 million represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how 

they may be used. $7.1 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City’s operational 
needs. 

 

Governmental activities increased net position by $1.8 million, which is attributable to fluctuations in 
program revenues and expenses. The City’s total governmental revenues were $18.1 million, of which 

67.4% of the City’s revenue come from taxes compared to 55.6% in the prior year. A total of 25.1% of 

the revenues are from those who directly received the services. The overall revenue decreased from 
prior year by $4.1 million mainly due to decrease in grant revenue by $4.5 million. The total cost of all 

governmental programs and services was $17.4 million and charges for those services were $4.5 

million. The overall expenses increased from prior year by $558 thousand mainly due to an increase of 
$921, $168, and $162 thousand in the Public Works Department, Parks and Recreation Department, and 

Community Development Department, respectively. Table A-2 reports the summarized changes in net 

position. 
 

TABLE A-2 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION FOR GOVERNMENTAL AND BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

Revenues: 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Program Revenues:

  Charges for Services 4,541,199$       3,853,515$       5,362,842$       5,231,485$       9,904,041$       9,085,000$       

  Operating Grants and

    Contributions 77,902              53,503              -                        -                        77,902              53,503              

  Capital Grants and 

    Contributions 286,172            4,764,275         245,726            -                        531,898            4,764,275         

  General Revenues

    Property Taxes 6,189,180         6,038,893         -                        -                        6,189,180         6,038,893         

    Sales Taxes 5,010,542         5,061,764         -                        -                        5,010,542         5,061,764         

    Franchise Taxes 927,879            1,172,251         -                        -                        927,879            1,172,251         

    Occupancy Taxes 84,144              67,842              -                        -                        84,144              67,842              

    Investment Earnings 692,726            579,759            207,415            145,607            900,141            725,366            

    Miscellaneous 317,621            599,325            117,693            70,816              435,314            670,141            

      Total Revenues 18,127,365       22,191,127       5,933,676         5,447,908         24,061,041       27,639,035       

Expenses:

  Administration 2,146,911         2,361,242         -                        -                        2,146,911         2,361,242         

  Public Safety 9,239,567         9,760,863         -                        -                        9,239,567         9,760,863         

  Public Works 3,514,599         2,593,652         -                        -                        3,514,599         2,593,652         

  Parks and Recreation 517,986            349,505            -                        -                        517,986            349,505            

  Library 501,876            460,126            -                        -                        501,876            460,126            

  Information Technology Office 229,970            211,958            -                        -                        229,970            211,958            

  Community Development 1,187,852         1,024,951         -                        -                        1,187,852         1,024,951         

  Utility -                        -                        3,384,397         3,148,657         3,384,397         3,148,657         

  Interest 79,638              98,366              -                        -                        79,638              98,366              

      Total Expenses 17,418,399       16,860,663       3,384,397         3,148,657         20,802,796       20,009,320       

INCREASE IN NET POSITION

  BEFORE TRANSFERS 708,966            5,330,464         2,549,279         2,299,251         3,258,245         7,629,715         

Transfers In (Out) 1,063,784         (189,866)           (1,063,784)        189,866            -                        -                        

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,772,750         5,140,598         1,485,495         2,489,117         3,258,245         7,629,715         

BEGINNING NET POSITION 24,445,597       19,304,999       12,593,836       10,104,719       37,039,433       29,409,718       

ENDING NET POSITION 26,218,347$     24,445,597$     14,079,331$     12,593,836$     40,297,678$     37,039,433$     

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
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EXPENSES AND PROGRAM REVENUES –GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

TOTAL EXPENSES 2024-GOVERNMENT-WIDE 

 

Revenues-Governmental Activities 
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Business-Type Activities 

 

Business-Type activities increased net position by $1.5 million. For the most part, increases in overall 

revenue by $486 thousand mainly due to charges for services by $131 thousand, and capital grants 
increased by $245 thousand. In the current year, expenditures overall increased by $236 thousand mainly 

due to increase in repair and maintenance for a wastewater system and sewer mains located under an 

intersection. In prior year, we saw less expenses on maintenance of a water and sewer mains compared to 
current year. 
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

 

As noted earlier, the City of Leon Valley uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 

finance-related legal requirements. 

 
Governmental Funds - Activities of the primary government’s general fund, capital projects fund, special 

revenue funds and debt service funds are considered general government functions.  The general fund is 

the City’s general operating fund.  The capital projects fund is used to account for financial activity related 
to the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. Special revenue funds are used to account for 

proceeds of specific sources that are legally restricted as to expenditures.  The debt service funds are used 

to account for financial activity related to the City’s general bonded indebtedness, as well as long-term 
obligations.  

 

As September 30, 2024, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $15.1 
million, an increase of $1.9 million in comparison with fiscal year 2023.  The general fund which is the 

chief operating fund of the City, at the end of the current fiscal year, had a committed fund balance of $1 

million for man-made or natural disaster emergencies. 
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For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, the fund balance of the City’s general fund increased by 

$1.3 million. Key factors in the increase are as follows: 

 
• The City’s tax rate remained same for the 2023-2024 budget year toy 0.0484739 per hundred, but 

increased tax revenue by $14 thousand from the prior year due to increase in property value.  

• In the current year, investment earnings increased by $63 thousand due to higher interest rates and 
other miscellaneous revenue increased by $78 thousand compared to prior year. 

• Contracted services (legal) in the Council and Manager expenditures decreased to $315 thousand 

from the prior year, primarily due to decrease in attorney expenses. This decrease is largely 
attributed to fewer legal matters requiring external counsel and more efficient management of 

legal resources. 

• Contracted services in fire protection operations expenditures increased to $118 thousand from the 

prior year, although they are still within budget. Overall public safety department expenditures 
increased to $137 thousand from prior year due to increase in personnel costs. 

• Supplies in information technology expenditures decreased to $172 thousand from the prior year, 

is primarily attributed to the postponement of certain planned technology upgrades. Despite this 
reduction, the expenditures remain within the allocated budget for the period. 

 

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, the fund balance of the City’s Street Maintenance Tax Fund 
decreased by $69 thousand. The key factors in the decrease are as follows:  

 

• Public works repairs and maintenance expenditures were only $1.1 million compared to the $2.1 
million expected to spend.  Projects were delayed due to contracting and other miscellaneous 

issues.   

• Investment earnings were $79 thousand, $49 thousand more than budgeted due to higher interest 
rates.  

 

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, the fund balance of the City’s Red-Light Camera Fund 
decreased by $132 thousands.  The key factor in the decrease is due to overall law enforcement 

expenditures increased by $432 thousand compared to prior year particularly in personnel cost.  

 
The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $577 thousand, all of which is restricted for the payment 

of debt service.  The net increase in the fund balance during the current year in the debt service fund was 

$149 thousand. The key factor in the increase is due to property tax revenue increased by $134 thousand 
due to increase in property values. 

 

Proprietary Funds - The City's proprietary fund provided the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

 

Unrestricted net position of the water and sewer fund at the end of the year amounted to $3.2 million. The 
total increase in net position for the water and sewer fund was $1.5 million.  Most of this increase is due to 

a decrease in Water System and Sewer System repairs, maintenance and administrative expenses.  

 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Over the course of the year, the City revised its budget for a total increase in expenditures of $944 
thousand. The following are the main components of the increase: 

 

• $675 thousand for the continued work on the Hike & Bike Trail project. 
• $84 thousand for the repairs to Kinman House foundation and roof project. 

• $35 thousand for purchase of crack seal trailer. 

• $50 thousand for completion of the police impound lot project. 
• $40 thousand for purpose of increasing the city manager and council department budget to pay for 

the city’s portion of a street outreach person through Haven for Hope fund. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

 

Capital Assets - The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business- type activities 
as of September 30, 2024 amounted to $31.7 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in 

capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, and roads.  

The City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year decreased by $133 thousands from fiscal 
year 2023, mainly due to partially depreciated fire truck sold in the current year. 

 

TABLE A-3 
CAPITAL ASSETS 

(Net of Depreciation) 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Land 1,497,118$       1,497,118$       203,227$          203,227$          1,700,345$       1,700,345$       

Water Rights -                        -                        2,276,080         2,276,080         2,276,080         2,276,080         

Buildings 10,981,760       10,981,760       25,403              25,403              11,007,163       11,007,163       

Water/Wastewater 

   System - Plant -                        -                        11,011,786       11,011,786       11,011,786       11,011,786       

Transportation 

   and Equipment 8,522,336         9,327,677         -                        -                        8,522,336         9,327,677         

Infrastructure 17,961,835       17,758,301       1,686,521         1,673,639         19,648,356       19,431,940       

Construction in Progress 146,403            -                        3,081,355         2,157,225         3,227,758         2,157,225         

Accumulated Depreciation (18,259,315)      (18,040,427)      (7,443,369)        (7,047,585)        (25,702,684)      (25,088,012)      

    TOTALS 20,850,137$     21,524,429$     10,841,003$     10,299,775$     31,691,140$     31,824,204$     

Activities Activities Total

Governmental Business-Type

 
Additional information of the City of Leon Valley’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 of this report. 

 

Long-Term Debt - For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, the City had a total bonded debt 
outstanding of $6.2 million. 

 

TABLE A-4 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

General Obligation Refunding Bonds 4,511,607$      5,010,119$      -                       -                      4,511,607$     5,010,119$      

Certificates of Obligation -                       -                       1,726,496        1,780,377        1,726,496       1,780,377        

    TOTALS 4,511,607$      5,010,119$      1,726,496$      1,780,377$      6,238,103$     6,790,496$      

Activities Activities Total

Governmental Business-Type

 

Additional information of the City of Leon Valley’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6 of this report. 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES  

 

For fiscal year end 2025, the City took a very conservative approach to budgeting as they believe it best 
serves the citizens of the City during times of inflation and rising interest rates. An increase of $291 

thousand in property tax was budgeted, which is due to an increase in property value. Sales tax was 

budgeted with a decrease of $37 thousand and licenses, permits, fees and fines with an increase of $362 
thousand. Overall revenues were budgeted with an increase of $610 thousand with the tempering of 

inflation and the stagnation of interest rates. The city adopted a tax rate of $0.484739 which is the same 

as the fiscal year 2024 tax rate. The tax components are as follows: $0.440021 for Maintenance and 
Operations and $0.044718 for the Interest and Sinking.   

 

Expenditures for the general fund are budgeted at $18 million which includes, capital outlay of $2.9 
million.  The funding for the capital expenditures will come from the capital reserve funds and not the 

current year operating revenue.  

 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with 
an interest in the government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 

report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Finance Director, 6400 El Verde 

Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Current Assets:

  Cash and Cash Equivalents:

    Unrestricted 2,809,147$       1,109,702$       3,918,849$       

    Restricted for Customer Deposits -                        115,587            115,587            

  Investments

    Unrestricted 12,565,328       2,244,610         14,809,938       

    Restricted Investments - Water/Wastewater -                        1,776,950         1,776,950         

  Receivables (net of allowances): 

    Property Taxes 214,854            -                        214,854            

    Special Assessment 13,278              -                        13,278              

    Other 267,278            602,278            869,556            

  Due from Other Governments 886,017            -                        886,017            

  Inventories 4,883                -                        4,883                

    Total Current Assets 16,760,785       5,849,127         22,609,912       

Noncurrent Assets: 

  Capital Assets: 

    Land 1,497,118 203,227            1,700,345         

    Water Rights -                        2,276,080         2,276,080         

    Buildings 10,981,760 25,403              11,007,163       

    Water/Wastewater System-Plant -                        11,011,786       11,011,786       

    Other Machinery and Equipment 2,645,547 -                        2,645,547         

    Office Equipment 69,118 -                        69,118              

    Infrastructure 17,961,835 -                        17,961,835       

    Transportation and Equipment 5,807,671 1,686,521         7,494,192         

    Construction in Progress 146,403            3,081,355         3,227,758         

    Less: Accumulated Depreciation (18,259,315)      (7,443,369)        (25,702,684)      

      Total Noncurrent Assets: 20,850,137       10,841,003       31,691,140       

    TOTAL ASSETS 37,610,922       16,690,130       54,301,052       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

  Deferred Pension Related Outflows 2,402,295         99,545              2,501,840         

  Deferred OPEB Related Outflows 13,843 577                   14,420              

    TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

    OF RESOURCES 2,416,138$       100,122$          2,516,260$       

Primary Government
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

   Accounts Payable 830,855$          225,058$          1,055,913$       

   Accrued Expenses 339,053 20,310              359,363            

   Accrued Interest Payable 20,150              8,810                28,960              

   Current Portion of Compensated Absences 271,313            10,855              282,168            

   Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 508,161            58,881              567,042            

   Unearned Revenue 265,125 -                        265,125            

   Payable from Restricted Assets: 

     Customer Deposits Payable -                        115,587            115,587            

      Total Current Liabilities 2,234,657         439,501            2,674,158         

Noncurrent Liabilities:

   Compensated Absences 542,627 21,710              564,337            

   Net Pension Liability 6,187,350         548,617            6,735,967         

   Total OPEB Liability 482,423 19,104              501,527            

   Long-Term Debt 4,003,446         1,667,615         5,671,061         

    Total Noncurrent Liabilities 11,215,846       2,257,046         13,472,892       

TOTAL LIABILITIES 13,450,503       2,696,547         16,147,050       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

  Deferred Pension Related Inflows 285,240 11,334              296,574            

  Deferred OPEB Related Inflows 72,970              3,040                76,010              

    TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS

    OF RESOURCES 358,210            14,374              372,584            

NET POSITION

  Net Investment In Capital Assets 16,338,530       9,114,507         25,453,037       

  Restricted For:

     Public, Educational and Governmental 332,800            -                        332,800            

     Red Light Camera Traffic Safety 944,822            -                        944,822            

     Debt Service 590,159            -                        590,159            

     Street Maintenance 1,751,192         -                        1,751,192         

     Crime Control and Prevention District 738,579            -                        738,579            

     Public Safety 1,046,275         -                        1,046,275         

     Community Center/Parks 553,110            -                        553,110            

     Water Supply -                        775,053            775,053            

     Storm Water Fee -                        1,001,897         1,001,897         

  Unrestricted 3,922,880         3,187,874         7,110,754         

      TOTAL NET POSITION 26,218,347$     14,079,331$     40,297,678$     

Primary Government
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17 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 

Operating Capital

 Charges for Grants and Grants and

Functions and Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

  Administration 2,146,911$          539,725$             3,610$                 -$                         

  Public Safety 9,239,567            3,938,969            74,292                 -                           

  Public Works 3,514,599            -                           -                           -                           

  Information Technology Office 229,970               -                           -                           -                           

  Parks and Recreation 517,986               -                           -                           -                           

  Library 501,876               -                           -                           -                           

  Community Development 1,187,852            62,505                 -                           286,172               

  Interest 79,638                 -                           -                           -                           

      Total Governmental Activities 17,418,399          4,541,199            77,902                 286,172               

Business-Type Activities

  Water/Wastewater Utilities 3,384,397            5,362,842            -                           245,726               

      Total Business-Type Activities 3,384,397            5,362,842            -                           245,726               

      Total Primary Government 20,802,796$        9,904,041$          77,902$               531,898$             

General Revenues:

  Taxes:

    Property Taxes 

    Sales Taxes 

    Franchise Taxes 

    Occupancy Taxes 

  Investment Earnings 

  Miscellaneous 

      Total General Revenues

Transfers In (Out) 

    Change in Net Position

      

Net Position at Beginning of Year  

Net Position at End of Year

Program Revenues
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Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

(1,603,576)$         -$                         (1,603,576)$         

(5,226,306)           -                           (5,226,306)           

(3,514,599)           -                           (3,514,599)           

(229,970)              -                           (229,970)              

(517,986)              -                           (517,986)              

(501,876)              -                           (501,876)              

(839,175)              -                           (839,175)              

(79,638)                -                           (79,638)                

(12,513,126)         -                           (12,513,126)         

-                           2,224,171            2,224,171            

-                           2,224,171            2,224,171            

(12,513,126)         2,224,171            (10,288,955)         

6,189,180            -                           6,189,180            

5,010,542            -                           5,010,542            

927,879               -                           927,879               

84,144                 -                           84,144                 

692,726               207,415               900,141               

317,621 117,693               435,314               

13,222,092          325,108               13,547,200          

1,063,784            (1,063,784)           -                           

1,772,750            1,485,495            3,258,245            

   

24,445,597 12,593,836          37,039,433          

26,218,347$        14,079,331$        40,297,678$        

Primary Government

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 

Red Light Capital

General Camera Projects

Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 716,692$           532,093$           -$                       

Investments 8,683,810 906,782             -                         

Accounts Receivables (net of allowances):

  Taxes 195,034             -                         -                         

  Special Assessment -                         -                         -                         

  Other 242,030             -                         -                         

Due from Other Governments 666,327             -                         -                         

Inventories 4,883                 -                         -                         

      TOTAL ASSETS 10,508,776$      1,438,875$        -$                       

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

    RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

  Accounts Payable 260,349$           490,856$           -$                       

  Accrued Expenditures 287,533             3,197                 -                         

  Deposits Payable 7,066                 -                         -                         

  Unearned Revenues 265,125 -                         -                         

      Total Liabilities 820,073             494,053             -                         

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

  Unavailable Revenues - Taxes 195,034             -                         -                         

      Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 195,034             -                         -                         

Fund Balances:

  Nonspendable:

    Inventory 4,883                 -                         -                         

  Restricted for:

    Public, Educational and Governmental 332,800             -                         -                         

    Red Light Camera Traffic Safety -                         944,822             -                         

    Debt Service -                         -                         -                         

    Street Maintenance -                         -                         -                         

    Crime Control and Prevention District -                         -                         -                         

    Federal Police Forfeitures -                         -                         -                         

    Other 7,237                 -                         -                         

  Committed for Disaster Emergencies 1,000,000          -                         -                         

  Assigned for:

    Tree Mitigation and Replacement 391,475             -                         -                         

    Economic Development 925,274 -                         -                         

  Unassigned 6,832,000          -                         -                         

      Total Fund Balances 9,493,669          944,822             -                         

      TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 

        INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

        AND FUND BALANCES 10,508,776$      1,438,875$        -$                       
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Other 

Street Nonmajor Total

Debt Maintenance Governmental Governmental

Service Tax Fund Funds Funds

256,434$           103,889$           1,200,040$       2,809,148$       

320,146             1,575,905          1,078,685         12,565,328       

19,821               -                         -                        214,855            

13,278               -                         -                        13,278              

630                    -                         24,618              267,278            

-                         146,989             72,700              886,016            

-                         -                         -                        4,883                

610,309$           1,826,783$        2,376,043$       16,760,786$     

-$                       75,591$             4,059$              830,855$          

-                         -                         1,042                291,772            

-                         -                         40,215              47,281              

-                         -                         -                        265,125            

-                         75,591               45,316              1,435,033         

33,099               -                         -                        228,133            

33,099               -                         -                        228,133            

-                         -                         -                        4,883                

-                         -                         -                        332,800            

-                         -                         -                        944,822            

577,210             -                         -                        577,210            

-                         1,751,192          -                        1,751,192         

-                         -                         738,579            738,579            

-                         -                         1,046,275         1,046,275         

-                         -                         545,873            553,110            

-                         -                         -                        1,000,000         

-                         -                         -                        391,475            

-                         -                         -                        925,274            

-                         -                         -                        6,832,000         

577,210             1,751,192          2,330,727         15,097,620       

610,309$           1,826,783$        2,376,043$       16,760,786$     
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 
 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 15,097,620$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position

  are different because:

  Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

     and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 20,850,137        

  Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures

    and, therefore, are not recognized as revenue in the funds. 228,133             

  Accrued vacation leave payable is not due and payable in the current period

    and, therefore, is not reported in the funds. (813,941)            

  Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and related premiums, are not due

    and payable in the current period and therefore, not reported in the funds:

Bonds Payable (4,511,607)         

Accrued Interest Payable (20,150)              (4,531,757)         

  Net Pension Liabilities (and related deferred inflows and outflows of 

    resources) do not consume current financial resources are not

    reported in governmental funds:

Net Pension Liability (6,187,350)         

Pension Related Deferred Inflows (285,240)            

Pension Related Deferred Outflows 2,402,295          (4,070,295)         

  OPEB Liabilities (and related deferred inflows and outflows of 

    resources) do not consume current financial resources are not

    reported in governmental funds:

OPEB Liability (482,423)            

OPEB Related Deferred Inflows (72,970)              

OPEB Related Deferred Outflows 13,843 (541,550)            

TOTAL NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 26,218,347$      
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 
 

Red Light Capital

General Camera Projects

Fund Fund Fund

REVENUES

Property Taxes 5,464,437$        -$                       -$                       

Sales Taxes 3,767,901          -                         -                         

Franchise Taxes 927,879             -                         -                         

Occupancy Taxes -                         -                         -                         

Licenses and Permits 408,393             -                         -                         

EMS 362,826             -                         -                         

Fines and Forfeitures 543,032             2,304,356 -                         

Grants 360,713             -                         -                         

Lease Income 19,033               -                         -                         

Investment Earnings 499,597             40,892 -                         

Miscellaneous 618,852             -                         -                         

      TOTAL REVENUES 12,972,663        2,345,248          -                         

EXPENDITURES

Current:  

  Administration 1,850,903          -                         -                         

  Public Safety 6,741,505          1,701,390 -                         

  Public Works 2,142,331          -                         -                         

  Parks and Recreation 400,604             -                         -                         

  Library 481,803             -                         -                         

  Information Technology Office 315,819             -                         -                         

  Community Development 961,408             -                         -                         

Capital Outlay 369,126             433,625 -                         

Debt Service:

  Principal -                         -                         -                         

  Interest and Fiscal Charges -                         -                         -                         

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13,263,499        2,135,015          -                         

      Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

      Over (Under) Expenditures (290,836)            210,233             -                         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  

  Transfers In 1,942,084          -                         -                         

  Transfers Out  (393,466)            (342,558)            (138,228)            

      TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

      SOURCES (USES) 1,548,618          (342,558)            (138,228)            

      Net Change in Fund Balance 1,257,782          (132,325)            (138,228)            

       

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 8,235,887          1,077,147 138,228

Fund Balances at End of Year 9,493,669$        944,822$           -$                       
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Other

Street Nonmajor Total

Debt Maintenance Governmental Governmental

Service Tax Funds Funds

712,663 -$                       -$                       6,177,100$        

-                         830,759             411,883             5,010,543          

-                         -                         -                         927,879             

-                         -                         84,144               84,144               

-                         -                         -                         408,393             

-                         -                         -                         362,826             

-                         -                         729,459             3,576,847          

-                         -                         5,413                 366,126             

-                         -                         60,454               79,487               

16,588 78,877               55,334               691,288             

-                         -                         65,950               684,802             

729,251             909,636             1,412,637          18,369,435        

 

-                         -                         -                         1,850,903          

-                         -                         250,275             8,693,170          

-                         1,055,435          -                         3,197,766          

-                         -                         -                         400,604             

-                         -                         -                         481,803             

-                         -                         -                         315,819             

-                         -                         134,944             1,096,352          

-                         -                         126,807             929,558             

445,000 -                         -                         445,000             

135,375 -                         -                         135,375             

580,375             1,055,435          512,026             17,546,350        

148,876             (145,799)            900,611             823,085             

  

-                         76,603               -                         2,018,687          

-                         -                         (80,651)              (954,903)            

-                         76,603               (80,651)              1,063,784          

148,876             (69,196)              819,960             1,886,869          

  

428,334 1,820,388          1,510,767          13,210,751        

577,210$           1,751,192$        2,330,727$        15,097,620$      
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 1,886,869$          

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities

  are different because:

  Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement

    of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and

    reported as depreciation expense.  

Capital Outlay 726,075                

Depreciation Expense (1,146,217)            (420,142)              

 Proceeds from capital assets dispositions produce current financial resources

    in the fund statements, while the net gain (loss) is recognized in the Statement

    of Activities. This is the net book value of capital assets disposed. (254,151)              

  Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources

    are not reported as revenues in the funds. 12,083                 

 

  The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources

    to governmental funds, which the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes

    the current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has

    any affect on net position.  This amount is the net effect of these differences in the

    treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Principal Repayments 445,000                

Amortization of Premiums, Discounts, Losses 53,512                  498,512               

  Governmental funds report required contributions to employee pensions 

    as expenditures.  However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of 

    the pension is recorded based on the actuarially determined cost of the

    plan.  This is the amount that actuarially determined pension

    expense exceeded contributions. (18,107)                

  Governmental funds report required contributions to OPEB as expenditures. 

    However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of the expense is recorded

     based on the actuarially determined cost of the plan. This is the amount 

    that actuarially determined OPEB expense exceeded contributions. (8,539)                  

    

  Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of

    current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

    governmental funds:

Compensated Absences 74,002                  

Accrued Interest 2,223                    76,225                 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 1,772,750$          
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

Business-Type

Activity

Water and 

Sewer

ASSETS

Current Assets:

 Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

    Unrestricted 1,109,702$        

    Restricted for Customer Deposits 115,587

  Restricted Investments - Water/Sewer 1,776,950          

  Unrestricted Investments - Water/Sewer 2,244,610          

  Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance:

    Customer Accounts 602,278             

      Total Current Assets 5,849,127          

Nonurrent Assets:

  Capital Assets:

     Land 203,227             

     Water Rights 2,276,080          

     Buildings and Improvements 25,403               

     Water/Wastewater System-Plant 11,011,786        

     Transportation and Equipment 1,686,521          

      Construction in Progress 3,081,355

     Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (7,443,369)         

      Total Noncurrent Assets 10,841,003        

      TOTAL ASSETS 16,690,130        

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

  Deferred Pension Related Outflows 99,545

  Deferred OPEB Related Outflows 577

      TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 100,122$           
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

Business-Type

Activity

Water and 

Sewer

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

  Accounts Payable 225,058$         

  Accrued Expenses 20,310             

  Accrued Interest Payable 8,810               

  Current Portion of Compensated Absences 10,855             

  Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 58,881             

  Payable from Restricted Assets: 

    Customer Deposits Payable 115,587           

      Total Current Liabilities 439,501           

Noncurrent Liabilities:

  Compensated Absences 21,710             

  Net Pension Liability 548,617           

  Total OPEB Liability 19,104

  Long-Term Debt 1,667,615        

      Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,257,046        

      TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,696,547        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

  Deferred Pension  Related Inflows 11,334

  Deferred OPEB  Related Inflows 3,040               

      TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS

      OF RESOURCES 14,374             

NET POSITION

  Net Investment in Capital Assets 9,114,507        

  Restricted for:

    Water Supply Fee 775,053           

    Storm Water Fee  1,001,897        

  Unrestricted 3,187,874        

      TOTAL NET POSITION 14,079,331$    
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 
 

Business-Type

Activities

Water and 

Sewer

OPERATING REVENUES

  Metered Water Sales 1,692,773$         

  Wastewater Sales Charges 8,838                  

  Storm Water Fees 3,177,848           

  Connection and Platting 311,320              

  Customer Penalties 55,998                

  Customer Disconnect Fees 7,350                  

  Tap Fees 36,833                

  Impact Fees 71,882

      TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 5,362,842           

OPERATING EXPENSES

  Water System 828,557              

  Wastewater System 1,896,997           

  Stormwater System 211,993              

  Depreciation 395,785              

      TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,333,332           

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 2,029,510           

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

  Grants and Contributions 245,726

  Investment Earnings 207,415              

  Interest Expense (51,065)              

  Miscellaneous 117,693              

      TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 519,769              
      

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 2,549,279           

TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 

Transfers In 316,863

Transfers Out (1,380,647)         

      TOTAL TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS (1,063,784)         
     

      CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,485,495           

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 12,593,836         

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR 14,079,331$       
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

Business-Type

Activities 

Water and 

Sewer

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

  Cash Received From Customers 5,318,752$        

  Cash Paid to Supplier for Goods & Services (2,598,464)         

  Cash Paid for Employee Salaries and Benefits (563,393)            

      Net Cash Provided (Used) by

        Operating Activities 2,156,895          

 

Cash Flows From Non Capital and Related

  Financing Activities:

  Miscellaneous Non Capital 117,695             

  Grants and Contributions 245,726             

      Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non Capital

        Financing Activities 363,421             

Cash Flows From Capital and Related

  Financing Activities:

  Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (937,013)            

  Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt (51,482)              

  Transfers from Other Funds for Projects 316,863             

  Transfers to Other Funds for Projects (1,380,647)         

  Principal Paid on Long-Term Debt (53,881)              

      Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and

        Related Financing Activities (2,106,160)         

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

  Purchase of Investments  (307,415)            

  Interest and Investment Earnings 207,415             

      Net Cash Provided (Used) by 

        Investing Activities (100,000)            

      Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

        and Cash Equivalents 314,156             

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year:

  Cash and Cash Equivalents 793,989

  Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 117,144

911,133             

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year:

  Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,109,702

  Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 115,587

1,225,289$        

 

49

{Section}.32.



 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

29 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

Business-Type

Activity

Water and 

Sewer

Reconciliation of Operating Income  

  to Net Cash Provided (Used) by

  Operating Activities:

    Operating Income 2,029,510$      

      Adjustments to Reconcile Operating

        Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided

        (Used) by Operating Activities:

          Depreciation 395,785           

          Decrease (Increase) in Assets:

            Accounts Receivable (net) (42,533)           

            Deferred Pension Related Outflows (62,372)           

            Deferred OPEB Related Outflows 77                    

          Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:

            Accounts Payable (93,856)           

            Accrued Expenses 15,503             

            Customer Deposits (1,557)             

            Compensated Absences 2,086               

            Net Pension Liability (96,671)           

            OPEB Liability 861                  

            Deferred Pension Related Inflows 11,334             

            Deferred OPEB Related Inflows (1,272)             

Net Cash Provided (Used) by

Operating Activities 2,156,895$      
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
The City of Leon Valley, Texas, was incorporated in 1952. The City operates under a council- manager form 

of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: police and fire protection, 

maintenance of streets, planning and zoning, parks and recreation, general administrative services, water, and 
sewer services. 

 

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 

principles. Proprietary type funds apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations and APB Opinions. The more 

significant of the City's accounting policies are described below: 

 
A. Reporting Entity 

 

In evaluating how to define the government, for financial purposes, management has considered all 
potential component units and associated component units.  The decision to include a potential 

component unit or associated component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set 

forth in GASB Statement 14, The Financial Reporting Entity and GASB Statement 39 Determining 
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units.  The definition of the reporting entity is based 

primarily on the concept of financial accountability. A primary government is financially accountable for 

the organizations that make up its legal entity.  It is also financially accountable for legally separate 
organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of an organization's governing body and either it is 

able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific 

financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. Based upon the 
application of these criteria, the City has no component units.  

 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and statement of 

activities. Government-wide statements report information on all of the activities of the City.  The effect 
of interfund transfers has been removed from the government-wide statements but continues to be 

reflected on the fund statements.  The values of interfund services provided and used are not eliminated 

in the government-wide financial statements, as elimination of those charges would distort the direct 
costs reported for the various functions.  Governmental activities are supported mainly by taxes and 

intergovernmental revenues.  Business-type activities are financed whole or in part by fees charged to 

external parties for goods and services.  The City has no fiduciary funds. 
 

The statement of activities reflects the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment 

is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program 

revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program 
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, 

services, or privileges provided by a given function and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 

meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other 
items not properly included in program revenues are reported as general revenues. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

 

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  The 
general fund and capital projects fund meet the criteria as major governmental funds.  The combined 

amounts for all nonmajor funds are reflected in a single column in the fund balance sheet and statement 

of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. Detailed statements for nonmajor funds are 
presented within combining and individual fund statements and schedules. 

 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 

and the accrual basis of accounting.  This measurement focus is also used for the proprietary fund 
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 

incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash revenue types, which have been accrued, revenue from 

the investments, intergovernmental revenue and charges for services.  Grants are recognized as revenue 
when all applicable eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met. 

 

Revenues are classified as program revenues and general revenues. Program revenues include (1) charges 
to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and 

contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions. General revenues include all taxes, grants not 

restricted to specific programs and investment earnings. 
 

Governmental fund level financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 

measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they 
are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within 

the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  Measurable and 

available revenues include revenues expected to be received within 60 days after the fiscal year ends. 
Receivables which are measurable but not collectible within 60 days after the end of the fiscal period are 

reported as deferred inflow of resources. Property taxes which are levied prior to September 30, 2023, 

and became due October 1, 2023 have been assessed to finance the budget of the fiscal year beginning 
October 1, 2023 and, accordingly, have been reflected as deferred inflow of resources and taxes 

receivable in the fund financial statement at September 30, 2024. 

 
Sales taxes, franchise taxes, hotel/motel taxes, and fees associated with the current fiscal year are 

considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenue in the current fiscal 

period.  All other revenue items received by the government are considered to be measurable and 
available only when the cash is received by the City. 

 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a fund liability is incurred; however, debt service expenditures, 
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only 

when the liability has matured and payment is due. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued) 

 

The government reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

General Fund is the general operating fund of the City and is always classified as a major fund.  The 

general fund is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. Major revenue sources include property taxes, charges for services, intergovernmental 

revenues and investment of idle funds. Primary expenditures are for general administration, public 

safety, public service and capital acquisition. 
 

Red Light Camera Fund accounts for financial resources garnered through red light camera traffic 

enforcement. 
 

Capital Projects Fund accounts for financial resources used and expended for the procurement and 

construction of long lived assets. 
 

Debt Service Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the payment of long term debt.  

 
Street Maintenance Tax Fund accounts for sales tax collection for street maintenance.  This special tax 

was approved by voters starting in November 2007. 

 
Nonmajor funds include special revenue funds. 

 

Proprietary fund level financial statements are used to account for activities, which are similar to those 
found in the private sector.  The measurement focus is upon determination of net income, financial 

position and cash flows.  The City’s proprietary fund is the water/sewer fund (used to account for the 

provisions of water and sewer services to residents). 
 

The proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting as follows: 

 
• Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when liabilities are incurred. 

• Current-year contributions, administrative expenses and benefit payments, which are not received or 

paid until the subsequent year, are accrued. 
 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating.  Operating revenues 

and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection 
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. 

 

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the enterprise fund (water and sewer fund) considers all 

highly liquid investments including cash in banks, cash on hand, and money market accounts to be cash 
equivalents. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
E. Investments 

 

State statutes authorize the City to invest in (a) obligations of the United States or its agencies and 
instrumentalities; (b) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies; (c) other obligations, the 

principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas or the 

United States; (d) obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any 
state having been rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm and 

having received a rating of not less than A or its equivalent; (e) certificates of deposit by state and 

national banks domiciled in this state that are (i) guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation, or its successor; or, (ii) secured by obligations that are described by (a) - (d). Statutes allow 

investing in local government investment pools organized and rated in accordance with the Interlocal 

Cooperation Act, whose assets consist exclusively of the obligations of the United States or its agencies 
and instrumentalities and repurchase assessments involving those same obligations. 

 

Investments are stated at fair value (plus accrued interest) except for money market investments and 
participating interest-earning investment contracts (U.S. Treasuries) that have a remaining maturity at 

time of purchase of one year or less. Those investments are stated at amortized cost. Likewise, 

certificates of deposit are stated at amortized cost. 
 

The City’s general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating interest-

earning investment contracts as amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest-earning investment 
contracts using a cost-based measure.  However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected 

by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value.  All 

other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists which guarantees a higher value.  
The term “short-term” refers to investments which have a remaining term of one year or less at time of 

purchase.  The term “nonparticipating” means that the investment’s value does not vary with market 

interest rate changes.  Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating interest-
earning investment contracts. 

 

Public funds investment pools in Texas are established under the authority of the Interlocal Cooperation 
Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and are subject to the provisions of the Public Funds 

Investments Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
In addition to other provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and safety of principal, the Act 

requires pools to: (1) have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool and other persons who 

do not have a business relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise the pool; (2) maintain a 
continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAA-m or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally 

recognized rating service; and (3) maintain the net asset value of its underlying investment portfolio 

within one half of one percent of the value of its shares. 
 

Fair Value Measurement is measured by the City using the fair value hierarchy established by generally 

accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair 
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in the active markets for identical assets; Level 2 

inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
F. Receivables  

 

Property taxes are levied based on taxable value at January 1 prior to September 30 and become due 
October 1, 2023 and past due after January 31, 2024.  Accordingly, receivables and revenues for property 

taxes are reflected on the government-wide statement based on the full accrual method of accounting. 

 
Accounts receivable from other governments include amounts due from grantors for approved grants for 

specific programs and reimbursements for services performed by the City. Program grants are recorded 

as receivables and revenues at the time all eligibility requirements established by the provider have been 
met. 

 

Reimbursements for services performed are recorded as receivables and revenues when they are earned in 
the government-wide statements. Included are fines and costs assessed by the court action and billable 

services for certain contracts.  Revenues received in advance of the costs being incurred are recorded as 

deferred inflows of resources in the fund statements.  Receivables are shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectible. 

 

G. Short-Term Inter-fund Receivables/Payables 
 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods 

provided or services rendered.  These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other funds" 
or “due to other funds” on fund statements. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental 

activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as 

“internal balances”. 
 

H. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

 
The City accounts for inventories using the consumption method. Inventories consist primarily of 

supplies and are valued at cost determined by the average cost method.  Certain payments to vendors 

reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both 
government-wide and fund financial statements.  Prepaid Items of governmental funds are recorded as 

expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

 
I. Budget 

 

An operating budget is adopted each fiscal year for all City governmental funds.  The budget is adopted 
on the GAAP basis of accounting. 

 

J.  Restricted Assets 
 

Certain proprietary fund revenues are collected for a specific purpose by state law and city ordinances 

such as impact fees for infrastructure improvements and the purchase of future water rights.  These funds 
are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position and balance sheet because their use is 

limited by law. 

 
Deposits of water/sewer customers and performance bond deposits pending refund to the customer are 

considered restricted assets.  
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 
 

 

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

K. Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, equipment, and infrastructure assets are 

reported in the applicable governmental or business type activities column in the government-wide 

financial statements.  Capital assets such as equipment are defined as assets with a cost of $5,000 or 
more. Infrastructure assets include city-owned streets, sidewalks, curbs and bridges.  Capital assets are 

recorded at historical costs if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets, donated works of art and 

capital assets received in a service concession arrangement are recorded at estimated acquisition value at 
the date of donation. 

 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized.  Interest has not been capitalized during the construction period on 

property plant and equipment. 

 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Useful Lives

Asset (Years)

Buildings 60

Water/Wastewater System - Plant 15 - 60

Other Machinery & Equipment 3 - 60

Office Equipment 6 - 12

Vehicles 3 - 24

Infrastructure 12 - 60  
 

L. Compensated Absences 
 

 Vested or accumulated vacation leave and compensatory time that is expected to be liquidated with 

expendable available resources is reported as an expenditure and fund liability of the governmental fund 
that will pay for it. The City is responsible for payment of vested or accumulated vacation leave and 

compensatory time. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave and compensatory time that are 

not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported in the 
government wide statements.  Vested or accumulated vacation leave and compensatory time of the 

enterprise fund is recorded as an expense and liability of that fund as the benefits accrue to employees.  

Accumulated vacation pay and compensatory time at September 30, 2024 of $813,940 and $32,675 have 
been recorded in accrued liabilities of the government-wide statements and proprietary fund, 

respectively.  Compensated absences are reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured 

(i.e., unused reimbursable leave outstanding following an employee’s resignation or retirement).  The 
general fund is the governmental fund that has typically been used in prior years to liquidate the liability 

for compensated absences. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
M. Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources 

 

 In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 

represents a consumption of net assets that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 

outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City currently has pension and OPEB related 
deferred outflows of resources. 

 

 Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period and so 
will not be recognized as an inflow of resource (revenue) until that time. Unavailable revenue is reported 

only in the governmental funds balance sheet under a modified basis of accounting. Unavailable 

revenues from property tax are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period the 
amounts become available. The City also has OPEB related deferred inflows.  

 

N. Pensions 
 

 For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 

of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of 
the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deduction from TMRS’s Fiduciary 

Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS.  For this purpose, 

plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is 
when contributions are legally due.  Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and 

payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. The general fund 

has typically been used in prior years to liquidate pension liabilities.  
 

O. OPEB Liability 

 
 For purposes of measuring the OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions, and OPEB expense, information about the Total OPEB Liability of the 
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deduction from TMRS’s Total OPEB 

Liability have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS.  For this purpose, plan 

contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when 
contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in 

accordance with the benefit terms.  The general fund has typically been used in the prior year to liquidate 

OPEB liabilities. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 
 

 

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
P. Long-Term Obligations 

 

 Debt is defined as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may 
be used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the 

contractual obligation is established.  For this purpose, debt does not include leases, except for contracts 

reported as a financed purchase of the underlying asset, or accounts payable.  In the current year, the City 
adopted a new GASB standard that establishes new note disclosure requirements for long-term debt, 

including direct borrowings and placement. See additional detail in Note 6. 

 
 In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported 

as liabilities under governmental activities or proprietary fund type statement of net position.  On new 

bond issues, bond premium and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the term of the 
related debt.  

 

 In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts 
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. 

Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 

issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual 
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

 

Q. Net Position 
 

 Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities.  Net investment in capital assets 

consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets, and adding back 

unspent proceeds.  Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use 

either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by 
creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.  The City has elected to appropriate net 

position of its business type activity. Such appropriations reflect the intended use of the net position. 
 

R. Fund Balance Classification Policies 

 
The City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 54 (GASB 54) Fund 

Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.  The statement provides guidance for fund 

balance categories and classifications and governmental fund type definitions. GASB 54 changed the 
way we look at fund balances, specifically reporting what fund balances, by major governmental fund 

type, are or are not available for public purposes.  
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 1 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 
R. Fund Balance Classification Policies (Continued) 

 

Five categories of fund balances were created and defined by GASB 54. These five categories are as 
follows: 

 

• Restricted – These funds are governed by externally enforceable restrictions.  
 

• Non-spendable – These funds are not available for expenditures based on legal or contractual 

requirements. An example might be inventories and prepaid expenditures.  
 

• Committed - Fund balances in this category are limited by the government’s highest level of 

decision making (in this case the City Council). Any changes of this designation must be done in the 
same manner that it was implemented. For example, if funds are committed by resolution, the 

commitment could only be released with another resolution.  

 
• Assigned – For funds to be assigned, there must be an intended use which can be established by the 

City Council or an official delegated by the Council, such as a City Manager or Finance Director. 

Assigned fund balance is delegated by the City Council to the City Manager.  
 

• Unassigned - This classification is the default for all funds that do not fit into the other categories.  

The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive fund balance amount.  However, in 
governmental funds other than the general fund, if expenditures incurred for a specific purposes, it 

may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance in that particular fund. 

 
Restricted amounts are considered to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for 

which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available. The City’s policy is to apply 

expenditures against non-spendable fund balance, restricted fund balance, committed fund balance, 
assigned fund balance and unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year. 

 

S. Inter-fund Transactions 
 

 Legally authorized transfers are treated as inter-fund transfers and are included in the results of 

operations of both governmental and proprietary funds. 
 

T. Operating Revenues and Expenses 

 
 Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the 

enterprise.  For the City, those revenues are charges for water and sewer services.  Operating expenses 
are necessary costs incurred to provide the service that is the primary activity. Revenues and expenses 

not meeting these definitions are reported as non-operating. 

 
U. Use of Estimates 

 

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 
 

 

NOTE 2 -- CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

 
A. Cash 

 

At September 30, 2024, the City's cash was fully collateralized. 
 

B. Investments 

 
The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act, to adopt, 

implement, and publicize an investment policy.  That policy must address the following areas: (1) safety 

of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable risk 
levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7) 

maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date of the portfolio, 

(8) investment staff quality and capabilities, and (9) bid solicitation preferences for certificates of 
deposits. 

 

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the City.  These include, with 
certain restrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas, (2) 

certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) securities lending program, (5) repurchase 

agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual funds, (8) investments pools, (9) guaranteed investment 
contracts, and (10) commercial paper. 

 

 The City’s investments at September 30, 2024 are as shown below: 
 

Weighted 

Average

Net Asset Maturity

Investment Type Value in Days MOODY'S S&P

TexPool 16,586,888$        31 Aaa AAAM

Ratings
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 2 -- CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)  

 
C. Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks 

 

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the City was exposed to the following 
specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures: 

 

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations.  The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give an 

indication of credit risk. City investment policy follows state guidelines. The City policy allows 

investments in certificates of deposit with banks in Texas, investments in U.S. Treasuries and Agencies, 
and investment pools that invest in obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities 

to name a few. 

 
At September 30, 2024, the City's investments were in TexPool, a public funds investment pool where all 

securities held maintain a continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAAm or an equivalent rating by 

at least one nationally recognized rating service. 
 

Custodial Credit Risk. Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository 

insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust 

department or agent but not in the City’s name. 
 

At year end and per City policy all funds were in the City's name and collateralized with securities that 
maintain a continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAA-m or an equivalent rating by at least one 

nationally recognized rating service.  The City was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk. This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s 

investment in a single issuer.  All City funds are in the external investment pool as allowed by the City’s 

investment policy, and the investment pool invests in hundreds of authorized securities that minimize 
concentrations of credit risk. At year end, the City was not exposed to concentration of credit risk. 

 
Interest Rate Risk. This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 

investment.  At year end, the City was not exposed to interest rate risk due to investment in an external 

investment pool as authorized by the City’s investment policy. 
 

Foreign Currency Risk. This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 

investment.  The City’s policy does not allow investment in foreign currency.  At year end the City was 
not exposed to foreign currency risk. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 3 -- RECEIVABLES 

 
A. Special Assessments 

 

The City levied special assessments in 1986 against various property owners benefiting from public 
improvements completed in 1987. In accordance with the provisions of the assessment certificates issued 

for the property owners, assessments are due and payable at the time of completion. All assessments 

receivable as of September 30, 2012, are considered delinquent. These public improvements were funded 
through a note payable at the City’s depository bank. Collections from assessment accounts were 

insufficient to cover the required note payments and therefore, the City’s general fund paid the note in 

full through a transfer. Accordingly, current and future principal and interest collections on these 
delinquent accounts will be used to reimburse the City's general fund. The related assessments 

receivable, revenues, deferred revenue, and debt payments are reported in the debt service fund. 
 

B. Receivables 

 
Receivables consist of the following as of September 30, 2024: 

 

Proprietary

Fund

Street

Debt Maintenance Nonmajor Water and

General Service Tax Funds Sewer Fund

Receivables:

   Property Taxes 229,451$        23,318$          -$                  -$                   -$                   

   Special Assessment -                     13,278 -                    -                     -                     

   EMS 671,189          -                     -                    -                     -                     

   Sales Taxes 666,327 -                     146,989 72,700 -                     

   Franchise Taxes 190,201 -                     -                    -                     -                     

   Occupancy Taxes -                     -                     -                    24,618 -                     

   Customers -                     -                     -                    -                     611,393

   Other 51,830 630                 -                    -                     -                     

Gross Receivables 1,808,998       37,226            146,989        97,318           611,393         

Less:  Allowance for 

   Uncollectibles (705,607)        (3,497) -                    -                     (9,115)

Net Total Receivables 1,103,391$     33,729$          146,989$      97,318$         602,278$       

Governmental Funds
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 
 

 

NOTE 4 -- PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR 

 
The City’s property tax is levied and becomes collectible each October 1 based on the assessed values listed 

as of prior January 1, which is the date a lien attaches to all taxable property in the City. Assessed values are 

established by the Bexar County Appraisal District at 100% of estimated market value. Assessed values are 
reduced by lawful exemptions to arrive at taxable values. A revaluation of all property is required to be 

completed every four (4) years.  The total taxable value as of January 1, 2023, upon which the fiscal 2024 

levy was based, was $1,173,831,267 (market value less exemptions). 
 

The City is permitted by the Constitution of the State of Texas to levy taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of taxable 

assessed valuation for all governmental purposes.  Pursuant to a decision of the Attorney General of the State 
of Texas, up to $1.50 per $100 of assessed valuation may be used for the payment of long-term debt. The 

combined tax rate to finance general governmental services, including the payment of principal and interest 
on long-term debt, for the year ended September 30, 2024 was $0.484739 per $100 of assessed value, which 

means that the City has a tax margin of $0.006338 for each $100 value.  

 

Property taxes are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows of resources at the time the taxes are 
assessed.  In governmental funds, revenues are recognized as the related ad valorem taxes are collected. 

Additional amounts estimated to be collectible in the time to be a resource for payment of obligations 

incurred during the fiscal year and therefore susceptible to accrual in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles have been recognized as revenue.  In the government wide financial statements, the 

entire levy is recognized as revenue, net of estimated uncollectible amounts (if any), at the levy date. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 5 -- CAPITAL ASSETS 

 
Governmental and Business-type capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2024 was as follows: 

Beginning Deletions & Ending

Balance Additions Transfers Balance

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:

  Land 1,497,118$         -$                      -$                       1,497,118$         

  Construction in Progress -                          349,937            (203,534)            146,403              

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 1,497,118           349,937            (203,534)            1,643,521           

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

  Buildings 10,981,760         -                        -                         10,981,760         

  Other Machinery and Equipment 2,468,523           177,024            -                         2,645,547           

  Office Equipment 69,118                -                        -                         69,118                

  Vehicles 6,790,036           199,114            (1,181,479)         5,807,671           

  Infrastructure 17,758,301         -                        203,534             17,961,835         

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 38,067,738         376,138            (977,945)            37,465,931         

Accumulated Depreciation:

  Buildings (3,238,061)          (198,054)           -                         (3,436,115)          

  Other Machinery and Equipment (2,132,809)          (175,302)           -                         (2,308,111)          

  Office Equipment (31,309)               (2,572)               -                         (33,881)               

  Vehicles (3,427,771)          (388,803)           927,329             (2,889,245)          

  Infrastructure (9,210,477)          (381,486)           -                         (9,591,963)          

Total Accumulated Depreciation (18,040,427)        (1,146,217)        927,329             (18,259,315)        

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 20,027,311         (770,079)           (50,616)              19,206,616         

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net 21,524,429$       (420,142)$         (254,150)$          20,850,137$       
 

 

Beginning Deletions & Ending

Balance Additions Transfers Balance

Business-Type Activities:

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:

  Land 203,227$            -$                      -$                       203,227$            

  Water Rights 2,276,080 -                        -                         2,276,080           

  Construction in Progress 2,157,225           924,130            -                         3,081,355           

Total Assets Not Being Depreciated 4,636,532           924,130            -                         5,560,662           

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

  Buildings and Improvements 25,403 -                        -                         25,403                

  Water/Wastewater System - Plant 11,011,786 -                        -                         11,011,786         

  Transportation and Equipment 1,673,639 12,883              -                         1,686,522           

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 12,710,828         12,883              -                         12,723,711         

Accumulated Depreciation:

  Buildings and Improvements (22,805)               (410)                  -                         (23,215)               

  Water/Wastewater System - Plant (5,806,460)          (211,482)           -                         (6,017,942)          

  Transportation and Equipment (1,218,320)          (183,893)           -                         (1,402,213)          

Total Accumulated Depreciation (7,047,585)          (395,785)           -                         (7,443,370)          

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 5,663,243           (382,902)           -                         5,280,341           

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net 10,299,775$       541,228$          -$                       10,841,003$       
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 5 -- CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

 
Depreciation expense was charged to the governmental functions as follows: 

Governmental Activities:

  Administration 185,766$          

  Public Safety 446,532

  Public Works 297,894            

  Parks and Recreation 116,881            

  Community Development 79,071              

  Library 20,073              

      Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 1,146,217$       

 

Business-Type Activities:

  Water and Sewer System 395,785$          

      Total Depreciation Expense - Business Type Activities 395,785$          

 
NOTE 6 -- LONG-TERM DEBT 

 
Long-term debt and obligations payable at September 30, 2024 were comprised of the following individual 

issues: 

 

Issue Amount Maturity Rate Balance

Primary Government

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Refunding  Bonds

  2021 Series 4,475,000$           2032 1.25-3.25% 4,030,000$        

      Total Governmental Long-Term Obligations 4,030,000$        

Issue Amount Maturity Rate Balance

Business Type:

Certificates of Obligation

  2016 Series 1,695,000$           2046 4.01% 1,645,000$        

      Total Business-Type Long-Term Obligations 1,645,000$        
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 6 -- LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

 
Balance Balance Due Within

9/30/2023 Additions Reductions 9/30/2024 One Year

Governmental Activities:

  General Obligation Bonds 4,475,000$       -$                      (445,000)$          4,030,000$       460,000$        

  Unamortized Premium 535,119            -                        (53,512)              481,607            48,161            

  Net Pension Liability 8,628,478         -                        (2,441,128)         6,187,350         -                     

  Net OPEB Liability 443,630            38,793              -                         482,423            -                     

  Compensated Absences 887,942            251,575            (325,577)            813,940            271,313          

  Total Governmental Activities 14,970,169$     290,368$          (3,265,217)$       11,995,320$     779,474$        

Business-Type Activities:

  Certificates of Obligation 1,695,000$       -$                      (50,000)$            1,645,000$       55,000$          

   Unamortized Premium 85,377              -                        (3,881)                81,496              3,881              

  Net Pension Liability 645,288            -                        (96,671)              548,617            -                     

  Net OPEB Liability 18,243              861                   -                         19,104              -                     

  Compensated Absences 30,479              32,565              (30,479)              32,565              10,855            

Total Business-Type Activities 2,474,387$       33,426$            (181,031)$          2,326,782$       69,736$          

 
Compensated absences, net pension liability and other postemployment benefit obligations for governmental 
activities are generally liquidated by the general fund. 

 

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt and obligations outstanding, excluding compensated 
absences and bond premium, as of September 30, 2024, including interest payments, are as follows: 

 

Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total

2025 460,000$          120,900$          580,900$          

2026 470,000            107,100            577,100            

2027 485,000            93,000              578,000            

2028 500,000            78,450              578,450            

2029 515,000            63,450              578,450            

2030-2032 1,600,000         96,750              1,696,750         

Total 4,030,000$       559,650$          4,589,650$       

Governmental Activities

Bonds

Year Ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total

2025 55,000$            52,862$            107,862$          

2026 55,000              51,075              106,075            

2027 55,000              49,288              104,288            

2028 60,000              47,500              107,500            

2029 60,000              45,550              105,550            

230-2034 330,000            197,363            527,363            

2035-2039 380,000            140,488            520,488            

2040-2044 450,000            74,694              524,694            

2045-2046 200,000            9,375                209,375            

Total 1,645,000$       668,195$          2,313,195$       

Business-Type Activities

Certificates of Obligation
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 
 

 

NOTE 7 -- PENSION PLAN 
 

Texas Municipal Retirement System  

 
A. Plan Description 

 

The City participates as one of 928 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit 
pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency 

created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, 

Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for 
municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and 

management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees.  Although the Governor, with the 

advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of 
Texas.  TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Internal 

Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) that 

can be obtained at www.tmrs.com. 
 

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS. 

 
B. Benefits Provided 

 

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the 
governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS. 

 

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest, and 
the City-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity.  Members may choose 

to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payments options. Members may also choose to 

receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 
monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member's deposits and interest. 

 

At the December 31, 2023 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by 
the benefit terms: 

 

Inactive Employees or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 132

Inactive Employees Entitled to but Not Yet Receiving Benefits 93

Active Employees 104

329

 

68

{Section}.32.

http://www.tmrs.com/


 

48 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 7 -- PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

 
Texas Municipal Retirement System (Continued) 

 
C. Contributions 

 

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6 %, or 7% of employee gross earnings, 
and the City matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing 

body of the City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined 

annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method.  The actuarially 
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees 

during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 

 
Employees for the City were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings during calendar 

year 2023. The contribution rates for the City were 18.98% and 19.86% for calendar years 2023 and 

2024 respectively. The City's contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2024 were 
$1,489,311 and were equal to the required contributions.  

 

D. Net Pension Liability 
 

The City’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2023, and the Total Pension 

Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
that date. 

 

E. Actuarial Assumptions 
 

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the 

following actuarial assumptions: 
 

Inflation

Overall Payroll Growth

Investment Rate of Return*

* Presented net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

3.6% to 11.85%, including inflation 

2.5% per year

6.75%

 
Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members are based on 

the PUB(10) mortality tables with the Public Safety table used for males and the General Employee table 
used for females. Mortality rates for healthy retirees and beneficiaries are based on the Gender-distinct 

2019. Municipal Retirees of Texas mortality tables. The rates for actives, healthy retirees and 

beneficiaries are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale MP-2021 to account for future mortality 

improvements. For disabled annuitants, the same mortality tables for healthy retirees is used with a 4-
year set-forward for males and a 3-year set-forward for females. In addition, a 3.5% and 3.0% minimum 

mortality rate is applied, for males and females respectively, to reflect the impairment for younger 

members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale MP-2021 
to account for future mortality improvements subject to the floor. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 
 

NOTE 7 -- PENSION PLAN (Continued)  

 
Texas Municipal Retirement System (Continued) 

 

E. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)  
 

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of 

TMRS over the four year period ending December 31, 2022.  They were adopted in 2023 and first used 
in the December 31, 2023, actuarial valuation. The post-retirement mortality assumption for Annuity 

Purchase Rates (APRs) is based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 

2011 and dated December 31, 2013. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on 
both capital appreciation as well as the production of income in order to satisfy the short-term and long-

term funding needs of TMRS. 

 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 

of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These 

ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  In 

determining their best estimate of a recommended investment return assumption under the various 

alternative asset allocation portfolios, GRS focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean (aggressive) 
without an adjustment for time (conservative) and (2) the geometric mean (conservative) with an 

adjustment for time (aggressive).  The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each 

major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

 

Long-Term 

Expected Real 

Rate of Return 

Asset Class Target Allocation (Arithmetic)

Global Equity 35.00% 6.70%

Core Fixed Income 6.00% 4.70%

Non-Core Fixed Income 20.00% 8.00%

Other Public and Private Markets 12.00% 8.00%

Real Estate 12.00% 7.60%

Hedge Funds 5.00% 6.40%

Private Equity 10.00% 11.60%

100.00%

 
F. Discount Rate 

 

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%.  The projection of cash flows 

used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at 
the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was 

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive 

employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 
 

 

NOTE 7 -- PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

 
Texas Municipal Retirement System (Continued) 

 
 

G. Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset)  

 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability

Balance at December 31, 2022 54,119,696$                 44,845,930$             9,273,766$               

Changes for the year:

Service Cost 1,455,528                     -                                1,455,528                 

Interest 3,611,316                     -                                3,611,316                 

Change of Benefit Terms -                                    -                                -                                

Difference Between Expected and 

  Actual Experience (19,939)                         -                                (19,939)                     

Changes of Assumptions (427,181)                       -                                (427,181)                   

Contributions - Employer -                                    1,459,012                 (1,459,012)                

Contributions - Employee -                                    550,740                    (550,740)                   

Net Investment Income -                                    5,181,021                 (5,181,021)                

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds

  of Employee Contributions (2,692,964)                    (2,692,964)                -                                

Administrative Expense -                                    (33,020)                     33,020                      

Other Changes -                                    (230)                          230                           

Net Changes 1,926,760                     4,464,559                 (2,537,799)                

Balance at December 31, 2023 56,046,456$                 49,310,489$             6,735,967$               

 
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.  

 
The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, 

as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 

1-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate: 

Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

5.75% 6.75% 7.75%

Net Pension Liability 13,901,076$                 6,735,967$               817,105$                  
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NOTE 7 -- PENSION PLAN (Continued)  

 
Texas Municipal Retirement System (Continued) 

 
 

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position  

 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately issued 

TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com. 

 
I. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2024, the City recognized pension expense of $1,359,804.   

 

At September 30, 2024, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources

Differences between Expected and 

  Actual Economic Experience 162,518$                      (13,225)$                   

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions -                                    (283,349)                   

Differences Between Projected and 

  Actual Investment Earnings 1,253,391                     -                                

Contributions Subsequent to the 

  Measurement Date 1,085,931                     -                                

2,501,840$                   (296,574)$                 

 
The City reported $1,085,931 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from 

contributions subsequent to the measurement date (December 31, 2023) will be recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability for the year ending December 31, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred 

outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

For the Year Ended December 31,

2024 334,773$                      

2025 254,928                        

2026 960,415                        

2027 (430,781)                       

Thereafter -                                    

1,119,335$                   

72

{Section}.32.

http://www.tmrs.com/


 

52 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 
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NOTE 8 -- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

 
The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group- term life insurance 

plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the Supplemental Death 
Benefits Fund (SDBF).  The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage to 

both current and retired employees.  The City may terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in 

the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1. 
 

The plan is part of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) issued by TMRS and available at 

www.tmrs.com. 
 

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee’s 

annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the 

month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an “other post-employment 
benefit,” or OPEB.  Membership in the plan at December 31, 2023, the valuation and measurement date, 

consisted of: 

Inactive Employees or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 96

Inactive Employees Entitled to but Not Yet Receiving Benefits 14

Active Employees 104

214

 
The SDBF required contribution rates, based on these assumptions, are as follows:  

 
Total SDBF Retiree Portion to SDBF

For the Calendar Year Ended December 31, Contribution Rate Contribution Rate

2023 0.44% 0.21%

2024 0.43% 0.21%
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NOTE 8 -- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) (Continued) 

 
These contribution rates are based on actuarial assumptions developed primarily from the actuarial 

investigation of the experience of TMRS over the four-year period from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 

2022. They were adopted in 2023 and first used in the December 31, 2023 actuarial valuation.  The post-
retirement mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity Purchase Rate (APRs) are based on the 

Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2014 through 2018 and dated December 31, 2019.  In 

conjunction with these changes first used in the December 31, 2019 valuation, the System adopted the Entry 
Age Normal actuarial cost method.  These assumptions are summarized below: 

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.60% to 11.85% Including Inflation

Discount Rate 3.77%

Mortality Rates - Disabled Retirees

All administrative expenses are paid throe the Pension Trust and accounted 

for under reporting requirements under GASB Statement No. 68.

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables.  Male rates are multiplied 

by 103% and female rates are multiplied by 105%.  The rates are projected on 

a fully generational basis with scale MP-2021 (with immediate convergence).

2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables with a 4 year set-forward 

for males and a 3 year set-forward for females.  In additional, a 3.5% and 3% 

minimum mortality rate will be applied to reflect the impairment for younger 

members who become disabled for males and females, respectively.  The 

rates are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale MP-2021 (with 

immediate convergence) to account for future mortality improvements 

subject to the floor. 

Mortality Rates - Service Retirees

Administrative Expenses

 
The City’s Total OPEB Liability (TOL), based on the above actuarial factors, as of December 31, 2023 was 
calculated as follows:  

 

Total OPEB

Liability

Balance at December 31, 2022 461,873$                         

Changes for the year:

Service Cost 15,735                             

Interest 18,690                             

Change of Benefit Terms -                                      

Difference Between Expected and 

  Actual Experience (3,609)                             

Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs 25,360                             

Benefit Payments (16,522)                           

Net Changes 39,654                             

Balance at December 31, 2023 501,527$                         

 
There is no separate trust maintained to fund this Total OPEB Liability. No assets are accumulated in a trust 

that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 to pay related benefits.  
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NOTE 8 -- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) (Continued) 

 
The following presents the TOL of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 3.77% as well as what the 

City’s TOL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (2.77 %) and 

1-percentage point higher (4.77%) than the current rate: 

Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

2.77% 3.77% 4.77%

Total OPEB Liability 591,759$                         501,527$                         430,287$                         

 
For the year ended September 30, 2024, the City recognized OPEB expense of $33,606. Also as of 
September 30, 2024, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 

related to OPEB from the following sources:  

 

Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources

Difference Between Expected and -$                                    1,096$                             

  Actual Experience

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions -                                      74,914                             

Contributions Subsequent to the 

  Measurement Date 14,420                             -                                      

14,420$                           76,010$                           

 
Deferred outflows of resources in the amount of $14,420 is related to OPEB benefits resulting from 

contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB 

liability for the subsequent plan year ended December 31, 2024 (fiscal year ended September 30, 2024). 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in 

OPEB expense as follows: 

 
Future Years Pension Expense:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2024 (19,760)$                         

2025 (30,930)                           

2026 (27,651)                           

2027 2,331                               

2028 -                                      

(76,010)$                         
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NOTE 9 -- INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

 
Interfund transfer are as follows:  

 

Transfer From Transfer To Amount Purpose

Capital Projects General Fund 138,228$        To Close out Fund

General Fund Water Fund 316,863          To Fund Capital Assets

General Fund Street Maintenance 76,603            To reimburse for Sales tax revenue

Water Fund General Fund 1,380,647       Payment in Lieu of Taxes

Red Light Camera Fund General Fund 342,558          Payment in Lieu of Taxes

Non-Major Funds General Fund 80,651            To reimburse for payments in lieu of taxes

2,335,550$     

NOTE 10 -- CONTINGENCIES 
 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by such agencies.  

Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected may constitute a liability of the applicable 
funds.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at 

this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

 
NOTE 11 -- RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
business interruption; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health benefits; and other 

claims of various natures.  The City contracts with the Texas Municipal League (TML) to provide insurance 

coverage for property and casualty, and workers compensation. TML is a multi-employer group that provides 
for a combination of modified self-insurance and stop-loss coverage. Contributions are set annually by TML. 

Liability by the City is generally limited to the contributed amounts.  Annual contributions for the year ended 

September 30, 2024 were $430,691. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 
 

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are required by the 

GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such information includes: 
 

• Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 

 
• Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Red Light Cameras Fund 

 

• Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Street Maintenance Tax Fund 
 

• Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Last 10 Plan Years 

 
• Schedule of Contributions - Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

• Schedule of Changes in Total Other Post-Employment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 WITH COMPARATIVE 2023 

 
 

Variance With

2024 Final Budget -

Actual Positive 2023

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual

REVENUES

Property Taxes 5,488,447$      5,488,447$      5,464,437$   (24,010)$         5,450,281$      

Sales Taxes 3,771,946        3,771,946        3,767,901     (4,045)             3,883,503        

Franchise Taxes 989,200           989,200           927,879         (61,321)           1,172,251        

Licenses and Permits 330,900           330,900           408,393         77,493             349,265           

Charges for Service 362,800           362,800           362,826         26                    340,305

Fines and Forfeitures 538,700           538,700           543,032         4,332               660,240           

Lease Income -                      -                      19,033           19,033             -                      

Grants 1,415,312        1,418,922        360,713         (1,058,209)      2,381,035        

Investment Earnings 316,000           316,000           499,597         183,597           436,562           

Miscellaneous 598,602           371,602           618,852         247,250           540,410           

      TOTAL REVENUES 13,811,907      13,588,517      12,972,663   (615,854)         15,213,852      

EXPENDITURES

Administration:

  Business Office: 

    Personnel Services 297,734           297,734           274,317         23,417             273,891           

    Supplies 11,340             11,340             9,956             1,384               6,518               

    Contracted Services 117,215           117,215           105,718         11,497             104,340           

      Total Business Office 426,289           426,289           389,991         36,298             384,749           

  Finance and Accounting: 

    Personnel Services 385,821           385,821           370,307         15,514             367,270           

    Supplies 6,800               6,800               5,394             1,406               3,416               

    Contracted Services 68,065             68,065             67,777           288                  54,626             

      Total Finance and Accounting 460,686           460,686           443,478         17,208             425,312           

  Council and Manager:

    Personnel Services 656,924           656,924           652,648         4,276               607,316           

    Supplies 29,950             29,950             20,687           9,263               30,942             

    Contracted Services 408,560           492,320           344,099         148,221           659,314           

    Capital Outlay 15,000             15,000             12,799           2,201               -                      

      Total Council and Manager 1,110,434        1,194,194        1,030,233     163,961           1,297,572        

     Total Administration 1,997,409$      2,081,169$      1,863,702$   217,467$         2,107,633$      

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 WITH COMPARATIVE 2023 

 
 

Variance With

2024 Final Budget -

Actual Positive 2023

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual 

Public Safety

  Law Enforcement Administration:

    Personnel Services 3,266,311$      3,266,311$      2,822,931$   443,380$         2,828,551$      

    Supplies 144,200           144,200           147,981         (3,781)             171,098

    Contracted Services 135,178           135,178           179,378         (44,200)           204,742           

      Total Law Enforcement Administration 3,545,689        3,545,689        3,150,290     395,399           3,204,391        

  Impound Lot:

    Personnel Services 124,252 124,252 121,325 2,927               110,924           

    Supplies 1,900 1,900 1,677 223                  2,590

    Contracted Services 10,000 10,000 12,119 (2,119)             9,817

    Capital Outlay -                      67,103             49,205           17,898             -                      

      Total Impound Lot 136,152           203,255           184,326         18,929             123,331           

  Fire Protection Operations:

    Personnel Services 2,991,820        2,991,820        2,945,519     46,301             3,054,732        

    Supplies 236,400           236,400           189,220         47,180             158,562           

    Contracted Services 310,188           310,188           272,150         38,038             153,662           

    Capital Outlay 362,000           362,000           89,731           272,269           -                      

      Total Fire Protection Operations 3,900,408        3,900,408        3,496,620     403,788           3,366,956        

     Total Public Safety 7,582,249$      7,649,352$      6,831,236$   818,116$         6,694,678$      

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 WITH COMPARATIVE 2023 

 
 

Variance With

2024 Final Budget -

Actual Positive 2023

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual 

Public Works:

  Personnel Services 1,801,083$      1,801,082$      1,524,092$   276,990$         1,472,772$      

  Supplies 192,635           192,635           152,414         40,221             131,036           

  Contracted Services 409,502           493,734           465,825         27,909             335,135           

  Capital Outlay 115,000           280,800           104,106         176,694           -                      

     Total Public Works 2,518,220        2,768,251        2,246,437     521,814           1,938,943        

Parks and Recreation:

  Personnel Services 4,000               4,000               4,000             -                      3,749               

  Supplies 122,000           122,000           49,854           72,146             43,342             

  Contracted Services 448,600           448,600           346,750         101,850           186,720           

  Capital Outlay 2,197,390        2,584,243        162,490         2,421,753        -                      

     Total Parks and Recreation 2,771,990        3,158,843        563,094         2,595,749        233,811           

Library:

  Personnel Services 457,088           457,088           378,927         78,161             375,825           

  Supplies 48,320             51,930             60,865           (8,935)             40,135             

  Contracted Services 52,454             52,454             42,011           10,443             26,542             

  Capital Outlay -                      29,000             -                      29,000             12,984             

     Total Library 557,862           590,472           481,803         108,669           455,486           

Information Technology Office

  Personnel Services 119,596           119,596           117,439         2,157               54,458             

  Supplies 16,000             16,000             12,836           3,164               184,924           

  Contracted Services 180,122           180,122           185,544         (5,422)             12,574             

     Total Information Technology Office 315,718           315,718           315,819         (101)                251,956           

Community Development Activities:

  Community Development/ Events:

    Personnel Services 285,310           285,311           263,768         21,543             247,099           

    Supplies 7,000               7,000               4,515             2,485               3,092               

    Contracted Services 357,479           357,479           260,505         96,974             134,151           

      Total Community Development/ Events 649,789$         649,790$         528,788$      121,002$         384,342$         

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 WITH COMPARATIVE 2023 

 
 

Variance With

2024 Final Budget -

Actual Positive 2023

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual 

  Special Events:

    Personnel Services 29,356$               29,356$                 35,068$         (5,712)$           38,584$           

    Supplies 115,250               117,750                 108,238         9,512               95,478             

      Total Special Events 144,606               147,106                 143,306         3,800               134,062           

  Economic Development:

    Personnel Services 204,140               204,139                 180,338         23,801             149,919           

    Supplies 11,475                 11,475                   10,946           529                  9,888               

    Contracted Services 177,485               292,656                 98,030           194,626           128,832           

    Capital Outlay -                          6,335                     -                      6,335               -                      

      Total Economic Development 393,100               514,605                 289,314         225,291           288,639           

     Total Community Development Activities 1,187,495            1,311,501              961,408         350,093           807,043           

     Total Expenditures 16,930,943          17,875,306            13,263,499   4,611,807        12,489,550      

     Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

     Over (Under) Expenditures (3,119,036)          (4,286,789)            (290,836)       3,995,953        2,724,302        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In 2,133,856            2,133,856              1,942,084     (191,772)         1,595,561        

Transfers Out (554,382)             (880,105)               (393,466)       486,639           (3,420,102)      

      TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

      SOURCES (USES) 1,579,474            1,253,751              1,548,618     294,867           (1,824,541)      

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,539,562)          (3,033,038)            1,257,782     4,290,820        899,761           

Fund Balances, Beginning 8,235,887            8,235,887              8,235,887 -                      7,336,126

Fund Balances, Ending 6,696,325$          5,202,849$            9,493,669$   4,290,820$      8,235,887$      

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
RED LIGHT CAMERA FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 WITH COMPARATIVE 2023 

 
 

Variance With

2024 Final Budget -

Actual Positive 2023

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual 

REVENUES

Fines & Forfeitures 2,095,872        2,095,872$      2,304,356$   208,484$         2,263,827$      

Interest Income 25,000             25,000 40,892 15,892             44,695             

Miscellaneous Income 25,000             -                      -                      -                      4,288               

      TOTAL REVENUES 2,145,872        2,120,872        2,345,248     224,376           2,312,810        

EXPENDITURES

  Law Enforcement Traffic Safety:

    Personnel Services 298,227           298,227           192,964 105,263           214,645           

    Supplies 9,800               9,800               7,417 2,383               5,805               

    Contracted Services 53,997             53,997             57,046 (3,049)             1,462               

      Total Law Enforcement Traffic Safety 362,024           362,024           257,427         104,597           221,912           

  Law Enforcement Red Light Camera:

    Personnel Services 642,259           642,258           595,027 47,231             601,327           

    Supplies 3,150               3,150               1,782 1,368               3,471               

    Contracted Services 887,000           887,000           847,154 39,846             876,138           

    Capital Outlay 505,738           592,568           433,625 158,943           -                      

      Total Law Enforcement Red 

      Light Cameras 2,038,147        2,124,976        1,877,588     247,388           1,480,936        

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,400,171        2,487,000        2,135,015     351,985           1,702,848        

     Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

     Over (Under) Expenditures (254,299)         (366,128)         210,233         576,361           609,962           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers In -                      -                      -                      -                      919,759           

  Transfers Out (342,558)         (342,558)         (342,558)       -                      (452,574)         

      TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

      SOURCES (USES) (342,558)         (342,558)         (342,558)       -                      467,185           

Net Change in Fund Balance (596,857)         (708,686)         (132,325)       576,361           1,077,147        

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,077,147        1,077,147        1,077,147 -                      -                      

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 480,290$         368,461$         944,822$      576,361$         1,077,147$      

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
STREET MAINTENANCE TAX FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 WITH COMPARATIVE 2023 

 
 

Variance With

2024 Final Budget -

Actual Positive 2023

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual 

REVENUES

Sales Taxes 798,000$          798,000$          830,759$            32,759$           762,347$         

Investment Earnings 30,000              30,000              78,877                48,877             44,160             

      TOTAL REVENUES 828,000            828,000            909,636              81,636             806,507           

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  Public Works 720,000            2,069,498         1,055,435           1,014,063        231,641           

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 720,000            2,069,498         1,055,435           1,014,063        231,641           

     Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

     Over (Under) Expenditures 108,000            (1,241,498)        (145,799)             1,095,699        574,866           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In -                        -                        76,603                76,603             -                       

      TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

      SOURCES (USES) -                        -                        76,603                76,603             -                       

Net Change in Fund Balance 108,000            (1,241,498)        (69,196)               1,172,302        574,866           

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,820,388         1,820,388         1,820,388           -                       1,245,522        

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 1,928,388$       578,890$          1,751,192$        1,172,302$      1,820,388$      

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 

 
Budgetary Information – The budget is prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America. The City maintains strict budgetary controls. The objective of 

these controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriation budget 
approved by the City Council and as such is a good management control device. Annual budgets are adopted 

for the general fund, red light camera fund, water and sewer fund, grant fund, building security fund, child 

safety fund, municipal court technology fund, debt service fund, police forfeiture fund, crime control and 
prevention district fund, community center fund and street maintenance tax fund. Project-length financial 

plans are adopted for capital project funds. Of these budgets, the general fund, red light camera fund, street 

maintenance tax fund, community center fund, grants fund, crime control preventions fund, child safety fund, 
state forfeiture fund, federal forfeiture fund, building security fund, court technology fund, and debt service 

fund are legally adopted. 

 
Budgetary preparation and control is exercised at the fund level.  The city manager is authorized to transfer 

budget amounts between accounts within a department.  These transfers cannot increase the overall budgeted 

expenditures. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES – NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

LAST TEN PLAN YEARS 
 

 

2014 2015 2016 2017

Service Cost 645,011$          761,483$          747,641$          842,875$          

Interest  (on the Total Pension Liability) 2,491,971         2,548,566         2,513,302         2,599,775         

Changes of Benefit Terms -                        -                        -                        -                        

Difference between Expected 

  and Actual Experience (806,336)           (863,803)           109,583            194,960            

Change of Assumptions -                        149,794            -                        -                        

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of 

  Employee Contributions (1,734,074)        (1,426,682)        (2,099,537)        (2,174,580)        

    Net Change in Total Pension Liability 596,572            1,169,358         1,270,989         1,463,030         

    Total Pension Liability - Beginning 36,144,116       36,740,688       37,910,046       39,181,035       

        Total Pension Liability - Ending 36,740,688$     37,910,046$     39,181,035$     40,644,065$     

2014 2015 2016 2017

Contributions - Employer 769,208$          813,946$          702,892$          735,312$          

Contributions - Employee 282,279            311,658            301,671            341,475            

Net Investment Income 1,903,667         50,874              2,310,877         4,903,405         

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of

  Employee Contributions (1,734,074)        (1,426,682)        (2,099,537)        (2,174,580)        

Administrative Expense (19,877)             (30,989)             (26,101)             (25,416)             

Other (1,634)               (1,531)               (1,406)               (1,286)               

    Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 1,199,569         (282,724)           1,188,396         3,778,910         

    Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 33,279,600       34,479,169       34,196,445       35,384,841       

        Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending 34,479,169$     34,196,445$     35,384,841$     39,163,751$     

Net Pension Liability - Ending 2,261,519$       3,713,601$       3,796,194$       1,480,314$       

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 

  Percentage of Total Pension Liability 93.84% 90.20% 90.31% 96.36%

Covered Payroll 4,704,649$       5,194,294$       5,027,846$       5,691,256$       

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage

  of Covered Payroll 48.07% 71.49% 75.50% 26.01%

Total Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

1,107,270$       1,260,851$       1,322,663$       1,350,668$       1,295,550$       1,455,528$       

2,833,754         2,974,542         3,156,487         3,295,336         3,466,522         3,611,316         

1,757,255         -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

121,392            696,928            334,550            811,140            57,983              (19,939)             

-                        97,929              -                        -                        -                        (427,181)           

(1,946,832)        (2,160,070)        (2,571,291)        (2,970,074)        (2,816,922)        (2,692,964)        

3,872,839         2,870,180         2,242,409         2,487,070         2,003,133         1,926,760         

40,644,065       44,516,904       47,387,084       49,629,493       52,116,563       54,119,696       

44,516,904$     47,387,084$     49,629,493$     52,116,563$     54,119,696$     56,046,456$     

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

821,094$          1,193,707$       1,254,515$       1,320,007$       1,235,379$       1,459,012$       

372,609            494,728            512,944            523,515            490,473            550,740            

(1,172,483)        5,749,089         3,220,466         5,843,029         (3,611,872)        5,181,021         

(1,946,832)        (2,160,070)        (2,571,291)        (2,970,074)        (2,816,922)        (2,692,964)        

(22,673)             (32,509)             (20,854)             (27,055)             (31,295)             (33,020)             

(1,185)               (977)                  (813)                  185                   37,344              (230)                  

(1,949,470)        5,243,968         2,394,967         4,689,607         (4,696,893)        4,464,559         

39,163,751       37,214,281       42,458,249       44,853,216       49,542,823       44,845,930       

37,214,281$     42,458,249$     44,853,216$     49,542,823$     44,845,930$     49,310,489$     

7,302,623$       4,928,835$       4,776,277$       2,573,740$       9,273,766$       6,735,967$       

83.60% 89.60% 90.38% 95.06% 82.86% 87.98%

6,210,153$       7,067,549$       7,327,773$       7,478,782$       7,006,761$       7,867,720$       

117.59% 69.74% 65.18% 34.41% 132.35% 85.62%

Total Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
 

Contributions in Contributions as

Actuarially Relation to the Contribution a Percentage of

Determined Actuarially Determined Deficiency Covered Covered

Fiscal Year Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll

2024 1,489,311$   1,489,311$                  -               7,753,823$ 19.21%

2023 1,412,576     1,412,576                    -               7,718,509   18.30%

2022 1,246,582     1,246,582                    -               7,075,062   17.62%

2021 1,298,721     1,298,721                    -               7,291,513   17.81%

2020 1,243,211     1,243,211                    -               7,285,644   17.06%

2019 1,108,962     1,108,962                    -               6,920,380   16.02%

2018 830,183       830,183                      -               6,231,160   13.32%

2017 735,472       735,472                      -               5,492,470   13.39%

2016 738,640       738,640                      -               5,036,278   14.67%

2015 779,557       779,557                      -               4,923,162   15.83%
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBTION 

 
 

Valuation Date:

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 22 Years

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year Smoothed Fair Value; 12% Soft Corridor

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases 3.60% to 11.85% Including Inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age

Mortality

Changes in Benefit Terms: None

Cahnges in Acturial Assumptios:

2023 New mortality assumptions

2019 New retirement and mortality assumtions

2015 Investment rate of return lowered from 7% to 6.75%

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 and become effective in 

January, thirteen (13) months later.

Post-retirement: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality 

Tables.  Male rates are multiplied by 103% and female rates are 

multiplied by 105%.  The rates are projected on a fully 

generational basis with scale MP-2021 (with immediate 

convergence). 

Experience-based table of rates that vary by age.  Last updated 

for the 2023 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the 

period ending 2022.

Pre-retirement:  PUB (10) mortality tables, with the 110% of 

the public Safety table used for males and the 100% of the 

General Employee table used for females.  The rates are 

projected on a fully generational basis with scale MP-2021 (with 

immediate convergence). 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES – TOTAL OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT LIABILITY 

AND RELATED RATIOS 
LAST SEVEN CALENDARYEARS* 

 

2017 2018 2019 2020

Service Cost 11,383$        14,283$        15,549$       19,052$       

Interest on Total OPEB Liability 13,335          13,517          14,951         13,963         

Changes of Benefit Terms -                  -                  -                 -                 

Difference between Expected 

  and Actual Experience -                  (1,286)          (2,759)         (5,014)         

Change of Assumptions or Other Inputs 32,701          (28,902)        79,233         78,822         

Benefit Payments (2,846)          (3,726)          (3,534)         (4,397)         

    Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 54,573          (6,114)          103,440       102,426       

    Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 348,518        403,091        396,977       500,417       

        Total OPEB Liability - Ending 403,091$      396,977$      500,417$     602,843$     

Covered Employee Payroll 5,691,256$    6,210,153$    7,067,549$   7,327,773$   

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage

  of Covered Employee Payroll 7.08% 6.39% 7.08% 8.23%

Total OPEB Liability

 

2021 2022 2023

Service Cost 23,932$        23,823$        15,735$       

Interest on Total OPEB Liability 12,184          12,180          18,690         

Changes of Benefit Terms -                  -                  -                 

Difference between Expected 

  and Actual Experience 8,166           (706)             (3,609)         

Change of Assumptions or Other Inputs 19,746          (217,866)       25,360         

Benefit Payments (11,218)        (11,211)        (16,522)        

    Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 52,810          (193,780)       39,654         

    Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 602,843        655,653        461,873       

        Total OPEB Liability - Ending 655,653$      461,873$      501,527$     

Covered Employee Payroll 7,478,782$    7,006,761$    7,867,720$   

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage

  of Covered Employee Payroll 8.77% 6.59% 6.37%

Total OPEB Liability

 
*GASB Statement No. 75 requires 10 years of data to be provided in this schedule.  This is the seventh year 

of implementation of GASB75.  The City will develop the schedule prospectively as data becomes available. 

 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CHANGES  
 

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 to pay 

related benefits.  
 

92

{Section}.32.



 

70 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

Supplementary information includes combining nonmajor individual fund statements which are not required 
by the GASB, nor a part of the basic financial statements. 

 

FUND DESCRIPTIONS 
 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

 
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues and expenditures that are legally restricted 

for a specific purpose. 

 
• Community Center - Accounts for hotel occupancy tax revenues and expenditures, funding mainly the 

community and conference centers. 

 
• Grants Fund - Accounts for grant revenues received from other governments and the related 

expenditures. 

 
• Crime Control and Prevention District - Accounts for sales tax collection for public safety 

operations. This special district tax was approved by voters in May 2014. 

 
• Child Safety Fund - Accounts for the drug awareness and prevention program, school crossing guards, 

and other child safety programs. 

 
• State Police Forfeiture Fund - Accounts for revenues from seized assets and the allowed expenditure 

of that revenue. 

 
• Federal Police Forfeiture Fund - Accounts for revenues from seized assets in federal cases and the 

allowed expenditure of that revenue. 

 
• Building Security Fund - Accounts for a portion of municipal fines that are allocated to building 

security and the allowed expenditures. 

 

• Court Technology - Accounts for a portion of municipal fines that are allocated to court technology 
and the allowed expenditures. 

 
OTHER MAJOR FUNDS 

 

 

• Debt Service Fund – Accounts for the accumulation of resources and the related disbursement for the 
retirement of long term debt. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 
 

Crime Control

Community and Prevention Child

Center Grants District Safety

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 69,594$           9,838$             186,947$         26,610$           

Investments 244,476           -                      480,646           50,915             

Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance:

    Other 23,517             -                      -                      1,101               

Due from Other Governments -                      -                      72,700             -                      

 

      TOTAL ASSETS 337,587$         9,838$             740,293$         78,626$           

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

  Accounts Payable 2,991$             -$                    1,068$             -$                    

  Accrued Expenditures 373                  -                      646                  23                    

  Deposits Payable 40,215             -                      -                      -                      

      Total Liabilities 43,579             -                      1,714               23                    

Fund Balance:

  Restricted 294,008           9,838               738,579           78,603             

      Total Fund Balances 294,008           9,838               738,579           78,603             

      TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

      FUND BALANCES 337,587$         9,838$             740,293$         78,626$           

Special Revenue Funds
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State Federal Total Nonmajor

Police Police Building Court Governmental

Forefiture Forfeitures Security Technology Funds

-$                    841,240$         41,005$           24,806$           1,200,040$        

11,757             205,035           48,696             37,160             1,078,685          

-                      -                      -                      -                      24,618                

-                      -                      -                      -                      72,700                

11,757$           1,046,275$      89,701$           61,966$           2,376,043$        

-$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    4,059$                

-                      -                      -                      -                      1,042                  

-                      -                      -                      -                      40,215                

-                      -                      -                      -                      45,316                

11,757             1,046,275        89,701             61,966             2,330,727          

11,757             1,046,275        89,701             61,966             2,330,727          

11,757$           1,046,275$      89,701$           61,966$           2,376,043$        

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

 

Crime Control

Community and Prevention Child

Center Grants District Safety

REVENUES

Sales Taxes -$                    -$                    411,883$         -$                    

Occupancy Taxes 84,144             -                      -                      -                      

Fines and Forfeitures -                      -                      -                      16,340             

Grants -                      5,413               -                      -                      

Lease Income 60,454             -                      -                      -                      

Investment Earnings 12,667             -                      24,348             2,638               

Miscellaneous 40,405             -                      845                  -                      

      TOTAL REVENUES 197,670           5,413               437,076           18,978             

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  Public Safety -                      2,019               242,467           5,789               

  Community Development 134,944           -                      -                      -                      

  Capital Outlay 59,657             -                      -                      -                      

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 194,601           2,019               242,467           5,789               

 

      Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

      Over (Under) Expenditures 3,069               3,394               194,609           13,189             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers Out -                      -                      (80,651)           -                      

      TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

      SOURCES (USES) -                      -                      (80,651)           -                      

Net Change in Fund Balance 3,069               3,394               113,958           13,189             

Fund Balances, Beginning 290,939           6,444               624,621           65,414             

Fund Balances, Ending 294,008$         9,838$             738,579$         78,603$           

Special Revenue Funds

 

96

{Section}.32.



 

74 

 

 

 

 
 

 

State Federal Total Nonmajor

Police Police Building Court Governmental

Forfeiture Forfeiture Security Technology Funds

-$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       411,883$         

-                         -                         -                         -                         84,144             

-                         688,464             12,741               11,914               729,459           

-                         -                         -                         -                         5,413                

-                         -                         -                         -                         60,454             

609                    10,623               2,523                 1,926                 55,334             

-                         24,700               -                         -                         65,950             

609                    723,787             15,264               13,840               1,412,637        

-                         -                         -                         -                         250,275           

-                         -                         -                         -                         134,944           

-                         67,150               -                         -                         126,807           

-                         67,150               -                         -                         512,026           

609                    656,637             15,264               13,840               900,611           

-                         -                         -                         -                         (80,651)            

-                         -                         -                         -                         (80,651)            

609                    656,637             15,264               13,840               819,960           

11,148               389,638             74,437               48,126               1,510,767        

11,757$             1,046,275$        89,701$             61,966$             2,330,727$     

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

COMMUNITY CENTER FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL TOTALS FOR 2023) 

 

Variance with

2024 Final Budget- 2023

Actual Positive Actual

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Amounts

REVENUES

Occupancy Taxes 84,000$        84,000$        84,144$      144$             67,842$        

Lease Income 64,254          64,254          60,454         (3,800)           63,766          

Investment Earnings 7,200            7,200            12,667         5,467            10,268          

Miscellaneous -                    -                    40,405         40,405          36,275          

      TOTAL REVENUES 155,454        155,454        197,670      42,216          178,151        

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  Community Development 156,688        156,688        134,944      21,744          115,822        

  Capital Outlay 60,000          72,000          59,657         12,343          -                    

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 216,688        228,688        194,601      34,087          115,822        

Net Change in Fund Balance (61,234)         (73,234)         3,069           76,303          62,329          

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 290,939        290,939        290,939      -                    228,610        

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 229,705$      217,705$      294,008$    76,303$        290,939$      

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

GRANTS FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL TOTALS FOR 2023) 

 

Variance with

2024 Final Budget- 2023

Actual Positive Actual

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Amounts

REVENUES

Grants 2,856$          2,856$          5,413$         2,557$          2,462$          

      TOTAL REVENUES 2,856            2,856            5,413           2,557            2,462            

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  Public Safety 5,000            5,000            2,019           2,981            3,160            

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,000            5,000            2,019           2,981            3,160            

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,144)           (2,144)           3,394           5,538            (698)              

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 6,444            6,444            6,444           -                    7,142

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 4,300$          4,300$          9,838$         5,538$          6,444$          

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

CRIME CONTROL PREVENTION FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL TOTALS FOR 2023) 

 

Variance with

2024 Final Budget- 2023

Actual Positive Actual

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Amounts

REVENUES

Sales Tax 403,800$      403,800$      411,883$    8,083$          415,913$      

Investment Earnings 5,000 5,000            24,348 19,348          15,781          

Miscellaneous -                    -                    845              845               3,200            

      TOTAL REVENUES 408,800        408,800        437,076        28,276          434,894        

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  Public Safety 272,060        272,060        242,467      29,593          245,354        

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 272,060        272,060        242,467      29,593          245,354        

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

   Over (Under) Expenditures 136,740        136,740        194,609      57,869          189,540        

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers Out -                    -                    (80,651)       (80,651)         (73,147)         

      TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

      SOURCES (USES) -                    -                    (80,651)       (80,651)         (73,147)         

Net Change in Fund Balance 136,740        136,740        113,958      (22,782)         116,393        

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 624,621        624,621        624,621      -                    508,228        

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 761,361$      761,361$      738,579$    (22,782)$       624,621$      

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

CHILD SAFETY FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL TOTALS FOR 2023) 

 

Variance with

2024 Final Budget- 2023

Actual Positive Actual

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Amounts

REVENUES

Fines and Forfeitures 13,700$        13,700$        16,340$      2,640$            17,780$          

Investment Earnings 500               500               2,638           2,138              2,137              

      TOTAL REVENUES 14,200          14,200          18,978         4,778              19,917            

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  Public Safety 5,953            5,953            5,789           164                 5,343              

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,953            5,953            5,789           164                 5,343              

Net Change in Fund Balance 8,247            8,247            13,189         4,942              14,574            

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 65,414          65,414          65,414         -                      50,840            

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 73,661$        73,661$        78,603$      4,942$            65,414$          

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

STATE POLICE FORFEITURE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL TOTALS FOR 2023) 

 

Variance with

2024 Final Budget- 2023

Actual Positive Actual

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Amounts

REVENUES

Investment Earnings 2,000$          -$                  609$            609$             494$             

      TOTAL REVENUES 2,000            -                    609              609               494               

Net Change in Fund Balance 2,000            -                    609              609               494               

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 11,148          11,148          11,148         -                    10,654          

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 13,148$        11,148$        11,757$      609$             11,148$        

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FEDERAL POLICE FORFEITURE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL TOTALS FOR 2023) 

 

Variance with

2024 Final Budget- 2023

Actual Positive Actual

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Amounts

REVENUES

Fines and Forfeitures -$                  -$                  688,464$     688,464$      215,159$      

Interest -                    -                    10,623          10,623          8,611            

Miscellaneous -                    2,000            24,700          22,700          6,456            

      TOTAL REVENUES -                    2,000            723,787        721,787        230,226        

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  Capital Outlay -                    253,350        67,150          186,200        -                    

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                    253,350        67,150          186,200        -                    

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures -                    (251,350)       656,637        907,987        230,226        

OTHER SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In (Out) -                    -                    -                     -                    (120,000)       

      TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

      SOURCES (USES) -                    -                    -                     -                    (120,000)       

Net Change in Fund Balance -                    (251,350)       656,637        907,987        110,226        

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 389,638        389,638        389,638        -                    279,412        

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 389,638$      138,288$      1,046,275$  907,987$      389,638$      

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

BUILDING SECURITY FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL TOTALS FOR 2023) 

 

Variance with

2024 Final Budget- 2023

Actual Positive Actual

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Amounts

REVENUES

Fines and Forfeitures 18,000$        18,000$        12,741$      (5,259)$         22,495$        

Investment Earnings -                    -                    2,523           2,523            2,045$          

      TOTAL REVENUES 18,000          18,000          15,264         (2,736)           24,540          

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  Public Safety 10,000          10,000          -                    10,000          -                    

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,000          10,000          -                    10,000          -                    

Net Change in Fund Balance 8,000            8,000            15,264         7,264            24,540          

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 74,437          74,437          74,437         -                    49,897          

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 82,437$        82,437$        89,701$      7,264$          74,437$        

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL TOTALS FOR 2023) 

 

Variance with

2024 Final Budget- 2023

Actual Positive Actual

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Amounts

REVENUES

Fines and Forfeitures 15,000$        19,000$        11,914$      (7,086)$         23,357$        

Investment Earnings 500               500               1,926           1,426            1,561            

      TOTAL REVENUES 15,500          19,500          13,840         (5,660)           24,918          

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  Administration 37,000          15,000          -                    15,000          15,000

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 37,000          15,000          -                    15,000          15,000          

Net Change in Fund Balance (21,500)         4,500            13,840         9,340            9,918            

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 48,126          48,126          48,126         -                    38,208          

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 26,626$        52,626$        61,966$      9,340$          48,126$        

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

DEBT SERVICE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL TOTALS FOR 2023) 

 
Variance With

2024 Final Budget -

Actual Positive 2023

Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actual 

REVENUES

Property Taxes 582,250$         582,250$         712,663$      130,413$         578,989$         

Investment Earnings -                      -                      16,588 -                      13,445

      TOTAL REVENUES 582,250           582,250           729,251         130,413           592,434           

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service:

 Principal 445,000 445,000 445,000 -                      430,000

  Interest 192,613 242,613 135,375 107,238           148,200

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 637,613           687,613           580,375         107,238           578,200           

     Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

     Over (Under) Expenditures (55,363)           (105,363)         148,876         254,239           14,234             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers In 105,363 105,363 -                      (105,363)         -                      

      TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

      SOURCES (USES) 105,363           105,363           -                      (105,363)         -                      

Net Change in Fund Balance 50,000             -                      148,876         148,876           14,234             

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 428,334           428,334           428,334         -                      414,100

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 478,334$         428,334$         577,210$      148,876$         428,334$         

Budgeted Amounts
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

 

This part of the City of Leon Valley's annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for 

understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary 
information says about the City's overall financial health. 

 

Financial Trends (Tables 1 through 4) 
Net Position by Component 

Change in Net Position 

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 

 
These schedules contain trend information to help reader understand how the City's financial 

performance and well-being have changed over time. 

 
Revenue Capacity (Tables 5 through 12) 

Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds 

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 

Principal Property Taxpayers 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Total Water Sold by Type of Customer 
Water and Sewer Rates 

Taxable Assessed Value 

 
These schedules contain information to help readers assess the factors affecting the City’s ability to 

generate its property and sales tax. 

 

Debt Capacity (Tables 13 through 17) 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

Debt Margin Information 
Pledged Revenue Coverage 

 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current 

levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

 
Demographic and Economic Information (Tables 18 through 19) 

Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Principal Employers 

 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand how the 

City’s financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with other 

governments. 

 

Operating Information (Tables 20 through 22) 
Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function 

Operating Indicators by Function/Program 

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program 
 

These schedules contain information about the City’s operations and resources to help the reader 

understand how the City’s financial information relates to the services the City provides and the 

activities it performs. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

NET POSITION, BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

2015* 2016* 2017* 2018

Governmental Activities

   Net Investment in Capital Assets 7,696,092$       8,324,593$       9,534,380$       12,241,969$     

   Restricted 1,657,517         2,186,825         2,999,981         4,027,347         

   Unrestricted 2,656,933         2,696,144         2,342,091         2,432,332         

Total Governmental Activities

  Net Position 12,010,542$     13,207,562$     14,876,452$     18,701,648$     

Business-Type Activities

   Net Investment in Capital Assets 4,113,942$       4,367,353$       4,049,170$       4,162,165$       

   Restricted 908,705            1,042,946         1,279,204         1,225,716         

   Unrestricted 1,533,589         1,205,378         2,179,050         2,562,095         

Total Business-Type Activities

  Net Position 6,556,236$       6,615,677$       7,507,424$       7,949,976$       

Primary Government

   Net Investment in Capital Assets 11,810,034$     12,691,946$     13,583,550$     16,404,134$     

   Restricted 2,566,222         3,229,771         4,279,185         5,253,063         

   Unrestricted 4,190,522         3,901,522         4,521,141         4,994,427         

Total Primary Government Net Position 18,566,778$     19,823,239$     22,383,876$     26,651,624$     

Fiscal Year

 
*Years 2017 and prior included the Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation as a blended component 
unit. 

These years have not been restated for the adoption of GASB 75. 
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TABLE 1 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

12,752,432$     13,667,111$     13,953,956$     13,497,385$     16,514,310$     16,338,530$     

2,704,990         2,950,408         2,891,629         3,144,548         5,151,887         5,956,937         

2,048,407         559,242            753,703            2,663,066         2,779,400         3,922,880         

17,505,829$     17,176,761$     17,599,288$     19,304,999$     24,445,597$     26,218,347$     

4,872,274$       5,392,876$       5,862,213$       6,332,409$       8,519,400$       9,114,507$       

1,595,199         1,784,772         1,888,685         1,888,685         2,011,865         1,776,950         

2,118,143         2,276,563         2,404,894         1,883,625         2,062,571         3,187,874         

8,585,616$       9,454,211$       10,155,792$     10,104,719$     12,593,836$     14,079,331$     

17,624,706$     19,059,987$     19,816,169$     19,829,794$     25,033,710$     25,453,037$     

4,300,189         4,735,180         4,780,314         5,033,233         7,163,752         7,733,887         

4,166,550         2,835,805         3,158,597         4,546,691         4,841,971         7,110,754         

26,091,445$     26,630,972$     27,755,080$     29,409,718$     37,039,433$     40,297,678$     

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

2015 2016 2017 2018

Expenses

Governmental Activities

  Administration 983,952$           1,125,550$        1,052,772$        1,163,357$        

  Public Safety 4,701,582          4,598,579          5,731,890          6,825,574          

  Public Works 2,363,083          1,492,449          1,960,573          1,366,183          

  Information Technology Office -                         -                         -                         -                         

  Parks and Recreation 169,947             228,169             357,055             372,372             

  Library 320,572             367,252             375,764             421,642             

  Communications -                         355,508             322,727             -                         

  Community Development 676,880             880,111             753,029             828,978             

  Interest and Fiscal Agent Fees 239,237             205,890             228,101             201,460             

Total Governmental Activities Expenses 9,455,253          9,253,508          10,781,911        11,179,566        

Business-Type Activities

  Water/Wastewater Utilities 3,481,521          3,752,522          3,901,345          4,720,880          

Total Business-Type Activities 3,481,521          3,752,522          3,901,345          4,720,880          

Total Primary Government Expenses 12,936,774$      13,006,030$      14,683,256$      15,900,446$      

Program Revenues

Governmental Activities

  Charges for Service:

    Administration 258,388$           537,825$           319,498$           319,498$           

    Public Safety 694,303             724,018             1,620,197          1,620,197          

    Parks and Recreation 13,850               15,632               -                         -                         

    Library 3,521                 4,249                 -                         -                         

    Community Development 166,775             167,074             76,357               76,357               

  Operating Grants and Contributions 240,763             160,001             476,415             476,415             

  Capital Grants and Contributions 170,747             37,766               -                         -                         

Total Governmental Aactivities

  Program Revenues 1,548,347          1,646,565          2,492,467          2,492,467          

Business-Type Activities

  Charges for Service:

    Water/Wastewater Utilities 3,481,570          3,683,776          4,589,550          4,623,442          

  Operating Grants and Contributions -                         -                         120,165             -                         

  Capital Grants and Contributions -                         -                         -                         485,976             

Total Business-Type Activities

  Program Revenues 3,481,570          3,683,776          4,709,715          5,109,418          

Total Primary Government

  Program Revenues 5,029,917$        5,330,341$        7,202,182$        7,601,885$        

Fiscal Year

 
Note – Years 2014 – 2017 have not been restated for adoption of GASB Statement No. 75.  
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TABLE 2 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

1,134,888$          1,668,621$        1,272,072$        1,490,181$        2,361,242$        2,146,911$        

10,029,264          9,182,852          8,427,384          8,192,664          9,760,863          9,239,567          

3,110,746            2,128,939          2,464,829          2,908,030          2,593,652          3,514,599          

-                           -                         -                         -                         211,958             229,970             

306,749               328,675             326,685             327,054             349,505             517,986             

413,677               413,953             438,436             514,467             460,126             501,876             

-                           -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

932,724               939,644             919,311             1,054,053          1,024,951          1,187,852          

186,603               177,398             216,131             100,420             98,366               79,638               

16,114,651          14,840,082        14,064,848        14,586,869        16,860,663        17,418,399        

4,978,650            4,476,212          4,447,693          5,613,181          3,148,657          3,384,397          

4,978,650            4,476,212          4,447,693          5,613,181          3,148,657          3,384,397          

21,093,301$        19,316,294$      18,512,541$      20,200,050$      20,009,320$      20,802,796$      

661,149$             409,905$           276,482$           330,496$           330,494$           539,725$           

3,441,827            3,296,536          3,062,361          3,058,806          3,455,638          3,938,969          

-                           -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

-                           -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

77,660                 11,290               20,253               64,586               67,383               62,505               

130,103               604,876             67,282               57,184               53,503               77,902               

105,767               -                         -                         159,946             4,764,275          286,172             

4,416,506            4,322,607          3,426,378          3,671,018          8,671,293          4,905,273          

5,218,441            4,995,934          5,095,369          5,381,349          5,231,485          5,362,842          

-                           -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

302,632               -                         -                         365,395             -                         245,726             

5,521,073            4,995,934          5,095,369          5,746,744          5,231,485          5,608,568          

9,937,579$          9,318,541$        8,521,747$        9,417,762$        13,902,778$      10,513,841$      

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

2015 2016 2017 2018

Net (Expenses)/Revenue

  Governmental Activities (7,906,906)$       (7,606,943)$       (8,289,444)$       (8,687,099)$       

  Business-Type Activities 49                      (68,746)              808,370             388,538             

Total Primary Government Net Expenses (7,906,857)$       (7,675,689)$       (7,481,074)$       (8,298,561)$       

Governmental Revenues and Other

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities

  Taxes:

    Property Taxes 4,122,721$        4,440,697$        4,752,901$        4,944,531$        

    Sales Taxes 3,058,953          3,177,019          3,517,289          3,687,415          

    Franchise Taxes 974,361             1,072,898          1,104,166          961,149             

    Occupancy Taxes 86,661               67,691               80,600               94,639               

  Interest and Investment Earnings 4,678                 17,663               55,460               134,411             

  Miscellaneous 21,896               27,995               447,168             371,832             

  Transfers 70,000               -                         750                    (47,650)              

Total Governmental Activities 8,339,270          8,803,963          9,958,334          10,146,327        

Business-Type Activities

  Interest and Investment Earnings 889                    1,270                 11,987               60,337               

  Miscellaneous 144,390             84,682               116,200             -                         

  Transfers (20,000)              (70,000)              -                         47,650               

Total Business-Type Activities 125,279             15,952               128,187             107,987             

Total Primary Government 8,464,549$        8,819,915$        10,086,521$      10,254,314$      

Changes In Net Position

  Government Activities 432,364$           1,197,020$        1,668,890$        1,459,228$        

  Business-Type Activities 125,328             (52,794)              936,557             496,525             

Total Primary Government 557,692$           1,144,226$        2,605,447$        1,955,753$        

Fiscal Year
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TABLE 2 (Continued) 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

(11,698,145)$       (10,517,475)$     (10,638,470)$     (10,915,851)$     (8,189,370)$       (12,513,126)$     

542,423               519,722             647,676             133,563             2,082,828          2,224,171          

(11,155,722)$       (9,997,753)$       (9,990,794)$       (10,782,288)$     (6,106,542)$       (10,288,955)$     

5,113,648$          5,447,139$        5,558,254$        5,863,936$        6,038,893$        6,189,180$        

3,746,775            3,738,177          4,270,709          4,922,322          5,061,764          5,010,542          

919,205               809,636             876,389             928,847             1,172,251          927,879             

89,936                 50,523               89,993               84,186               67,842               84,144               

233,900               94,530               3,074                 76,035               579,759             692,726             

399,343               361,884             262,578             351,727             599,325             317,621             

(481)                     (313,482)            -                         394,509             (189,866)            1,063,784          

10,502,326          10,188,407        11,060,997        12,621,562        13,329,968        14,285,876        

92,436                 35,341               2,131                 28,490               145,607             207,415             

300                      50                      51,774               181,383             70,816               117,693             

481                      313,482             -                         (394,509)            189,866             (1,063,784)         

93,217                 348,873             53,905               (184,636)            406,289             (738,676)            

10,595,543$        10,537,280$      11,114,902$      12,436,926$      13,736,257$      13,547,200$      

(1,195,819)$         (329,068)$          422,527$           1,705,711$        5,140,598$        1,772,750$        

635,640               868,595             701,581             (51,073)              2,489,117          1,485,495          

(560,179)$            539,527$           1,124,108$        1,654,638$        7,629,715$        3,258,245$        

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

2015 2016 2017 2018

General Fund: 

  Nonspendable 56,442$             14,201$             52,650$             11,163$             

  Restricted 114,962             154,393             497,329             23,868               

  Committed 900,000             900,000             1,000,000          1,000,000          

  Assigned 25,275               25,275               80,700               459,127             

  Unassigned 2,779,498          3,567,496          3,508,662          3,359,401          

  Total General Fund  3,876,177$        4,661,365$        5,139,341$        4,853,559$        

All Other Governmental Funds: 

  Nonspendable 1,990$               -$                       2,095$               -$                       

  Restricted 2,874,942          2,032,432          2,502,591          3,499,337          

  Committed 664,842             -                         -                         -                         

  Assigned 111,139             93,679               -                         -                         

  Total All Other Governmental Funds 3,652,913$        2,126,111$        2,504,686$        3,499,337$        

Fiscal Year

 

114

{Section}.32.



 

92 

 

 

 

 
TABLE 3 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

5,824$               4,434$               4,854$               4,568$               5,472$               4,883$               

235,416             261,124             283,940             304,190             304,923             340,037             

1,000,000          1,000,000          1,000,000          1,000,000          1,000,000          1,000,000          

1,154,763          749,556             1,068,942          1,501,435          1,006,394          1,316,749          

4,370,549          3,784,196          3,361,144          4,525,932          5,919,097          6,832,000          

6,766,552$        5,799,310$        5,718,880$        7,336,125$        8,235,886$        9,493,669$        

-$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

2,463,234          2,680,737          2,596,713          2,832,611          4,974,864          5,603,951          

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

2,463,234$        2,680,737$        2,596,713$        2,832,611$        4,974,864$        5,603,951$        

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

2015 2016 2017 2018

REVENUES

Property Taxes 4,143,068$        4,432,407$        4,755,462$        4,940,751$        

Nonproperty Taxes 3,145,614          3,333,880          4,702,056          4,743,203          

Grants/Intergovernmental 8,852                 7,394                 233,473             2,184,103          

Charges for Services 2,123,854          2,132,647          1,939,695          3,014,022          

Other 416,576             535,910             821,919             457,535             

      TOTAL REVENUES 9,837,964          10,442,238        12,452,605        15,339,614        

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  Administrative 951,121             1,035,474          878,060             937,870             

  Public Safety 4,609,076          4,320,120          5,179,406          6,663,001          

  Public Works 2,238,664          1,319,658          1,809,169          1,135,180          

  Parks and Recreation 142,794             198,429             324,379             358,460             

  Information Technology Office -                         -                         -                         -                         

  Library 317,049             346,782             360,023             402,110             

  Communications -                         348,793             322,727             -                         

  Community Development 624,724             823,889             699,342             768,403             

Capital Outlay 3,408,801          2,110,337          1,341,443          3,137,262          

Debt Service:

  Principal 430,000             445,000             460,000             475,000             

  Interest 245,946             233,370             222,255             205,809             

  Fiscal Agent Fees and Bond Issue Costs 2,250                 2,000                 -                         -                         

    TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,970,425        11,183,852        11,596,804        14,083,095        

    Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

    Over (Under) Expenditures (3,132,461)         (741,614)            855,801             1,256,519          

OTHER FINANCING     

  SOURCES (USES)     

Transfers In 590,803             707,203             750                    750                    

Transfers Out (520,803)            (707,203)            -                         (48,400)              

Bond Premium -                         -                         -                         -                         

Issuance of Debt -                         -                         -                         -                         

Payments to Refunding Agent -                         -                         -                         -                         

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

  SOURCES (USES) 70,000               -                         750                    (47,650)              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (3,062,461)$       (741,614)$          856,551$           1,208,869$        

          

Debt Service as a Percentage of

  Noncapital Expenditures 7.1% 7.5% 6.7% 6.2%

Fiscal Year
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TABLE 4 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

5,104,964$        5,441,159$        5,556,003$        5,848,954$        6,029,270$        6,177,100$        

4,755,916          4,598,336          5,237,092          5,935,354          6,301,856          6,022,566          

235,870             604,876             67,282               217,424             4,821,395          366,126             

4,177,392          3,788,092          3,424,315          3,456,614          3,892,428          4,348,066          

636,484             386,056             200,433             497,897             1,234,157          1,455,577          

14,910,626        14,818,519        14,485,125        15,956,243        22,279,106        18,369,435        

933,682             1,440,302          1,090,696          1,196,736          2,122,633          1,850,903          

7,886,368          8,370,905          8,170,836          8,268,204          8,651,384          8,693,170          

2,562,290          1,693,018          2,160,982          2,612,024          2,170,584          3,197,766          

281,387             288,235             299,170             280,047             233,811             400,604             

-                         -                         -                         -                         251,956             315,819             

407,886             397,869             401,639             497,457             442,502             481,803             

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

857,365             859,448             839,794             908,258             922,865             1,096,352          

968,781             1,568,953          1,056,582          154,083             3,673,293          929,558             

440,000             450,000             449,934             420,000             430,000             445,000             

195,495             186,043             179,948             160,800             148,200             135,375             

-                         -                         121,016             -                         -                         -                         

14,533,254        15,254,773        14,770,597        14,497,609        19,047,228        17,546,350        

377,372             (436,254)            (285,472)            1,458,634          3,231,878          823,085             

      

      

-                         179,240             -                         423,189             6,188,202          2,018,687          

(481)                   (492,722)            -                         (28,680)              (6,378,067)         (954,903)            

-                         -                         641,083             -                         -                         -                         

-                         -                         5,775,000          -                         -                         -                         

-                         -                         (6,295,066)         -                         -                         -                         

(481)                   (313,482)            121,017             394,509             (189,865)            1,063,784          

376,891$           (749,736)$          (164,455)$          1,853,143$        3,042,013$        1,886,869$        

      

4.7% 4.6% 4.6% 4.0% 3.8% 3.4%

Fiscal Year
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

TABLE 5 

Fiscal Total

Year Property Sales & Use Occupancy Franchise Revenue

2015 4,143,068 3,145,614 86,661 974,361 8,349,704$        

2016 4,432,407 3,333,880 67,691 983,728 8,817,706

2017 4,755,462          3,517,290          80,600            1,104,166       9,457,518

2018 4,940,751          3,687,415          94,639            961,149          9,683,954

2019 5,104,964          3,746,775          89,936            919,205          9,860,880

2020 5,441,159          3,738,177          50,523            809,636          10,039,495

2021 5,556,003          4,270,710          89,993            876,389          10,793,095

2022 5,848,954          4,922,321          84,186            928,847          11,784,308

2023 6,029,270          5,061,763          67,842            1,172,251       12,331,126

2024 6,177,100 5,010,543 84,144 927,879 12,199,666
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

TABLE 6 

Total Taxable Total

Fiscal Assessed Direct

Year Value Tax Rate

2015 681,878,582$      0.582915

2016 707,418,512        0.575507

2017 740,061,497        0.561615

2018 817,913,902        0.556599

2019 887,140,474        0.556599

2020 997,287,526        0.545877

2021 1,116,994,425     0.535904

2022 1,184,330,358     0.534099

2023 1,334,257,065     0.484739

2024 1,345,942,663     0.484739

 
Source: Bexar County Appraisal Districts 

 

NOTES: Property in the City of Leon Valley is reassessed every year at estimated actual value. For this reason, 

assessed value is equal to estimated actual value. Tax rates are per $100 of assessed value.  Total taxable 

assessed value is before any applicable freeze adjustments. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

TABLE 7 

Fiscal General Debt Total School Bexar 

Year Fund Service Direct District County

2015 0.4768              0.0988              0.5755              1.3755              0.3145              

2016 0.4712              0.0904              0.5616              1.3755              0.3145              

2017 0.4746              0.0820              0.5566              1.3755              0.3090              

2018 0.4788              0.0778              0.5566              1.3755              0.3041              

2019 0.4783              0.0676              0.5459              1.3755              0.3011              

2020 0.4754              0.0682              0.5436              1.3055              0.3011              

2021 0.4722              0.0637              0.5359              1.2857              0.3011              

2022 0.4816              0.0525              0.5341              1.2631              0.3000              

2023 0.4383              0.0464              0.4847              1.1901              0.2763              

2024 0.4400              0.0447              0.4847              1.0117              0.2763              

University San Antonio Alamo

Health River Community 

System Authority College

2015 0.2762              0.0175              0.1492              

2016 0.2762              0.0173              0.1492              

2017 0.2762              0.0173              0.1492              

2018 0.2762              0.0173              0.1492              

2019 0.2762              0.0186              0.1492              

2020 0.2762              0.0186              0.1492              

2021 0.2762              0.0186              0.1492              

2022 0.2763              0.0184              0.1492              

2023 0.2762              0.0184              0.1492              

2024 0.2762              0.0180              0.0149              

Overlapping RatesCity Direct Rates

Overlapping Rates

 
 

Source: Bexar County Tax Offices 

 

NOTE: Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply within the City of Leon Valley. Not 

all overlapping rates apply to all City of Leon Valley property owners.  
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

 
 

TABLE 8 

Percentage Percentage

of of

Total City Total City

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

PF Bandera LLC 49,000,000            1 3.64% -                          -                    

Timberhill Commons LTD 49,000,000            2 3.64% -                          -                    

Ancira-winton Chevrolet 46,360,150            3 3.44% 22,771,680         1 3.34%

5622 Equity de LLC 41,000,000            4 3.05% -                          -                    

5650 Grissmo Owner LP 22,000,100            5 1.63% -                          -                    

Valencia Lofts 21,600,000            6 1.60% -                          -                    

Leors Holdings 16,807,750            7 1.25% 11,308,206         6 1.66%

Barcelona Lofts LLC 16,000,000            8 1.19% 11,100,000         7 1.63%

Vaquero Bandera Partners LP 12,000,000            9 0.89% -                          -                    

6300 Rue Marielyne Property 10,750,000            10 0.00% -                          -                    

H.E.B. Grocery -                            -                 20,050,000         2 2.94%

Vista del Rey -                            -                 16,600,000         3 2.43%

Shadow Valley Apartments -                            -                 12,850,100         4 1.88%

Omninet Towers LP -                            -                 11,308,206         5 1.66%

Leon SA Income Partners -                            -                 6,500,000           8 0.95%

Forest Green Association -                            -                 6,410,000           9 0.94%

SA West Loop II Investors -                            -                 5,645,000           10 0.83%

TOTALS 284,518,000$        20.34% 124,543,192$     0                   

TOTAL TAXABLE

2024 2015

 
Source: Bexar County Appraisal District 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

 

TABLE 9 

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collections In

Ended for the % of Subsequent % of

September 30, Fiscal Year Amount Levy Years Amount Levy

2015 4,130,740         4,050,446          98.06% 70,751$           4,121,197$       99.77%

2016 4,432,631         4,369,996          98.59% 51,237             4,421,233         99.74%

2017 4,738,086         4,685,787          98.90% 42,404             4,728,191         99.79%

2018 5,019,786         4,966,303          98.93% 41,274             5,007,577         99.76%

2019 5,137,625         5,080,976          98.90% 45,082             5,126,058         99.77%

2020 5,446,779         5,388,962          98.94% 41,805             5,430,767         99.71%

2021 5,599,495         5,545,111          99.03% 34,616             5,579,727         99.65%

2022 5,805,577         5,741,734          98.90% 37,491             5,704,243         98.25%

2023 5,925,028         5,856,964          98.85% 31,066             5,856,964         98.85%

2024 6,090,540         6,129,144          100.63% -                      6,129,144         100.63%

Fiscal Year of Levy

Collected Within Total Collections

To Date

 
Source: Bexar County Appraisal District 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

WATER SOLD BY TYPE OF CUSTOMER 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

 

TABLE 10 

Type of Customer 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Residential 176,710,000$     177,355,000$     160,769,000$     155,524,000$     142,601,000$     

Commerical 131,218,294 142,359,865 132,729,922 128,377,775 128,044,700

  Total 307,928,294$     319,714,865$     293,498,922$     283,901,775$     270,645,700$     

  Total Direct Rate per 1,000 Gallons 1.08$                  1.08$                  1.08$                  3.18$                  3.37$                  

Fiscal Year

 

 

Type of Customer 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Residential 160,304,400$     146,792,100$     155,678,000$     154,718,000$     141,929,000$     

Commerical 129,810,102 128,201,713 135,567,000 155,661,000 123,931,700

  Total 290,114,502$     274,993,813$     291,245,000$     310,379,000$     265,860,700$     

  Total Direct Rate per 1,000 Gallons 3.56$                  3.56$                  3.56$                  3.56$                  3.56$                  

Fiscal Year

 

 
Source: Leon Valley Water Department. 
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

WATER AND SEWER RATES 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

TABLE 11 

Fiscal Monthly Rate per Monthly Rate per

Year Base Rate 1,000 Gallons Base Rate 1,000 Gallons

2015 9.36$                1.08$                14.36$              5.59$                

2016 9.36                  1.08                  15.08                5.83                  

2017 11.20                3.18                  15.08                5.83                  

2018 11.48                3.37                  15.08                5.92                  

2019 11.76                3.56                  15.08                6.24                  

2020 11.76                3.56                  15.08                6.24                  

2021 11.76                3.56                  15.08                6.24                  

2022 11.76                3.56                  15.08                6.24                  

2023 11.76                3.56                  15.08                6.24                  

2024 11.76                3.56                  15.08                6.24                  

Water Sewer

 
 
NOTES: Rates are based on 5/8” meter, which is the standard household meter size.  
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 
 

TABLE 12 

Less: Total Taxable Total

Fiscal Residential Commercial Industrial Tax-Exempt Assessed Direct

Year Property Property Property Property Value Tax Rate

2015 460,768,403        265,776,360     5,426,124        50,092,305       681,878,582$      0.582915

2016 473,221,531        278,323,833     6,158,319        50,285,171       707,418,512        0.575507

2017 504,499,829        288,913,043     5,574,551        58,925,926       740,061,497        0.561615

2018 558,785,477        324,533,883     5,961,942        71,367,400       817,913,902        0.556599

2019 597,606,183        361,183,881     6,527,631        78,177,221       887,140,474        0.556599

2020 677,156,407        378,811,873     8,057,007        66,737,761       997,287,526        0.545877

2021 636,307,764        574,292,157     9,034,492        102,639,988     1,116,994,425     0.535904

2022 689,389,560        599,369,775     9,071,223        113,500,200     1,184,330,358     0.534099

2023 818,724,389        674,604,836     9,494,623        168,566,783     1,334,257,065     0.484739

2024 1,116,665,422     480,890,121     10,456,421      262,069,301     1,345,942,663     0.484739
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103 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

RATIOS OF DEBT OUTSTANDING BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

TABLE 13 

Available Percentage of

General Private Property Certificates in Debt Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Finance of Service Value of

Year Bonds Contracts Obligation Fund Total Property

2015 7,857,138$       725,000$          -$                      (286,735)           8,295,403$      1.17%

2016 7,450,179         780,000            2,086,424         (320,527)           9,996,076        1.35%

2017 7,028,220         735,000            2,062,543         (339,874)           9,485,889        1.16%

2018 6,596,261         685,000            2,023,662         (350,176)           8,954,747        1.01%

2019 6,199,302         635,000            1,975,901         (341,448)           8,468,755        0.85%

2020 5,792,343         585,000            1,932,020         (387,927)           7,921,436        0.71%

2021 5,966,083         -                        1,883,139         (419,426)           7,429,796        0.63%

2022 5,487,803         -                        1,834,258         (414,099)           6,907,962        0.52%

2023 5,010,116         -                        1,780,377         (428,334)           6,362,159        0.48%

2024 4,511,607         -                        1,726,496         (577,210)           5,660,893        0.42%

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

 
 

NOTE: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. See 

Table 6 for the City's property tax value data. City population data can be found in Table 18. 
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104 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

CURRENT YEAR 

 
 

TABLE 14 

General Private Property Certificates Certificates Total Percent

Fiscal Obligation Finance of Revenue of Primary of Gross Per 

Year Bonds Contracts Obligation Bonds Obligation Government Income Capita

2015 7,857,138$       725,000$         -$                    -$                    -$                    8,582,138$         3.17% 763       

2016 7,450,179         780,000           -                      -                      2,086,424        10,316,603         3.81% 920       

2017 7,028,220         735,000           -                      -                      2,062,543        9,825,763           3.63% 873       

2018 6,596,261         685,000           -                      -                      2,023,662        9,304,923           3.43% 824       

2019 6,199,302         635,000           -                      -                      1,975,901        8,810,203           3.25% 779       

2020 5,792,343         585,000           -                      -                      1,932,020        8,309,363           3.07% 729       

2021 5,966,083         -                      -                      -                      1,883,139        7,849,222           2.27% 644       

2022 5,487,803         -                      -                      -                      1,834,258        7,322,061           2.22% 601       

2023 5,010,116         -                      -                      -                      1,780,377        6,790,493           1.74% 557       

2024 4,511,607         -                      -                      -                      1,726,496        6,238,103           1.60% 493       

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

 
NOTE: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. See 

Table 6 for the City's property tax value data. City population data can be found in Table 18. 
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105 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

CURRENT YEAR 

 
 

TABLE 15 

 

Estimated

Estimated Share of

Debt Percentage Overlapping

Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable* Debt

Debt  repaid with property taxes:

Alamo CCD 707,460,000$       0.42% 2,971,332$          

Bexar County 2,222,135,000      0.42% 9,332,967            

Bexar County Hospital District 1,280,820,000      0.42% 5,379,444            

Northside Independent School District 2,539,102,021      1.72% 43,672,555          

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt 61,356,298          

City Governmental Activities Direct Debt 4,511,607            

    TOTAL NET OVERLAPPING DEBT 65,867,905$        

 
NOTES: The overlapping debt was received from the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas. Details regarding the City's 

outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 
 

*Overlapping debt is the proportionate share of the debts of local jurisdictions located wholly or in part within the 

limits of the City of Leon Valley. This schedule is intended to demonstrate the total debt that the City of Leon Valley 

property tax payers will be expected to repay.  The amount of debt applicable to the City of Leon Valley is computed by 

(a) determining what portion of total assessed value of the overlapping jurisdiction lies within the limits of the City and 

(b) applying this percentage to the total governmental activities debt of the overlapping jurisdiction. 
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106 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

TABLE 16 

 

Assessed Value, 2023 Tax Roll 1,345,942,663$      

Debt Limit - Texas statues do not provide a legal

  debt limit for cities; however, through accepted

  practice a practical "economic" debt limit is

  considered to be 10% of the assessed value. 134,594,266$         

Amount of Applicable Debt:

General Bonded Debt 4,511,607$             

Less Debt Service Net Position (590,159)                 3,921,448               

DEBT MARGIN 130,672,818$         

Total Net Debt as a Percentage

  of Debt Margin 3.00%

2021 2022 2023

Assessed Value 1,116,994,425$      1,184,330,358$      1,334,257,065$      

Debt Limit 111,699,443$         118,433,036$         133,425,707$         

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit 5,535,681               5,065,956               4,571,454               

Total Debt Margin 106,163,762$         113,367,080$         128,854,253$         

2018 2019 2020

Assessed Value 949,714,257$         997,287,526$         1,075,859,763$      

Debt Limit 94,971,426$           99,728,753$           107,585,976$         

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit 8,950,605               8,462,414               5,980,870               

Total Debt Margin 86,020,821$           91,266,339$           101,605,106$         

2015 2016 2017

Assessed Value 740,061,500$         817,913,900$         887,140,474$         

Debt Limit 74,006,150$           81,791,390$           88,714,047$           

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit 8,774,392               10,376,736             8,098,078               

Total Debt Margin 65,231,758$           71,414,654$           80,615,969$           

Fiscal Year
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107 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

TABLE 17 

Utility Less:  Net

Fiscal Service Operating Available

Year Charges Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage

2024 5,362,842$       3,333,332$       2,029,510$      50,000$           51,065$        20.08         

2023 5,231,485         3,094,675         2,136,810        50,000             53,982          20.55         

2022 5,381,349         5,557,366         (176,017)          45,000             55,815          (1.75)         

2021 5,095,369         4,389,210         706,159           45,000             58,483          6.82           

2020 4,987,020         4,416,064         570,956           40,000             60,148          5.70           

2019 4,990,678         4,920,092         70,586             40,000             66,363          0.66           

2018 4,586,249         4,657,233         (70,984)            35,000             68,113          (0.69)         

2017 4,456,994         3,833,400         623,594           20,000             82,510          6.08           

2016 3,683,776         3,752,522         (68,746)            -                      -                    100.00       

2015 3,481,570         3,481,521         49                    -                      -                    100.00       

 

Water Revenue Bonds

Debt Service

 
 

NOTE: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 

Operating expenses do not include depreciation, interest, amortization or joint venture expenses. 
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108 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

TABLE 18 

Fiscal Year Population

Personal

Income

Per Capita 

Personal

Income

Median

Age

School

Enrollment

Unemployment

Rate

2015 10,866 270,954,576       24,936$        40.00         4,130           5.1%

2016 10,866 270,954,576       24,936          40.00         4,198           5.0%

2017 10,866 270,954,576       24,936          40.00         3,809           4.2%

2018 10,866 270,954,576       24,936          40.00         3,809           3.7%

2019 10,866 270,954,576       24,936          40.00         4,050           3.2%

2020 10,866 270,954,576       24,936          40.00         4,050           3.2%

2021 11,542 345,486,686       29,933          39.20         3,514           6.7%

2022 11,503 329,756,501       28,667          38.50         3,414           3.2%

2023 11,429 390,791,797       34,193          38.20         3,623           3.8%

2024 11,485 392,706,605       34,193          39.20         3,623           4.1%

 
 

Sources: Population, personal income, median age and education level information are provided by 

theUnited States Census Bureau. School enrollment information is provided by the Northside Independent 

School District. Unemployment data is provided by the Texas Workforce Commission.  
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107 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

TOP TEN PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

 
 

TABLE 19 

PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE

OF TOTAL CITY OF TOTAL CITY

SAN ANTONIO EMPLOYER EMPLOYEES RANK EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYEES RANK EMPLOYMENT

Joint Base San Antonio 82,639                1 7.09%

H.E.B. 20,000                2  1.72% 20,000              3 1.96%

USAA 18,100                3 1.55% 17,000              4 1.67%

City of San Antonio 14,500                4 1.24% 9,145                8 0.90%

Northside ISD 12,900                5 1.11% 12,751              5 1.25%

Methodist Healthcare System 12,000                6 1.03% 8,118                9 0.80%

North East I.S.D 8,208                  7 0.70% 10,052              7 0.99%

UT Health San Antonio 7,930                  8 0.68%

San Antonio ISD 7,500                  9 0.64%

Baptist Health System 7,291                  10 0.63% 6,498                10 0.64%

Lackland Air Force 37,097              1 3.64%

Fort Sam Houston- U.S. Army 32,000              2 3.14%

Randolph Air Force Base 11,068              6 1.09%

Total 191,068              16.39% 163,729 16.08%

The City of Leon Valley is surrounded by the City of  San Antonio and no data is available for the 

employers in Leon Valley.  The above data is for San Antonio.

Source: San Antonio Economic Development Foundation.

2024 2015
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108 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

TABLE 20 

Function 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

General Government

  Business Office 1.6     1.1     1.1     1.1     0.7     0.7     0.5     0.5     0.6     0.6

  Finance 2.0     2.0     2.0     1.5     1.1     0.7     0.7     0.7     0.9     0.9

  Manager and Council 3.0     3.9     2.5     3.3     2.8     2.1     3.6     3.6     1.8     1.8

  Information Technology -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        0.3     0.3

Public Safety

  Police

    Officers 24.0   25.0   28.5   37.0   41.0   41.0   41.0   41.0   41.0   41.0

    Civilians 3.9     1.0     1.0     4.3     4.3     4.3     4.3     4.3     3.2     3.2

  Fire

    Firefighters and Officers 0.5     1.0     1.0     1.0     1.0     1.0     -        -        -        -        

    Civilians 26.0   26.0   27.0   27.0   27.0   27.0    28.0    28.0    27.0    27.0   

Public Works 12.6   13.3   13.3   13.3   11.8   11.8   11.8   11.8   13.8   13.8

Development Activities 1.6     1.6     2.6     3.3     4.0     3.1     3.1     3.1     2.5     2.5

Economic Development 2.0     2.0     1.0     0.6     0.8     0.9     0.9     0.9     1.5     1.5

Parks 1.5     1.5     1.5     1.5     1.5     1.5     1.5     1.5     -    -    

Library 5.5     5.5     5.5     5.5     5.5     5.5     5.5     5.5     6.0     6.0

Comunications 6.0     2.0     2.0     -        -        -        -        -        -        -        

Community Center 1.6     1.6     1.1     1.6     1.0     1.0     1.0     1.0     0.8     0.8

Water and Sewer 18.2   17.6   17.4   17.4   17.4   17.4   17.4   17.4   17.7   17.7

    TOTAL 110.0 105.1 107.5 118.2 119.8 117.8 119.1 119.1 117.0 117.0

Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of September 30,

 
Source:  City Adopted Budgets 

 

Note  Full-time equivalent is based on the schedule hours of positions to a 40 hour work week. 
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109 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

Function 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Police

  Arrests 722.0 915.0 535.0 789.0 1221.0

  Traffic Violations 3915.0 4963.0 3643.0 7616.0 10156.0

Fire

  Fire Calls 1183.0 942.0 505.0 598.0 441.0

  EMS Calls 1136.0 1472.0 2081.0 1704.0 1561.0

  Number of Inspections 480.0 310.0 730.0 724.0 392.0

Public Works

  Streets resufacing (Miles) 5.0 1.0 2.3 1.2 4.1

  Sidewalk Construction (Feet) 1304.0 2060.0 1957.0 350.0 1020.0

Library

  Reference Questions 6,485.0          7,681.0         7,149.0          7,384.0           10,393.0       

  Internet Sessions 6,497.0          8,055.0         8,346.0          17,456.0         17,857.0       

  Library Acquisitions 1,823.0          2,011.0         2,352.0          2,269.0           1,760.0         

Water

  Daily Average Consumption

    (thousands of gallons) 843,639.0      869,649.0     804,105.0      777,813.0       741,495.0     

  Total Customers 2,561.00        2,574.00       2,583.00        2,601.00         2,613.00       

  Average Use Per Connection 329.42           337.86          311.31           299.04            283.77          

Sewer

  Total Customers 2456.0 2479.0 2489.0 2505.0 2613.0

  Daily Average 

    Treatment (Gallons) 703,607.0      681,173.0     703,502.0      697,762.0       679,844.0     

Fiscal Year

 
  Source: Various City Departments. 
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TABLE 21 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

473.0 333.0 673.0 1074.0 1126.0

4277.0 2601.0 5050.0 6003.0 4163.0

680.0 795.0 729.0 627.0 623.0

1521.0 1922.0 1758.0 1777.0 2100.0

614.0 679.0 734.0 675.0 728.0

4.1 2.0 1.0 2.0 2.1

1020.0 679.0 1187.0 926.0 1251.0

5,123.0          4,572.0           6,646.0         12,952.0       20,076.0         

4,061.0          8,834.0           3,801.0         8,087.0         6,875.0           

1,519.0          1,618.0           2,660.0         2,044.0         2,734.0           

769,308.0      753,407.0       973,521.0     862,163.0     733,102.0       

2,634.00        2,637.00         2,646.00       2,631.00       2,635.00         

292.07           285.71            367.92          327.69          278.22            

2546.0 2549.0 2560.0 2547.0 2548.0

635,655.0      648,440.0       797,932.0     655,080.0     663,991.0       

Fiscal Year
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111 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY  

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

 
 

Function 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Police

  Stations 1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              

  Patrol Units 24.0            25.0            28.5            37.0            37.0            

Fire

  Stations 1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              

  Fire Fighters 26.0            26.0            27.0            27.0            27.0            

Streets

  Streets, paved (miles) 39.5            39.5            43.0            43.0            43.0            

Parks and Recreation

  Parks - Developed 1.0              1.0              1.0              5.0              5.0              

  Parks - Acreage 24.0            24.0            69.5            69.5            69.5            

  Swimming Pools 1.0              1.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              

  Tennis Courts 1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              

  Community Centers 2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              

Library

  Facility 1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              

Water

  Number of Hydrants 208.0          208.0          208.0          208.0          208.0          

  Water Mains (Miles) 39.5            39.5            39.5            39.5            39.5            

Sewer

  Sanitary Sewers (Miles) 47.5            47.5            47.5            47.5            47.5            

  Storm Sewers (Feet) 4,000.0       4,000.0       4,000.0       4,000.0       4,000.0       

Fiscal Year

 
 Source: Various City Departments 
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TABLE 22 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              

37.0            37.0            37.0            37.0            39.0            

1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              

27.0            28.0            28.0            28.0            27.0            

43.0            43.0            43.0            43.0            43.0            

5.0              5.0              5.0              5.0              7.0              

69.5            69.5            69.5            84.6            84.6            

2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              

1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              2.0              

2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              -                  

1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              2.0              

208.0          208.0          208.0          208.0          208.0          

39.5            39.5            39.05          39.05          39.05          

47.5            47.5            47.5            47.5            47.5            

4,000.0       4,000.0       5,000.0       5,000.0       5,000.0       

Fiscal Year
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OVERVIEW

Clean Opinion (means we agree annual report is accurate) YES

Material or Significant Findings NO

Any Other Written Findings or Recommendations YES, 1

General Fund Trends 2022 2023 2024 Budget

Total Revenue 13,817,425 15,213,852 12,972,663 13,588,517

Total Expenditures 12,319,290 12,489,550 13,263,499 17,875,306

Other Sources (Uses) 119,110            (1,824,541)        1,548,618        1,253,751     

Change in Fund Balance 1,617,245         899,761            1,257,782        (3,033,038)    

Beginning Fund Balance 5,718,880 7,336,126 8,235,887
Ending Fund Balance 7,336,125         8,235,887         9,493,669        

Capital Expenditures 154,083 12,984 369,126

Nonspend, Restricted and Assinged Fund Balance2,316,789 2,316,789 2,661,669

Months in General Fund Balance 5.0 5.7 6.4

Proprietary  Fund Trends 2022 2023 2024

Total Revenue 5,956,617 5,447,908 5,933,677

Total Expenses 5,613,181 3,148,657 3,384,398

Other Sources (Uses) (394,509)           189,866            (1,063,784)       

Change in Fund Balance (51,073)             2,489,117         1,485,495        

Beginning Net Assets 10,155,792 10,104,719 12,593,836
Ending Net Assets 10,104,719       12,593,836       14,079,331      

Long-term Assets (8,439,432)        (10,337,604)      (10,941,125)     

Long-term Liabilities 2,283,161 2,410,346 2,257,009

Restricted (1,986,395) (2,011,865) (1,776,950)
Working Capital 1,962,053         2,654,713         3,618,265        

Other Fund Balances 2022 2023 2024

Disaster Emergencies 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Tree Mitigation 24,125 231,325 391,475

Economic Development 557,551 775,069 925,274

Other 5,810 6,543 7,237

Public Education (PEG) 298,380 298,380 332,800

Red Light Camera 919,759 1,077,147 944,822

Debt Service 414,100 428,334 577,210

Street Maintenance Funds 574,866            1,820,388 1,751,192

Capital Projects 0 772,527 0

Crime Control 508,228 624,621 738,579

Federal/State Forfietures 290,066 400,786 1,058,032

Community Center 228,610 290,939 294,008

Grants 7,142 644 9,838

Child Safety 50,838 65,414 78,603

Building Security 49,897 74,437 89,701

Court Technology 38,208 48,126 61,966

City of Leon Valley

Audit Highlights

September 30, 2024
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City of Leon Valley  Page 1 

 

CITY OF LEON VALLEY 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Leon Valley City Council Chambers 
6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, TX 78238 

Tuesday, February 04, 2025 at 6:00 PM 
 

MINUTES 

The City of Leon Valley City Council Shall Hold an In-Person Meeting with A Quorum of Members 
of City Council to Be Physically Present in The Leon Valley City Council Chambers, 6400 El Verde 
Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238. Some Members of City Council May Appear and Participate in 
The Meeting by Videoconference Pursuant to The Requirements Set Forth in The Texas Open 
Meetings Act.  
  
Citizens May E-Mail Public Comments To citizenstobeheard@leonvalleytexas.gov. All Other 
Citizen Participation May Be Provided In-Person at City Council Chambers.  

 

1. Call to Order; Determine a Quorum is Present, Pledge of Allegiance 

PRESENT 
Mayor Chris Riley 
Council Place 1 Benny Martinez 
Council Place 2 Betty Heyl 
Mayor Pro-Tem, Council Place 3 Philip Campos 
Council Place 4 Rey Orozco 
Council Place 5 Will Bradshaw 

Mayor Chris Riley called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM and confirmed that a quorum of 
the City Council was present in the Council Chambers. 

Mayor Riley asked Council Place 5, Bradshaw to lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. The City Council Shall Meet in Executive Session to Discuss the Following: 

Mayor Riley read aloud the caption for Agenda Item 2.1 

1. The City Council shall meet in Executive Session Pursuant to Texas Local 
Government Code Section 551.071: Consultation with the Attorney and Section 
551.087 Deliberation regarding Economic Development negotiations regarding an 
agreement with Royal Tile Limited Partnership. 

The City Council went into Executive Session at 6:02 PM.  
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City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  February 04, 2025 

City of Leon Valley  Page 2 

3. Reconvene into Regular Session 

The City Council reconvened into Open Session at 6:30 PM. 

4. Citizens to be Heard - Citizens wishing to address the City Council for items not on the 
agenda will be received at this time. Please limit comments to 3 minutes. In accordance with 
the Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted from discussing or acting on items not 
listed on this agenda. 

None 

5. Possible Action on Issues Discussed in Executive Session If Necessary 

Mayor Chris Riley announced that Item 10.1 would be moved up to this point of the meeting. 

10.1 Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action to Sign an Agreement that Will 
Expend General Fund Monies from the Economic and Community Development 
Department and Planning and Zoning Department and the Tree Mitigation Fund 
in the Amount Not to Exceed $55,000.00 for a Business Grant to Redeveloped the 
Property Located at 6600 Bandera Road - R. Salinas, Director of Economic 
Development 

Roque Salinas, Economic Development Director, presented. 

Louis Gonzalez, property owner, was present to address any questions. 

A motion was made by Council Place 4, Orozco to approve item 10.1 as presented. The 
motion was seconded by Council Place 5, Bradshaw. 

Voting Yea: Council Place 1 Martinez, Council Place 2 Heyl, Mayor Pro-Tem, Council 
Place 3 Campos, Council Place 4 Orozco, Council Place 5 Bradshaw 

6. Presentations 

1. Presentation on a Lights Out for Bird Safety Proclamation - Mayor Chris Riley 

Mayor Chris Riley presented the proclamation to Sara Beasley, Audubon Society and 
Beth Mursch, Chair of the Earthwise Living Committee. 

Council Place 1, Martinez, called a Point of Privilege to express his concerns about this 
proclamation and its potential effect on crime. Dr. Crystal Caldera, City Manager, 
responded to Council Place 1, Martinez, stating that it was "only a proclamation and has 
no impact; nobody will be required to turn off their lights. It holds no merit." 

This was followed by a brief video presentation and discussion among members of the 
City Council. 

Rita Burnside presented Mayor Riley with a calendar from the Audubon Society. 
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Council Place 5, Bradshaw, wanted it on record that he does not agree with this 
proclamation. Councilor Bradshaw stated, "I don't think we need to push businesses into 
turning off lights." He added, "I think it is a risk for the City, and there are a lot of reasons 
behind that. This whole proclamation is very long and full of virtue signaling." 

2. Presentation and Discussion on Revised Park Master Plan - M. Moritz, Public 
Works Director 

Melinda Moritz, Public Works Director, introduced Jessica Relucio, and Lata Krishnarao 
of Ardurra gave the presentation. 

Director Moritz encouraged City Council members and citizens to visit the website and 
provide their input by February 15th so that an update can be presented for 
consideration in March. 

3. Presentation, Discussion, and Direction to Staff on the Disposition of the Leon 
Valley Community Pool Facility - M. Moritz, Public Works Director 

Melinda Moritz, Public Works Director, presented this item. 

Those who spoke at this time were Erick Matta, Beth Mursch, Maria Gamboa, and 
Theresa Moser. 

Staff will provide cost estimates for some items, such as pickleball courts, for further 
discussion. 

4. Presentation and Direction to Staff on Potential Capital Items for Fiscal Year 2026 
Budget - Dr. Caldera, City Manager 

Dr. Crystal Caldera, City Manager, presented this item. 

Those who spoke at this time were Beth Mursch. 

7. Announcements by the Mayor and Council Members. At this time, reports about items 
of community interest, which no action will be taken may be given to the public as per 
Chapter 551.0415 of the Government Code, such as: expressions of thanks, congratulations 
or condolence, information regarding holiday schedules, reminders of social, ceremonial, or 
community events organized or sponsored by the governing body or that was or will be 
attended by a member of the Leon Valley City Council or a City official. 

Mayor Chris Riley and members of the City Council shared announcements. 

8. City Manager's Report 

Dr. Crystal Caldera, City Manager, announced that the City Manager's Report was available 
in print on the table in the foyer and posted on the City website. 

She added that the City is transitioning to Microsoft Office 365 Business and asked for 
patience during the migration. She advised that if an email is sent and no response is 
received, it should be resent. 
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1. Upcoming Important Events:  

 Regular City Council Meeting, Tuesday, February 18, 2025, at 6:30 PM, in City 
Council Chambers. 

 TxDOT Public Meeting (Bandera Road Project), Thursday, February 06, 2025, from 
5:00 PM - 7:00 PM, at the Leon Valley Conference Center.  

 City Offices and Municipal Court will be closed Monday, February 17, 2025, in 
observance of Presidents’ Day. 

 Basura Bash, Saturday, February 15, 2025. 

 Last day to apply for a place on the ballot for the May 03, 2025 General Election, 
Friday, February 14, 2025, at 5:00 PM.  

 Spring Brush and Bulky Item Pickup, February 24, 2025 through February 28, 2025. 

 Drawing for a Place on the Ballot, Monday, February 24, 2025, at 8:30 AM, in City 
Council Chambers.  

 35th Annual Earthwise Living Day, March 01, 2025, from 9:30 AM to 1:30 PM, at the 
Community Center.  

 Miscellaneous other events and announcements. 

9. Consent Agenda - All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City 
Council and may be enacted by one (1) motion. There will be no separate discussion of a 
Consent Agenda item unless a member of City Council requests that the item be pulled from 
the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 

A motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented was made by Council Place 4, 
Orozco, and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem, Council Place 3, Campos. 

Voting Yea: Council Place 1 Martinez, Council Place 2, Heyl, Mayor Pro-Tem, Council 
Place 3, Campos, Council Place 4 Orozco, Council Place 5, Bradshaw 
 
1. Discussion and Possible Action Approving of the Following City Council Minutes: 

a.  01-21-2025 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
b.  01-25-2025 Annual Town Hall Meeting Minutes 

 
2. Discussion and Possible Action Accepting of the Following Board/Commission 

Minutes: 
a.  11-13-2024 Earthwise Living Committee Meeting Minutes 
b.  11-13-2024 Citizens Police Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 
c.  12-12-2024 Park Commission Meeting Minutes 
d.  12-11-2024 Earthwise Living Committee Meeting Minutes 
e.  01-08-2025 Earthwise Living Committee Meeting Minutes 
f.  01-15-2025 Citizens Police Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 

3. Discussion and Possible Action on an Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of a 
City of Leon Valley Irene Baldridge Community Center Lease Agreement with the 
Northwest Senior Citizens Club (1st Read was Held on 01-21-2025) - C. Miranda, 
Community Relations Director 
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4. Discussion and Possible Action on an Ordinance Authorizing a Budget 
Adjustment for the FY 2024-2025 General Fund Budget Adjustment in the Amount 
of $20,000 for the Purpose of Increasing the Library Department Budget (1st Read 
was Held on 01-21-2025) - C. Goering, Finance Director 

10. Regular Agenda 

1. Discussion And Possible Action On A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City 
Of Leon Valley Ordering And Establishing Procedures For A General Election To 
Elect Three City Council Members (Places 1, 3, And 5) By The Qualified Voters Of 
The City Of Leon Valley; Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into A Joint Election 
Agreement With The Bexar County Elections Administrator For The Conduct Of 
The Election; Providing Details Relating To The Conduct And Administration Of 
The Election; Authorizing The Use Of The Leon Valley Conference Center On May 
03, 2025, For Election Day Voting; And Designating The Leon Valley Conference 
Center, Located At 6421 Evers Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238, For Early Voting 
From April 22, 2025, Through April 29, 2025 -  S. Passailaigue, City Secretary 

Discusión Y Posible Acción Sobre Una Resolución Del Consejo De La Ciudad De 
La Ciudad De Leon Valley Para Ordenar Y Establecer Los Procedimientos Para 
Una Elección General Para Elegir Tres Miembros Del Consejo Municipal 
(Posiciones 1, 3 Y 5) Por Parte De Los Votantes Habilitados De La Ciudad De Leon 
Valley; Autorizar Al Alcalde A Firmar Un Acuerdo De Elección Conjunta Con El 
Administrador De Elecciones Del Condado De Bexar Para La Celebración De La 
Elección; Proporcionar Detalles Relativos A La Celebración Y Administración De 
Dicha Elección; Autorizar El Uso Del Centro De Conferencias De Leon Valley El 
Día 3 De Mayo De 2025 Para La Votación Del Día De Elección; Y Designar El Centro 
De Conferencias De Leon Valley, Ubicado En 6421 Evers Road, Leon Valley, 
Texas, 78238, Para La Votación Anticipada Del 22 De Abril De 2025 Al 29 De Abril 
De 2025 - S. Passailaigue, Secretaria De La Ciudad 

Saundra Passailaigue, City Secretary, presented the item. 

A motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented was made by Council Place 4, 
Orozco, and seconded by Council Place 1, Martinez. 
Voting Yea: Council Place 1 Martinez, Council Place 2, Heyl, Mayor Pro-Tem, Council 
Place 3, Campos, Council Place 4 Orozco, Council Place 5, Bradshaw 
 

11. Requests from Members of City Council to Add Items to Future Agendas – Per Section 
3.10 (A) of the City of Leon Valley’s Code of Ordinances, at a Meeting of City Council, 
a Member of City Council May Place an Item on an Agenda by Making a Motion to 
Place the Item on a Future Agenda and Receiving a Second. No Discussion Shall 
Occur at the Meeting Regarding the Placement of the Item on a Future Agenda. 

The next agenda will include the previously requested item on vaping in public places, along 
with items related to the audit and the Zarzamora Creek Clean-up. 
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12. Adjournment 

Mayor Riley announced that the meeting adjourned at 8:28 PM. 

These minutes were approved by the Leon Valley City Council on the 18th of 
February, 2025. 

 
                                                                  APPROVED 
 
 
                                                     _______________________ 
                                                                CHRIS RILEY 
                                                                     MAYOR  
 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
                  SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
                            CITY SECRETARY 
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General Fund

FY 2025

REVENUE BUDGET

Ad Valorem 5,761,580$        3,633,100$        63.1% 4,324,630$        79.1%

Sales Taxes 3,752,505          609,513             16.2% 601,239             15.9%

Franchise Taxes 998,900             95,322               9.5% 101,521             10.1%

Licenses, Permits, Fees & Fines 1,590,635          755,435             47.5% 426,879             34.5%

Interest Income 430,313             137,342             31.9% 123,113             55.4%

Miscellaneous Revenue 1,789,396          1,973,907          110.3% 79,255               9.7%

Transfers In 2,318,930          1,729,644          74.6% -                         0.0%

Total Revenue 16,642,259$      8,934,262$        53.7% 5,656,637$        36.0%

EXPENDITURES

Municipal Court 427,642$           148,067$           34.6% 125,630$           29.5%

Finance 498,204             143,745             28.9% 138,214             29.7%

Council & Manager 1,051,606          332,444             31.6% 334,496             28.0%

Information Technology 448,774             204,174             45.5% 157,981             50.0%

Police 3,834,110          1,197,586          31.2% 1,177,783          33.3%

Impound Lot 158,818             70,745               44.5% 48,243               23.9%

Fire 4,293,553          1,269,726          29.6% 1,111,456          28.5%

Public Works 2,658,644          910,658             34.3% 702,782             25.4%

Planning and Zoning 1,060,463          157,214             14.8% 137,299             21.1%

Economic Development 664,359             123,755             18.6% 109,032             21.2%

Special Events 175,097             8,761                 5.0% 3,305                 2.3%

Parks & Recreation 2,689,639          156,658             5.8% 110,380             3.50%

Library 555,702             160,553             28.9% 156,798             26.6%

Transfers Out -                         -                         0.0% -                         0.0%

Total Expenditures 18,516,611$      4,884,086$        26.4% 4,313,399$        24.1%

Y-T-D ACTUAL Y-T-D ACTUAL

   Target Percentage 33.33%

FY 2024FY 2025

City of Leon Valley 

Monthly Financial

January 2025
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City of Leon Valley 

Monthly Financial

January 2025
General Fund

MISC REVENUE BREAKDOWN: 2025 BUDGET

Miscellaneous 317,328$             48,998$               15.4%

Sales of Surplus Property 10,000                 1,916,003            93.9%

ASPP Grant 20,000                 -                      0.0%

Hike and Bike Grant 1,260,312            -                      0.0%

DEA Reimbursement 50,000                 -                      0.0%

Insurance Proceeds 50,000                 8,237                   16.5%

Library Grant 6,756                   668                     9.9%

Fire Grant 50,000                 -                      0.0%

PD Grants 25,000                 -                      0.0%

Total Miscellaneous 1,789,396$           1,973,907$           110.3%

YTD ACTUALS
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Water/Sewer/Storm Water Fund

FY 2025

REVENUE BUDGET

Water Sales 2,113,000$        614,857$           29.1% 525,049$           25%

Sewer Sales 2,508,000          758,466             30.2% 708,233             28%

Storm Water 560,000             151,728             27.1% 150,294             24%

Connection & Platting 2,250                 1,725                 76.7% -                         0.0%

Customer Fees 69,600               27,183               39.1% 22,585               33%

Tapping Fees 10,000               8,343                 83.4% -                         0.0%

Interest Income 171,666             71,629               41.7% 73,830               148%

Miscellaneous Revenue 1,300,500          -                         0.0% -                     0.0%

Total Revenue 6,735,016$        1,633,931$        24.3% 1,479,991$        27.8%

EXPENDITURES

Water System 3,366,607          1,305,034          38.8% 541,545             19.5%

Sewer System 3,213,283          436,344             13.6% 764,316             22.7%

Storm Water 845,605             64,138               7.6% 86,804               6.5%

Other Sources/Uses 1,361,401          1,253,538          92.1% -                         0.0%

Total Expenditures 8,786,896$        3,059,054$        34.8% 1,392,665$        18.6%

FY 2025 FY 2024

Y-T-D  ACTUAL Y-T-D ACTUAL

   Target Percentage 33.33%

January 2025

City of Leon Valley 

Monthly Financial
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Community Center Fund

FY 2025

REVENUE BUDGET

Hotel/Motel Taxes 80,000$             12,295               24.2% 11,844               14.1%

Short Term - Rentals -                         7,033                 0.0% -                         0.0%

  RENTAL FEES

Community Center 48,650               18,000               37.0% 9,263                 19.3%

Conference Center 17,767               7,580                 42.7% 10,405               63.6%

Interest Income 14,943               3,852                 25.8% 4,217                 58.6%

Transfers in -                         -                         0.0% -                         0.0%

Total Revenue 161,360$           48,760$             30.2% 35,728$             23.0%

EXPENDITURES

Personnel 93,285$             31,500$             33.8% 27,850$             31.2%

Supplies 11,725               196                    1.7% 984                    12.3%

Contractual 50,101               9,354                 18.7% 16,444               27.7%

Capital Outlay 12,000               10,116               84.3% -                         0.0%

Total Expenditures 167,111$           51,166$             30.6% 45,278$             19.8%

Y-T-D ACTUAL

FY 2025 FY 2024

Y-T-D  ACTUAL

   Target Percentage 33.33%

January 2025

City of Leon Valley 

Monthly Financial
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FY 2025

REVENUE Budget

Sales Tax Revenues 411,086$            66,995$              16.3% 66,303$              16.2%

Interest Income 20,313                7,341                  36.1% 8,035                  73.1%

Total Revenues 431,399$            74,335$              17.2% 74,338$              36.1%

EXPENDITURES

Personnel 182,781$            54,760$              30.0% 42,816$              24.9%

Supplies 13,475                2,468                  18.3% 799                     7.0%

Contractual 236,768              25,138                10.6% 65,417                20.2%

Capital Outlay 231,335              41,389                17.9% -                          0.0%

Total Expenditures 664,359$            123,755$            18.6% 109,032$            21.2%

City of Leon Valley 

Monthly Financial

January 2025
Economic/Community Development

   Target Percentage 33.33%

FY 2025

Y-T-D ACTUAL Y-T-D Actual

FY 2024
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FY 2025

REVENUE Budget

Impound Lot Fees 118,700$            34,945$              29.4% 37,270$              37.3%

Auctions 106,000              36,348                34.3% -                          0.0%

Total Revenues 224,700$            71,293$              31.7% 37,270$              37.3%

EXPENDITURES

Personnel 127,548$            49,004$              38.4% 43,975$              35.9%

Supplies 3,300                  655                     19.8% 160                     8.4%

Contractual 10,072                3,417                  33.9% 4,108                  41.1%

Capital 17,898.00           17,669                98.7% -                          0.0%

Total Expenditures 158,818$            70,745$              44.5% 48,243$              23.9%

City of Leon Valley 

Monthly Financial

January 2025
Impound Lot

   Target Percentage 33.33%

FY 2025 FY 2024

Y-T-D ACTUAL Y-T-D Actual
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FY 2025

REVENUE Budget

Red Light Camera Fines 2,080,051$        565,583$           27.2% 743,347$           39.2%

Late Fees/Court Costs 200,000             56,108               28.1% 57,572               28.8%

Interest Income 37,740               14,288               37.9% 10,986               43.9%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                         -                         0.0% -                         0.0%

Transfers in -                         -                         0.0% -                         0.0%

Total Revenues 2,317,791$        635,979$           27.4% 811,905$           38.3%

EXPENDITURES

Red Light Cameras (Tier 1)

Personnel (6 employees) 664,154$           223,255$           33.6% 204,524$           31.8%

Supplies 8,550                 -                         0.0% -                         0.0%

Contractual 907,820             213,570             23.5% 211,439             23.8%

Transfers 370,264             370,264             100.0% -                         0%

Total Tier One 1,950,788$        807,088$           41.4% 415,963$           22.2%

Traffic Safety (Tier 2)

Personnel (2 employees) 217,831$           41,461$             19.0% 62,061$             20.8%

Supplies 37,725               593                    1.6% -                         0.0%

Contractual 78,983               28,475               36.1% 7,522                 13.93%

Capital Outlay 216,618             28,002               12.9% 155,441             26.2%

Total Tier Two 551,157$           98,530$             17.9% 225,024$           23.6%

UNAUDITED

RLC Fines Revenue 565,583                   

RLC Expenditures (436,825)                  

RLC Personnel Transfers YTD (123,421)                  

5,337                        Of this 50% goes to the city the other 50% goes to the state

City 50% Revenue (Loss) 2,669                        This is the 50% that comes to the city

Late Fees Revenue 56,108                      City keeps 100%

Interest Income Revenue 14,288                      City keeps 100%

Traffic Safety Expenditures (98,530)                    

Total Net Fund Revenue (Loss) (25,466)                    

Y-T-D Actual

FY 2025 FY 2024

Y-T-D ACTUAL

Red Light Cameras (RLC)
   Target Percentage 33.33%

City of Leon Valley 

January 2025

Monthly Financial
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 2/05/2025 10:06 AM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  999 - Pooled Cash                                                               CHECK DATE:      1/01/2025 THRU  1/31/2025

ACCOUNT:  112010          Pooled Cash                                                     CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     Check                                                                           STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All                                                                             AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104911  ADAM MARTINEZ                          249.25CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104912  ADVANCE AUTO PARTS INC                 150.34CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104913  ARDURRA GROUP                        4,536.70CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104914  AT&T                                    57.82CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104915  AT&T                                   630.32CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104916  AT&T MOBILITY                        1,696.23CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104917  AT&T UVERSE                            368.02CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104918  AUTOZONE STORES LLC                    118.41CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104919  STEPHEN J BARSCEWSKI                 1,290.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104920  BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF TX        97,189.80CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104921  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104922  BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF TX           160.80CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104923  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC              2,678.32CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104924  CAPITAL ONE, N.A.                      117.98CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104925  CENTRAL ELECTRIC ENT. & CO.            920.94CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104926  CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS                 315.73CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104927  CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS               1,406.38CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104928  CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS                  78.50CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104929  CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING OF          59.70CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104930  DAVID K YOUNG CONSULTING, LLC          176.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104931  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104932  DEEN AUTOMOTIVE                         14.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104933  EDWARDS AQUIFER AUTHORITY          160,234.02CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104934  EMERGICON, LLC.                        107.64CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104935  GALLS, LLC                           1,007.18CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104936  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104937  GJRR, LLC SERVICE 1 COLLISION          520.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104938  GRAINGER INC                           280.22CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104939  GULF COAST PAPER CO INC                773.88CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104940  INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES LLC            129.37CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104941  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104942  ISMAEL LOPEZ                            25.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104943  JESSIE MCGIBBONEY                       25.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104944  JIFFY LUBE INTERNATIONAL, INC.          98.72CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104945  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM               163.99CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104946  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM             1,044.40CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104947  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM               290.01CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104948  LIGHT BULB DEPOT 14 LLC                129.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104949  LONESTAR PROTECTIVE SECURITY A         650.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104950  MARIA ELENA ELIZONDO                 2,900.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104951  METRO FIRE                             516.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104952  MIGUEL LOPEZ                            83.99CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104953  LAWRENCE G MORALES                   2,537.50CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104954  MY-LOR, INC.                            58.45CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025
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 2/05/2025 10:06 AM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   2
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CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104955  NARDIS PUBLIC SAFETY                   504.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104956  NEW HORIZON PRINTING                   324.60CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104957  OVERDRIVE, INC.                        463.23CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104958  PATRICK DRISKILL                        25.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104959  PETHUB, INC.                         1,000.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104960  POLLUTION CONTROL SERVICES             360.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104961  SAN ANTONIO WATER SYSTEM            11,959.72CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104962  SAFESITE, INC                          303.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104963  SAN ANTONIO POOL MANAGEMENT, I       1,800.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104964  SAWS                               146,649.26CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104965  SERVICE UNIFORM RENTAL               1,011.59CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104966  SHARP ELECTRONICS                       84.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104967  SIDDONS MARTIN EMERGENCY GROUP       4,348.29CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104968  SOUTH TEXAS FIRE TRAINING, LLC         250.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104969  SURE-LOCK AND SAFE                     485.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104970  T-MOBILE USA                           514.97CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104971  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104972  ULINE, INC.                            157.33CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104973  UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS HEALTH SCI       4,431.50CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104974  DUGGER GRAFE SWANSON, INC.           2,300.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104975  VALLANCE SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC         126.50CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104976  VULCAN CONSTUCTION MATERIALS,          201.74CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104977  ZOLL MEDICAL CORP                    4,508.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104978  REFUND: CATAMOUNT PROPERTIES 2          38.19CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104979  REFUND: GONZALEZ, RAMIRO                95.36CR   CLEARED   U    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104980  REFUND: NDP BANDERA PARTNERS M         601.39CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104981  REFUND: REMAX UNLIMITED                 30.74CR   CLEARED   U    1/31/2025

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104982  REFUND: CENTURY COMMUNITIES             38.83CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104983  REFUND: CENTURY COMMUNITIES             50.73CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104984  REFUND: CENTURY COMMUNITIES             49.09CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104985  REFUND: CENTURY COMMUNITIES             49.83CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000

     112010           1/08/2025 CHECK     104986  REFUND: CENTURY COMMUNITIES             30.89CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000

     112010           1/10/2025 CHECK     104987  MONTGOMERY JOHNSON, ASHLEIGH           422.07CR   CLEARED   P    1/31/2025

     112010           1/10/2025 CHECK     104988  LEON VALLEY FD HOUSE FUND              180.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     104989  A & M AUTO CENTER, LLC                 104.98CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     104990  AC TECHNICAL SERVICES                  887.50CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     104991  ADIOS PEST CONTROL, LLC                149.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     104992  ADVANCE AUTO PARTS INC                 158.57CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     104993  ALTAWORX, LLC                        2,237.59CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     104994  AMAZON.COM LLC                       8,308.91CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     104995  AMERICAN TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS, IN      66,500.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     104996  ANGEL FIRE & SAFETY, LLC                65.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     104997  AT&T                                   667.61CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     104998  BANIS TOWING SERVICE                 4,370.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025
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     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     104999  BB INSPECTION SERVICES, LLC         15,667.50CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105000  BEN CASTRO                             120.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105001  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC                894.80CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105002  C&M LOCKSMITH & RIMFIRE SECURI         682.80CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105003  CALIENTE HOG                           400.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105004  CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA                585.67CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105005  CELIA ROTHER                           400.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105006  CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS                 120.61CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105007  CITIBANK                             6,067.38CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105008  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105009  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105010  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105011  CODE BLUE POLICE SUPPLY                 86.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105012  CORE & MAIN LP                          13.23CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105013  CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING OF         117.45CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105014  DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INSURAN       4,654.56CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105015  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105016  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105017  DEEN AUTOMOTIVE                          7.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105018  DEWINNE EQUIPMENT CO, INC               39.29CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105019  FRONTIER TECHNOLOGY, LLC            29,515.75CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105020  GALLS, LLC                           2,900.97CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105021  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105022  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105023  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105024  GJRR, LLC SERVICE 1 COLLISION        6,964.63CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105025  GREG CASTRO                             78.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105026  GULF COAST PAPER CO INC                468.72CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105027  HEAT SAFETY EQUIPMENT, LLC.             65.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105028  HENRY LOPEZ                          1,980.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105029  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES           2,310.53CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105030  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105031  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105032  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105033  INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES LLC             31.21CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105034  INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR           65.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105035  JAMES C. SPARKS                      2,394.80CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105036  JOHNNY VASQUEZ                         300.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105037  JOSE AYALA                             408.29CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105038  JOSE RAMOS                             156.92CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105039  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM                50.59CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105040  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM                23.05CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105041  LONESTAR PROTECTIVE SECURITY A       1,525.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105042  LUCY ABAJIAN                            56.97CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025
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     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105043  MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY                1,615.72CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105044  MARCOS MARTINEZ                        121.44CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105045  MARIA CABAGAY                          200.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105046  MARIA ELENA ELIZONDO                 2,900.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105047  MISSION TITLE, LP                    5,000.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105048  NEW HORIZON PRINTING                   119.17CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105049  OMNIBASE SERVICES OF TEXAS           1,860.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105050  PVS DX INC.                            110.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105051  SAM'S CLUB/SYNCHRONY BANK            2,642.46CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105052  SENSUS USA, INC.                     1,106.28CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105053  SERVICE UNIFORM RENTAL                 507.60CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105054  SHARP ELECTRONICS                       85.30CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105055  SIDDONS MARTIN EMERGENCY GROUP       3,250.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105056  SIRCHIE ACQUISITION CO, LLC            946.53CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105057  SOUTH CENTRAL PLANNING AND DEV         550.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105058  SOUTH TEXAS BLOOD & TISSUE CEN         520.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105059  WASHED AND SHINE, LLC                   90.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105060  SURE-LOCK AND SAFE                     820.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105061  TCEQ, MC-214                           100.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105062  TECHLEAD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES       4,000.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105063  TELEFLEX                             1,650.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105064  TMC PROVIDER GROUP, PLLC               670.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105065  THOMSON REUTERS WEST                   533.96CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105066  VIRGILO GONZALEZ                     1,200.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105067  TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC              1,205.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105068  WELDERS SUPPLY CO INC                  242.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105069  WRIGHT EXPRESS FSC                   5,891.04CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105070  WEX HEALTH                              66.75CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/15/2025 CHECK     105071  WHITE CAP, L.P.                        147.60CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/24/2025 CHECK     105072  PRICE, CHRISTOPHER                   2,010.14CR   CLEARED   P    1/31/2025

     112010           1/24/2025 CHECK     105073  SANTOS, ISAAC                        1,114.70CR   CLEARED   P    1/31/2025

     112010           1/24/2025 CHECK     105074  RIVERA, JUAN CARLOS                  1,966.46CR   CLEARED   P    1/31/2025

     112010           1/24/2025 CHECK     105075  DIAZ, PATRICE A                      2,568.16CR   CLEARED   P    1/31/2025

     112010           1/24/2025 CHECK     105076  LEON VALLEY FD HOUSE FUND              180.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105077  6ETTERS ACE KEY SERVICE INC             23.94CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105078  ADVANCE AUTO PARTS INC                 255.12CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105079  ALAMO CHAPTER OF THE TEXAS MUN          50.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105080  ALAMO COMFORT HEATING & AIR CO         140.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105081  ALAMO TRUCK GEAR                     1,897.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105082  AMERICAN TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS, IN      66,500.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105083  APEX OVERHEAD DOOR SERVICE           1,500.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105084  AQUA-METRIC                          6,455.34CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105085  ARDURRA GROUP                       34,625.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105086  ARDURRA GROUP                        7,762.50CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000
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     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105087  ARDURRA GROUP                          803.50CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105088  ARDURRA GROUP                        7,355.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105089  ARDURRA GROUP                       11,169.30CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105090  ARDURRA GROUP                        8,828.60CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105091  ARDURRA GROUP                        4,326.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105092  AUTOZONE STORES LLC                      9.59CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105093  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC                169.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105094  BRAVO EXCAVATION AND CONSTRUCT       5,800.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105095  CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES               475.82CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105096  CAPITAL ONE, N.A.                      135.96CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105097  CITY OF SAN ANTONIO                  1,890.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105098  CORE & MAIN LP                       5,504.75CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105099  CITY PUBLIC SERVICE BOARD           21,097.23CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105100  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105101  CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING OF          43.50CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105102  DEWINNE EQUIPMENT CO, INC               41.70CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105103  FUTURE ENTERPRISES, INC              2,980.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105104  GALLS, LLC                           1,236.11CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105105  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105106  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105107  VOID CHECK                               0.00     CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105108  GRAINGER INC                            73.64CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105109  GULF COAST PAPER CO INC              1,050.04CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105110  HAVEN FOR HOPE OF BEXAR COUNTY      19,163.73CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105111  HELOTES ECHO                           333.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105112  LITHO PRESS, INC                     1,986.09CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105113  MARIA MUNIZ                             60.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105114  MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS              838.50CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105115  MESSER FORT MCDONALD                 6,992.46CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105116  PITNEY BOWES                         1,209.63CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105117  POLLUTION CONTROL SERVICES             360.00CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105118  PVS DX INC.                          1,516.70CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105119  QUADIENT INC                           129.04CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105120  R&D GOTHARD ENTERPRISES INC            850.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105121  RIVER CITY BOLT & SCREW                 42.97CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105122  SERVICE UNIFORM RENTAL                 507.60CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105123  UNITED STATES POSTAL SVC             7,500.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105124  VALLANCE SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC          31.50CR   CLEARED   A    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105125  REFUND: LOPEZ, LEAH                     36.86CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105126  REFUND: GUEVARA, ARGENTINA              25.54CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105127  REFUND: DIECKER, HENRY                 196.87CR   CLEARED   U    1/31/2025

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105128  REFUND: MOSITES, PETER                  13.72CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105129  REFUND: MAHARAJ, MELVIN                  7.89CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000

     112010           1/23/2025 CHECK     105130  REFUND: CENTURY COMMUNITIES             49.61CR   OUTSTND   U    0/00/0000
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     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105131  AIR RELIEF TECHNOLOGIES, INC           937.54CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105132  ARDURRA GROUP                        2,265.48CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105133  AT&T                                    57.95CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105134  AT&T UVERSE                            342.38CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105135  AUTOZONE STORES LLC                     48.99CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105136  BATTERIES + BULBS SA                    37.90CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105137  BEAR READYMIX CONCRETE, LLC          1,165.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105138  BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF TX           160.80CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105139  BMI GENERAL LICENSING                  435.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105140  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC              1,854.85CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105141  CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS                 315.73CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105142  CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS               1,406.38CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105143  CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS                  78.50CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105144  CITY OF DEER PARK                       27.50CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105145  CIVIC PLUS, LLC                      4,188.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105146  CORE & MAIN LP                         849.40CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105147  DAILEY AND WELLS COMMUNICATION         750.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105148  DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INSURAN       4,675.65CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105149  VOID CHECK                               0.00     OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105150  VOID CHECK                               0.00     OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105151  EDWARD RIOS                            800.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105152  GALLS, LLC                           1,515.63CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105153  VOID CHECK                               0.00     OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105154  VOID CHECK                               0.00     OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105155  VOID CHECK                               0.00     OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105156  GLOBAL GATES USA, INC.               4,465.35CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105157  GLORIA NAMA                             25.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105158  GRAINGER INC                            31.64CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105159  GULF COAST PAPER CO INC                290.81CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105160  HODESSA CHAPA                          400.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105161  INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER          126.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105162  ISABEL RINCON                          400.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105163  JASON GARCIA                           381.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105164  JAYLEN WADDLE                           25.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105165  KWIK KOPY 23                           140.78CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105166  LANGUAGEUSA, INC                       238.68CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105167  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM               154.81CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105168  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM               266.86CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105169  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM               745.56CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105170  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM               320.55CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105171  LISA HERNANDEZ                         102.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105172  LONESTAR PROTECTIVE SECURITY A         225.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105173  MANUEL LOZOLLA                         400.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105174  MASTER SPAS INC-5712                 1,600.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000
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     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105175  METRO FIRE                           1,185.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105176  LAWRENCE G MORALES                   1,900.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105177  O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES               37.28CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105178  ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC            449.01CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105179  PITNEY BOWES                           324.96CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105180  SAN ANTONIO WATER SYSTEM               385.18CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105181  SAN ANTONIO WATER SYSTEM               260.35CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105182  SAN ANTONIO WATER SYSTEM               194.93CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105183  SAWS                                   176.16CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105184  SERVICE UNIFORM RENTAL                 483.69CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105185  SOUTH CENTRAL PLANNING AND DEV         530.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105186  T-MOBILE USA                           519.95CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105187  VOID CHECK                               0.00     OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105188  TALEWISE LLC                           350.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105189  TAYLOR MADE HOSE INC                   102.16CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105190  TELLUS EQUIPMENT SOLUTIONS, LL         284.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105191  TOP BRASS                            1,017.98CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105192  VALLANCE SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC          95.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105193  WHOLESALE PUBLIC SAFETY, LLC         5,823.32CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105194  ZOLL MEDICAL CORP                    1,024.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105195  AUDREY FLORES                          435.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105196  BRANDEN MULHOLLAND                     195.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105197  CHRISTOPHER BERNAL                     330.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105198  CHRISTOPHER WILLIS                     225.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105199  ELLIOTT GANGWER                        495.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105200  ERIC BURNSIDE                           15.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105201  ERIK BERNAL                            495.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105202  JACK PRADO                             495.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105203  JESSE RUIZ                             435.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105204  JOHN GEORGE                            435.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105205  JOHN SUHR                              495.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105206  JORDAN GARCIA                          195.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105207  JOSEPH PEREZ                           495.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105208  JOSEPH VALADEZ                         495.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105209  MARIA VILLAFRANCA                      435.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105210  RICHARD SANCHEZ                        450.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105211  SHAWN PIPKIN                           495.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105212  STEVEN KEITH                           495.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           1/29/2025 CHECK     105213  WADE CLAPPER                           495.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 112010                       CHECK           TOTAL:            964,825.69CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00
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  TOTALS FOR Pooled Cash                          CHECK           TOTAL:            964,825.69CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00
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MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
          
                 
DATE:   February 18, 2025      
 
TO:   Mayor and Council 
 
FROM:  Carol Goering, Finance Director 
 
THROUGH:   Dr. Crystal Caldera, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Discussion and Action on the Approval of Bank Signature Cards for Frost 

Bank and Amending the Resolution of Authorized Representatives for 
Texpool. 

 
SPONSOR(S): N/A 
 
PURPOSE & BACKGROUND 
 
The City now needs to update bank signature cars for Frost Bank. The City requires two 
signatures. The following individuals are the authorized signers for these functions. 
 
Chris Riley, Mayor 
Dr. Crystal Caldera, City Manager 
Carol Goering, Finance Director 
Saundra Passailaigue, City Secretary 
Lisa Hernandez, HR Director 
 
The City is Amending the Resolution of Authorized Representatives for Texpool. The following 
individuals are the authorized signers for these functions. 
 
Dr. Crystal Caldera, City Manager 
Carol Goering, Finance Director 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Authorize the change to the authorized signers for the City of Leon Valley. 
     
 
APPROVED: _____________________    DISAPPROVED: ____________________                                  
 
APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS: 
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_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
                
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
City Secretary 
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MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
          
                 
DATE:   February 18, 2025      
 
TO:   Mayor and Council 
 
FROM:  Susana Huerta, Planning and Zoning Director 
 
THROUGH:   Crystal Caldera, Ph.D., City Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Presentation and Discussion of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 6 Health 

and Sanitation, Article 6.05 Smoking Regulations to Incorporate Electronic 
Smoking Devices (ESDs) 

 
SPONSOR(S): None 
 
PURPOSE & BACKGROUND 
 
The Leon Valley Smoking Regulations, adopted in 2008 and contained in Chapter 6 Health and 
Sanitation, Article 6.05, provides for smoke-free air in public places. The ordinance addresses 
smoke only from combustible smoking devices (i.e. cigarettes and cigars). In 2014, electronic 
smoking devices (ESDs), such as e-cigarettes or vapes, entered the market, therefore, ESDs 
were not included in the original Ordinance. 
 
This amendment would include ESDs and would prohibit the use of ESDs in the same places 
where smoking is currently prohibited. 
 
The amendment will contain three changes related to ESDs and one change due to the 
preemption of state law. 
 

1. Add the definition of Electronic Smoking Devices (ESDs) to the Section. 6.05.003 - 
Definitions. 

2. Add Section. 6.05.009 - Posting of Signs.: Establishments will be required to include the 
electronic smoking device icon on signs, along with the traditional cigarette icon. Both 
icons would be enclosed in the standard red circle with a red bar across them. This 
signage will be required for every public place and place of employment where smoking 
is currently prohibited. 

3. Section 6.05.008 - Distribution, display, and sale of tobacco products; and cigarette 
machines. Our ordinance had set the age of sale to 21 years. This was preempted by the 
State's law passed in 2019 (still at 21 yrs), so current code language is not needed. 

 
The amendment to the Leon Valley Smoking Regulations Ordinance benefits the community by 
prohibiting exposure to both secondhand smoke and the vapor from electronic smoking devices 
in public places. This protects employees and patrons from exposure to dangerous substances. 
Many tobacco and vaping products contain harmful chemicals, which can damage lungs and 
affect brain development and can be especially troubling for young people.  
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The Texas State Law applies to purchasing vapes, by dictating age restrictions and still applies 
fines for purchase, use and possession of vapes by persons under a certain age. 
 
The amendment restricts vaping in the same places where smoking is restricted. Restrictions 
and penalties for vaping are the same as for smoking. The amendment does not change those 
current rules. 
 
In 2019, the 86th Legislature passed Senate Bill 21, which increases the legal age for the 
purchase of cigarettes, e-cigarettes or tobacco products, from 18 to 21,  including: 

 sale 
 distribution 
 possession 
 purchase 
 consumption 
 receipt 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None, with the exception of some sales tax. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approval of the ordinance amendment. 
     
 
APPROVED: _____________________    DISAPPROVED: ____________________                                   
 
APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS: 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
                
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
City Secretary 
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ORDINANCE NO.  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS, CITY COUNCIL, 

AMENDING THE LEON VALLEY CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 6 HEALTH AND 

SAFETY, ARTICLE 6.05 SMOKING REGULATIONS TO INCORPORATE ELECTRONIC 

SMOKING DEVICES (ESDs); PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE REVISION 

WITH PUBLICATION, AS REQUIRED BY LAW, PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 

AND PROVIDING A CONFLICTS PROVISION. 

WHEREAS, In 2014, electronic smoking devices (ESDs), such as e-cigarettes or vapes, 

entered the market, therefore, ESDs were not included in the 2008 version of Chapter 6 

Health and Sanitation, Article 6.05 Smoking Regulations; and  

WHEREAS, many tobacco and vaping products contain harmful chemicals, which can 

damage lungs and affect brain development, which can be especially troubling for young 

people; and  

WHEREAS, In 2019, the 86th Texas Legislature passed Senate Bill 21, which increases 

the legal age for the purchase of cigarettes, e-cigarettes or tobacco products, from 18 to 

21,  including sale, distribution, possession, purchase, consumption, and receipt; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Leon Valley wishes to not only adhere to State Law, but also 

protect the general public from noxious fumes from ESD’s; and  

WHEREAS, an amendment to the Leon Valley Smoking Regulations Ordinance benefits 

the community by prohibiting exposure to both secondhand smoke and the vapor from 

electronic smoking devices in public places;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

LEON VALLEY, TEXAS, THAT: 

SECTION 1. That the Leon Valley Code of Ordinances, Chapter 6 Health and Safety, 

Article 6.05 Smoking Regulations is hereby repealed and replaced as stated in Exhibit A 

attached hereto.  

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall become effective on and after its passage, approval 

and the meeting of all publication requirements as provided by law. 

SECTION 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 

hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict. All provisions, sections and sub-sections set 

forth in the Leon Valley Code of Ordinances, Chapter 6 Health and Sanitation not revised 

or amended herein shall remain in effect. 
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       APPROVED 
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       ______________________ 

                           CHRIS RILEY 

             MAYOR 

Attest : 

 
____________________________ 
 

SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 

              City Secretary 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 
____________________________ 
ARTURO ART RODRIGUEZ, JR.  

City Attorney 
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Exhibit A 

Chapter 6 Health and Sanitation Amendments 

ARTICLE 6.05 SMOKING REGULATIONS

Sec. 6.05.001 Penalties 

Each violation of this article if a first offense shall be punished by a penalty of a fine 
of not less than $25.00 nor more than $200.00; a second conviction shall be punished by 
a penalty of a fine of not less than $50.00 nor more than $500.00 for a second conviction; 
and shall be fined an amount no less than $100.00 for third or more convictions nor more 
than $2,000.00.  

Sec. 6.05.002 Purpose 

The Surgeon General of the United States has declared that smoking is the number 
one public health issue. The United States Environmental Protection Agency has 
concluded that passive smoking poses a public risk larger than the hazardous air 
pollutants from all industrial emissions combined. The city recognizes the evidence that 
smoke creates a danger to the health of some citizens and is a cause of annoyance and 
discomfort to those who are in confined spaces where the same is present. The city also 
recognizes that it is the right of citizens to choose whether or not to smoke actively or 
passively and it is the policy of the city to encourage food service establishments that 
have enclosed dining areas to provide adequate seating for patrons and employers and 
employees of such establishments who prefer a smoke-free environment. In order to 
protect the health, safety and welfare of the general public as well as protect the rights of 
smokers and non-smokers, this article has been created to restrict smoking in public 
places, except in areas designated as smoking areas.  

Sec. 6.05.003 Definitions 

Administrative areas. The area of an establishment not generally accessible to the 
public, including but not limited to individual offices, stockrooms, employee lounges, or 
meeting rooms.  

Electronic Smoking Device (ESD) means any product containing or delivering 
nicotine or any other substance intended for human consumption that can be used by a 
person in any manner for the purpose of inhaling vapor or aerosol from the product. The 
term includes any such device, whether manufactured, distributed, marketed, or sold as 
an e-cigarette, e-cigar, e-pipe, e-hookah, dab rig or vape pen, or under any other product 
name or descriptor.  

Employee. Any person employed by any employer for direct or indirect monetary 
wages or profit or is in a position that would lead one to believe that such person is 
employed.  

Employer. Any person, partnership, corporation, association, or other entity that 
employs one or more persons.  
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Enclosed. Closed in by a roof and walls with appropriate openings for ingress and 
egress, but does not include areas commonly described as public lobbies.  

Food establishment. Any operation defined as such in section 6.02.003 of this Code.  

Hospital. Any institution that provides medical, surgical, and overnight facilities for 
patients.  

Movie theater. Any establishment engaged in the business of exhibiting motion 
pictures to the public.  

Public-owned facilities. All buildings or structures whatsoever owned or operated by 
the city, including the entirety thereof, where the public has access or not.  

Public place. Any enclosed indoor area that may be used by the general public, and 
includes, but is not limited to: stores, offices, and other commercial establishments; 
restaurants; public and private institutions of higher education; and health care facilities.  

Retail and service establishments. Any establishment which offers goods or services 
for sale to the general public.  

Service line. Any indoor service line at which one or more persons are waiting for or 
receiving service of any kind, whether or not such service involves the exchange of 
money.  

Smoking means inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted or heated cigar, 
cigarette, pipe, hookah, or any other lighted or heated tobacco or plant product intended 
for inhalation, whether natural or synthetic, including marijuana/cannabis, in any manner 
or in any form. Smoking includes the use of an electronic smoking device which creates 
an aerosol or vapor, in any manner or in any form, or the use of any oral smoking device 
for the purpose of circumventing the prohibition of smoking in this Chapter. 

Workplace. Any enclosed area of a structure, or portion thereof, intended for 
occupancy by employees who provide primarily clerical, professional or business services 
of a business entity, or who provide primarily clerical, professional, or business services 
to other business entities, or to the public, at that location. The enclosed indoor area under 
the control of the employer shall include those areas to which employees have access 
during the course of employment, including but not limited to work areas, employee 
lounges, employee restrooms, employee conference rooms, and employee cafeterias. A 
private residence is not considered a place of employment.

Sec. 6.05.004 Smoking prohibited in certain public areas 

(a) A person commits an offense if he smokes or possesses a burning tobacco, weed or 
other plant product or any lighted burning pipe, cigar or cigarette of any kind, or 
smoking equipment or device, in any of the following indoor or enclosed areas:  

(1) An elevator used or that may be used by the public;  

(2) A hospital or nursing home corridor providing direct access to patients;  

(3) Any publicly owned facility or operated by the city as defined in section 6.05.003 
above;  
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(4) All retail or service establishments and financial institutions serving the general 
public, including but not limited to any department store, grocery store, 
drugstore, clothing store, shoe store, hardware store, bank, savings and loan, 
laundromat, hair salon or barbershop, and shall include all public areas and 
waiting rooms of public transportation facilities, including but not limited to 
common areas of city-owned theaters, concert halls, and cultural facilities; 
provided that smoking may be allowed in common areas of the shopping malls 
and designated areas of public facilities;  

(5) An area marked with a no smoking sign in accordance with section 6.05.005 by 
the owner or person in control of a hospital, nursing home, or retail or service 
establishment serving the general public; or  

(6) Any facility of a public primary or secondary school; or an enclosed theater, 
motion picture theater, library, museum, and transportation vehicles, such as 
buses and taxicabs, except on charter buses for private hire or in taxicabs clearly 
designated by the operator to permit smoking;  

(7) All rooms in which meetings and/or hearings are open to the public.  

(b) The owner or person in control of an establishment or area designated in this section 
shall post a sign, conspicuous to ordinary public view, at or near each public entrance 
to the establishment. The sign shall contain the words "No Smoking Except in 
Designated Areas, City of Leon Valley Ordinance," the universal symbol for no 
smoking, or other language that clearly prohibits smoking.  

(c) The owner of a person in control of an establishment or areas described in subsection 
(a)(4) or (a)(6) may designate an area, including but not limited to lobbies, meeting 
rooms, waiting rooms, or lounges, as a smoking area; provided that the designated 
smoking area may not:  

(1) Include the entire establishment;  

(2) Include cashier areas, over-the-counter service or sales areas, or service lines;  

(3) Include the viewing area of any theater or motion picture theater.  

(d) It is the defense to prosecution under this section if the person was smoking:  

(1) In a location that is not a designated nonsmoking area of a facility or 
establishment described in subsection (a)(4) or (a)(6) of this section;  

(2) In a location that is an administrative area or office area of an establishment 
described in subsection (a)(4) or (a)(6) of this section;  

(3) In a location that is a retail or service establishment serving the general public 
with less than 750 square feet of public showroom or service space or having 
one employee on duty, unless posted as designated in subsection (b) of this 
section;  

(4) In a location that is a retail or service establishment that is primarily engaged in 
the sale of tobacco, tobacco products or smoking implements;  
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(5) In a retail or service establishment, which is a food service establishment 
regulated by section 6.05.005;  

(6) As a participant in an authorized theatrical performance; or  

(7) In a situation in which the person is present at an event in which an entire room 
or hall is used for a social function, seating arrangements are under the control 
of the sponsor of the function and not the proprietor or person in charge of the 
place. However, the sponsor of the social function may designate a nonsmoking 
area.  

Sec. 6.05.005 Regulation of smoking in food establishments 

(a) A food service establishment that has indoor or enclosed dining areas shall provide 
areas for both smoking and nonsmoking patrons.  

(b) A nonsmoking area must:  

(1) Be separated from the smoking areas by a minimum of four feet of contiguous 
floor space, a partition or a wall;  

(2) Be ventilated and situated so that air from the smoking area is not drawn into or 
across the nonsmoking area, or the smoking area shall be separately ventilated;  

(3) Be clearly designated by appropriate signs visible to patrons within the dining 
area indicating the area that is designated nonsmoking; and  

(4) Have ashtrays or other suitable containers for extinguishing smoking materials 
at the perimeter of the nonsmoking area.  

(c) Each food establishment which has a dining area shall:  

(1) Have and implement a written policy on smoking which conforms to this article;  

(2) Make the policy available for inspection by employees; and  

(3) Have signs, conspicuous to ordinary public view, at each public entrance to the 
establishment indicating that nonsmoking seating is available.  

(d) Non-dining areas of any food establishment affected by this section to which the 
public has general access, including, but not limited to, food order areas, food service 
areas and restrooms, shall be designated as nonsmoking areas.  

(e) It is a defense to the prosecution under this section that the food establishment is:  

(1) An establishment which has indoor seating arrangements for less than 50 
patrons;  

(2) An establishment which has more than 70 percent of its annual gross sales in 
alcoholic beverages; or  

(3) A physically separated bar area of a food service establishment otherwise 
regulated.  

(4) The establishments covered in subsections (1) through (3) above shall post a 
sign, conspicuous to the ordinary public view, at each public entrance to the 
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establishment which shall contain the words "This Establishment Does Not 
Provide for a Nonsmoking Section."  

Sec. 6.05.006 Regulation of smoking in the workplace 

Notwithstanding the provisions of sections 6.05.004 and 6.05.005, any employer may 
designate a portion of the workplace as a nonsmoking area. Any employer who chooses 
to designate any portion thereof as a nonsmoking area shall:  

(1) Have and implement a written policy on smoking which conforms to this article;  

(2) Make the policy available for inspection by employees;  

(3) Prominently display reasonably sized signs conspicuous to ordinary public view, 
indicating that smoking is prohibited in certain areas; and  

(4) Provide facilities in sufficient numbers and at such locations to be readily 
accessible, for the extinguishment of smoking materials.  

Sec. 6.05.007 Reporting of violations not required 

This article does not require the owner, operator, employer, manager or any 
employee of an establishment to report a violation or to take any action against any 
individual violating sections 6.05.002 through 6.05.006 of this article.  

(Ordinance 08-053 adopted 11-18-08; 2008 Code, sec. 6.05.007) 

Sec. 6.05.008 Distribution, display and sale of tobacco products; and cigarette 

machines 

(a) Definition. For purposes of this section only:  

Tobacco products. Any product that is made from or derived from tobacco and is 
intended for human consumption or is likely to be consumed, whether smoked, heated, 
chewed, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled or ingested by any other means, including, but not 
limited to, a cigarette, a cigar, pipe tobacco, chewing tobacco, snuff, or an electronic 
smoking device or liquids used in electronic smoking devices. Tobacco products do not 
include drugs, devices, or combination products authorized for sale by the U.S. Food and 
Drug Administration, as those terms are defined in the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic 
Act.  

(b) Prohibited. Distribution, display, and sale of smoking tobacco products, or smoking 
paraphernalia on any public right-of-way, city park or any city-owned building or 
facility is hereby prohibited. 

(c) The sale of tobacco products to persons under twenty-one (21) years of age is 
prohibited by Chapter 161 of the Texas Health and Safety Code.  

(d) Each person who sells tobacco products at retail or by vending machine shall post a 
sign as required by Texas Health and Safety Code Section 161.084.    

(e) Cigarette vending machines. 
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(1) Subject to the defenses provided in subsection (2) below, it shall be unlawful for 
any business owner, manager and employee in control of cigarette vending 
machines within the city to intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or with criminal 
negligence allow the display or use of any cigarette vending machine upon any 
property within the city.  

(2) It is a defense to prosecution under the provision of subsection (f)(1) that:  

(A) The cigarette vending machine is situated in a premises where entry by any 
person under 21 years of age is prohibited by law; or  

(B) The cigarette vending machine is located in a workplace with the permission 
of the employer, provided that the employer has no persons under the age 
of 21 years employed at the workplace, and further provided that the 
cigarette vending machine is situated at a location within the workplace to 
which persons other than those employed at the workplace are not 
permitted to have access.  

(f) Penalty. A violation of any subsection of this section is hereby declared to be a 
misdemeanor crime, and upon conviction, shall be punishable as set out below:  

 A violation of subsections (b) or (e) shall be punishable by a fine of not more 
than $2,000.00.  

Sec. 6.05.009 Posting of signs. 
 
(a) "No Smoking” signs shall be clearly and conspicuously posted in every public place 
and place of employment where smoking is prohibited by this chapter, by the owner, 
operator, manager, or other person in 
control of that place. The City Manager shall prescribe the content of the “No Smoking” 
sign 
required to be posted under this article and have an example sign available on the 
City’s website. 
 
(b) Every public place and place of employment where smoking is prohibited by this 
chapter 
shall have posted at every entrance a conspicuous sign clearly stating that smoking is 
prohibited. 
 
(c) All ashtrays and other smoking paraphernalia shall be removed from any area where 
smoking is prohibited by this chapter by the owner, operator, manager, or other person 
having control of the area.  
 
(d) Areas which are exempt from the provisions of sections 6.05.004 and 6.05.005 of this 
chapter shall post a standard sign at each entrance, to be designated by the city informing 
potential patrons that the area allows smoking, and warning patrons of the negative health 
effects associated with secondhand smoke, inhaling vapor and aerosol from electronic 
smoking devices.  
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(e) The owners or operators will provide the signs required under subsection 6.05.009 (d) 
at their own expense following City sign posting guidelines within 90 days of the adoption 
of the ordinance.  
 
Sec. 6.05.010 Governmental agency cooperation.  
 
The city manager shall annually request other governmental and educational agencies 
having facilities within the city to establish local operating procedures in cooperation and 
compliance with this chapter. This includes urging all federal, state, county and school 
district agencies to update their existing smoking control regulations to be consistent with 
the current health findings regarding secondhand smoke and vapors and aerosols from 
electronic smoking devices. 
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Consider Amending Leon Valley City Code
Chapter 6 Health & Sanitation

Article 6.05 Smoking Regulations

Susana Huerta, AICP

Planning and Zoning Director

City Council Meeting

February 18, 2025
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Summary
• Question

– Should the City Council consider amending the Smoking
Regulations Ordinance to include Electronic Smoking
Devices (ESDs - Vaping)

• Options

– Approval

– Denial

– Other

• Declaration

– This amendment will benefit the community by prohibiting
exposure to secondhand smoke & vapor from ESD’s
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Purpose

• Adopted in 2008, Article 6.05, provides for smoke-free air 
in public places

• Current Code only addresses smoke from combustible 
smoking devices (i.e. cigarettes and cigars) and not ESD’s

• In 2014, ESDs, such as e-cigarettes or vapes, entered the 
market & became very popular with teens and young 
adults

• The amendment would include ESDs & prohibit use of 
ESDs in the same areas where smoking is currently 
prohibited

• The amendment would be effective 90 days after 
adoption
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Purpose / Background

Changes:
• Adds the definition of Electronic Smoking Devices (ESDs)

• Adds requirement to include the ESD icon on signs, along with
with the traditional cigarette icon

– Both icons would be enclosed in the standard red circle
with a red bar across them

• Remove the age statute - current ordinance states persons
age of sale at 21 years, but State law already references age at
21 – so proposed amendment would omit any age reference

184

{Section}.71.



Signage Examples
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Purpose / Background

• Many tobacco & vaping products contain harmful chemicals,
which can damage lungs & affect brain development - this is
especially troubling for young people

• Texas State Law applies to purchasing vapes, by dictating age 
restrictions & applies fines for purchase, use and possession 
of vapes by people under a certain age

• The amendment restricts vaping in the same places where 
smoking is restricted

• Restrictions and penalties for vaping are the same as for 
smoking

• The amendment does not change those current rules
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Fiscal Impact

• None to the City, other than sales tax
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Recommendation

• Staff recommends approval of the ordinance 
amendment
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MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

DATE: February 18, 2025  
 
TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Roque Salinas, Director of Economic Development 
 
THROUGH: Crystal Caldera, Ph.D., City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action to Authorize the City 
Manager to Expend Funds from the Economic Development Department and Stormwater 
Fund in the Amount of $17,500.00 for Maintenance of Zarzamora Creek. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
Staff has received complaints and noted several concerns and challenges posed by the 
overgrowth, trash, and homelessness situation in and near Zarzamora Creek along the 
Loop 410 access road and Bandera Road, including economic impacts, health concerns, 
and safety risks by business owners, their staff, and their customers. The creek has a 
legal owner, but it is a corporation that is no longer in business and all attempts over the 
years to contact and cite them have been fruitless. 
 
The aesthetic condition of Zarzamora Creek is an economic development concern, as 
many of our larger businesses like HEB, LA Fitness, and Office Max are directly adjacent 
to the creek and they have expressed their displeasure in the amount of overgrown brush, 
downed trees, trash, homeless people, and debris located within the creek, which makes 
their business properties look unkempt. Staff recently received complaints from the 
general public about the disheveled look of what they think is the property of HEB. 
 
The number of homeless people living in the creek is a public safety concern, as there 
are childcare facilities and schools in close proximity to the creek, including the SST 
Discovery School and Emmazing Play.  
 
Finally, this creek presents a stormwater issue. Although the creek is not legally owned 
by the City of Leon Valley, the city strives to maintain it in accordance with Best 
Management Practices mandated by the TCEQ for the city’s MS4 Stormwater Permit. 
Recently, TXDOT mowed the creek, and in February, the City will partner with the San 
Antonio River Authority to clean up the trash and mow the area again (Basura Bash).  
 
These efforts will ensure the creek remains manageable until the growing season begins 
in March. Currently, the Public Works Department mows the creek twice annually, but 
staffing shortages limit the frequency of maintenance, which results in the creek 
frequently being overgrown, trashy, and an attractive nuisance.  
 
The city has undertaken several proactive measures in the adjacent area over the past 
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twelve months, including the demolition of abandoned buildings that were frequently used 
as shelters by the homeless population and associated with other significant problems, 
such as trash, fires, and substance use. These properties include: 
 

 The former Comfort Café at 5616 Bandera Road, 
 The former Sonic restaurant at 5630 Wurzbach Road, and 
 The former veterinary hospital at 5721 Bandera Road (corner of Loop 410 and 

Bandera). 
 
While these efforts have helped mitigate the hazards, homeless persons have relocated 
from those properties to the drainage tunnels and overgrown areas within the creek 
behind the school and businesses, where tall grass, overgrown trees, and vegetation 
provide cover. To address the problem, the Economic Development Department 
proposes to enter into an agreement with a private contractor, not to exceed $17,500.00, 
to mow the creek quarterly. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Funding Sources: 
 

 Economic Development Project fund  $10,000.00 

 Stormwater Maintenance fund        $  7,500.00 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to expend funds in the amount of 
$17,500 for the cleanup and maintenance of Zarzamora Creek. 
 
 
APPROVED : _____________________    DISAPPROVED : ________________          
                         
 
APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS :  
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST : 
 
 
____________________________ 
Saundra Passailaigue, TRMC 
City Secretary 
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Request to Expend Funds
Zarzamora Creek

Clean up 

Roque Salinas, MPA

Economic Development Director

City Council Meeting

February 18, 2025
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2/11/2025 2

Summary
• Question: Should the City Council authorize the City

Manager to use existing funds from the Economic
Development Department & Stormwater Fund for
maintenance of Zarzamora Creek?

• Options:
– Approval

– Denial

– Other

• Declaration

– Assuring the creek is cleaned & mowed consistently
adheres to BMP’s for Stormwater Management &
protects existing businesses
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2/11/2025 3

Purpose

• The condition of the Creek (near Loop 410 & Bandera Rd) is
causing negative economic impacts, health concerns, & safety
risks for adjacent business owners, their staff, & their customers

• Legal owner is a corporation no longer in business & attempts to
contact/cite them have been fruitless

• Aesthetic condition is an economic development concern

– Large businesses like HEB, LA Fitness, and Office Max, directly
adjacent to the creek, express their displeasure in the amount
of overgrown brush, downed trees, trash, homeless people, &
debris in the creek, making their business properties look
unkempt (customers think the creek is owned by HEB)
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2/11/2025 4

Background 

• The public safety concern is the number of homeless people &
their activities in the creek, with the adjacent childcare facilities &
schools, including the SST Discovery School and Emmazing Play

• Creek is not owned by the city, but we try to maintain it in
accordance with Best Management Practices (city’s MS4
Stormwater Permit)
– Recently TXDOT mowed the creek, and in February city will partner with

SARA to clean up the trash & mow the area again (Basura Bash)

• Public Works Department mows the creek 2X annually, but
staffing shortages limit frequency of maintenance, resulting creek
frequently being overgrown, trashy, & an attractive nuisance
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2/11/2025 5

Background 

• Proactive measures near creek in past 12 months
include demolition of abandoned buildings used as
shelters by the homeless population & associated with
other significant problems, such as trash, fires, and
substance use

• Properties include:

– Comfort Café at 5616 Bandera Road

– Sonic restaurant at 5630 Wurzbach Road

– Veterinary hospital at 5721 Bandera Road (corner of Loop 410
and Bandera)
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Zarzamora Creek Aerial View

Zarzamora 

Creek
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2/11/2025 7

Business in the area 

• LA Fitness 

• Office Depot 

• I Brownbar

• Heb 

• Subway 

• Sally Beauty 

• Topaz 
Dentistry 

• H&R Block 

• Gamestop

• GreatClips

• Vicky Nails

• Cabinet 
Bazaar 

• SST Discovery 
School

• Boost Moblie

• Emmazing
Play

• Tint World 

• Custom 
Sounds

• Home 
improvement 
warehouse
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2/11/2025 13

Fiscal impact 

• Funding:
– Economic Development Project $10,000

– Stormwater Maintenance funds $ 7,500

– Total $17,500
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2/11/2025 14

Recommendation

• Staff recommends approval of this request
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OUTSTANDING CITY COUNCIL ITEMS 

 Review of the Water and Sewer Rates  

o 6/20/2023 Postpone council requested this be a retreat item for 7/22/23. 

o Council will be looking at a 1% increase at a future meeting. 

o This will be discussed at the Town Hall meeting- on 11/21/2023, the 

Council decided on a workshop. 

o 12/5/2023 City Council reviewed the presentation from Waterworth. The 

next workshop is scheduled for 2/20/2023 (the date has been moved). We 

were waiting on the audited numbers. We just received them. We will be 

setting a new date for review.  

o 7/16/2024, the council will hear a new presentation 

 Some Councilmembers expressed concern that the water rate does 

not match SAWS. Some Councilmembers expressed concern that 

that by not increasing water rates the water infrastructure will not 

get addressed.  

 Everyone agreed on the surcharge and looking at the affordability 

rate 

o Staff will bring back the Surcharge on 8/6/2024. 

o New rates will be brought back to the council in September 2024. 

o Second Read on the Surcharge 8/20/2024. 

o Council passed unanimously 

o Water workshop on Saturday in October 19, 2024. 

 Look at the rates with the TX Water Board Low interest Loans 

 Look at the rates with the EPA Low interest Loan  

 Look at rates to exactly match SAWS structure 

 Will have another workshop in est. 30 days 

 11/12/2024 next workshop 

 The Council decided to present at the town hall meeting 

o Melinda will be presenting on 2/18/2025 for an increase  

 Flooding 

o Was addressed at the following Council Meetings. 

 08/03/2021 – Flood damage prevention Ord. # 21-034. 

 11/2/2021 – To discuss flood mitigation strategies. 

 12/07/2021 – Short-Term options to address flooding. 

o Budget Adjustment – For funding floodway monitoring and software 

upgrades. 

 Upcoming Council presentation 1/18/2022. 

o Budget Adjustment – for creek cleanup. 

 Staff is proposing $150,000 in ARP funds. Upcoming Council 

meeting TBD. 

o Segment one of Huebner Creek will be presented to the Council on 

4/19/2022. 
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 Council decided to look at the 50’ wide, protected little league, the 

study will be brought back to the Council before we agree to do it.  

o Budget adjustment for creek cleanup. 

 6/7/2022 

o Budget adjustment for flood gates and notification system. 

 6/7/2022 postponed 

 Huebner Creek Channel Improvement presentation 9/20/2022. 

o Council direction to bring back budget adjustment on $633,000. 

 First Read 10/3/2022. 

 Second Read 10/18/2022.  

o 11/21/2023 – PW Director will provide an update and receive direction – 

Council decided to have a field trip to look at the creek layout TBD. 

o The Council decided to conduct a field trip in the Natural Area 

o 12/6/2023, the Council walked the steaked-out creek realignment 

o 1/16/2023 – The Council will revisit the project. 

o 2/24/2023- the Council will have a workshop to discuss with the engineer.  

 The council directed the engineer to look at a plan that leaves the 

creek alignment alone, a new tree survey, and build a retaining wall 

for erosion. 

o 8/6/2024 – budget adjustment will be presented to the council in the 

amount of $168,000  

o Second Read on the Budget Adjustment is scheduled for 8/20/2024.  

o After council approval, the following is the timeline: 

 Preliminary Design – 1.5 months (45 days) from NTP 

 Final Design – 3-4 months (90-120 days)  

 Environmental – TBD – 3-6 months and will be concurrent with 

design 

 Bidding and Construction – TBD based on funding – Not Authorized 

at this time 

 Approved 

o Chanel bank options 11/19 

 Council decided to proceed with Rip Rap option and have staff 

proceed with SAWS addressing the exposed recycled water line.  

o The Mayor requested that an item be added to have the engineers mark 

the trees that would be removed with the projects this item is on 1/17/2024 

council meeting to be added for approval 

 City Council did not approve the expending of these funds and also 

had no objection to continuing the project 

o Mayor, City Manager, Mayor Pro Tem and Engineer met with SAWS on 

1/30/2025. To see if they would also the engineers project. They City 

Manager asked if they would be willing to participate in an alternative. 

 Discussion of updating the Strategic Plan, Mission, & Vision Statement  
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o Will be placed on the Town Hall meeting for discussion decided at the 

11/21/23 Council meeting to hold a workshop. 

o February 3, 2024, workshop scheduled. At the council chambers. The 

Council changed the date to 2/24/24 to coincide with another workshop. 

o The Council decided to amend the mission and vision statements. Holding 

another workshop for the goals and objectives and core values.  

o Core values will be discussed at 3/19/2024. Goals will return after the 

council retreat.  

o This item is still pending. The council did not get this item at the retreat. 

o This item was going to be added to the townhall meeting.  

 Silo design per request of the adjacent property owner 

o 5/2/2023 – Moved by CM due to the number of items on the agenda. 

o 5/16/2023 – Scheduled  

 Council Requested outreach to local universities. 

 Melinda is working on quotes. 

 Sustainability Overlay 

o 6/6/2023 Staff is not ready and has been postponed until September.  

o 725/2023 – Zoning Commission started to review. The item is with the 

Attorney.  

o New Planning and zoning Director and the City Manager met with the 

attorney on 1/8/2024. The item should be coming forward soon. 

 Stray Animal Ordinance  

o Currently being reviewed by the City Attorney – we cannot require private 

industry to take in and adopt our stray animals. 

o Looking at a possible interlocal agreement.  

o Staff has met with the county for a long-term solution.  

 Neighborhood/Citizen Survey 

o Will be tied to the solid waste survey. The council decided to keep these 

two separate items. 

 Looking at an amendment to Section 15.02 Appendix C (I), D Structural 

Nonconformity to add a matching percentage from Economic Community 

Development funds. 

o After the sustainability review.  

 Four-way stop at Forest Meadow and Evers.  

o To be evaluated upon the development of the Evers property. 

o Will be discussed on 7/13/2024 council retreat 

o Waiting until after the development or until it is added by the city council. 

 Review of the Personnel Manual 

o Administrative changes will be coming in April 

 Discussion on large capital projects – Possible Bond 

o Public Works Building 

o ADA requirements 

o Crystal Hills Park 

207

{Section}.81.



o Pool 

o Dog Park 

o Library Annex 

o Will be discussed at the council retreat on 7/13/2024 

o This item was briefly discussed and will be brought back to city council. 

September 17, 2024, council meeting. 

o Add to the townhall meeting for discussion 

 Ordinance on Amending the PDD 

o Scheduled to go to the zoning commission meeting on 4/23/2024 

o The zoning commission tabled the item. Will revisit 5/28/2024 

o Zoning commission revisited on 6/5/2024 

o The Zoning Commission will revisit in September 

o New Planning Zoning Director is working with the City Attorney. 

 Veterans Monument 

o Waiting for two council members to add this item.  

o Price quote was $24,000 

 Planning and Zoning Ordinance 

o Martinez and Heyl 

o 12/5/2024 

o Postpone until after the new year. 

 Vaping: Making it illegal in Public Areas 

o 2/18/2024 Council meeting 

ITEMS ARE STILL IN THE PIPELINE BUT HAVE BEEN ADDRESSED  

 Red-light Cameras' first available contract end term is May 2037 

o City Council adopted a Resolution declaring the intent to phase out 

redlight cameras 4/6/2021 – Resolution # 21-009R. 

o The RLC Contract would be difficult to terminate without financial 

obligation from the City. 

o City Council supports HB 1209 and physically delivers letters in support to 

Cortez, Biederman, Canales, Menendez 

o Funds – Eligible projects – CR 

 Will be discussed at the Town Hall Meeting on January 22, 2022. 

o Discussed at the retreat Council has decided not to spend funds until we 

know what the legislature is doing. 

o Resolution supporting SB 446-2/21/2023. 

o The item was not approved during the legislation process the Council will 

try again in 2025. 

o The Council decided at the retreat not to address this issue.  

 Comprehensive Master Plan 

o Was addressed at the following Council meetings: 

 2/2/2021 

 3/23/2021 
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 06/1/2021 

o This item was discussed during the budget process, and ultimately, the 

Council has decided not to spend the funds on this project at this time.  

o This will be discussed during the town hall meeting update with the council 

on 4/19/2022. 

 The council would like us to use our future land use map. 

o Establish neighborhood boundaries 

o The council has opted not to Update the Master Plan. 

o P & Z Director investigating a university conducting the plan. 

o Boundaries of the neighborhood 

o This has been placed in the FY 2025 budget.  

 The Council has decided to move the $250,000 to the city’s 

emergency fund.  

 AV equipment for the Conference Center - Budget Adjustment from ARP 

Funds 

o Council meeting 2/1/22 first read.  

o Item amended to get the direction of the scope of work. 

o Will bring the item back after the BID process. 

o Discuss alternatives 5/3/2022. 

o This item could not be purchased out of ARP funds. 
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